
Bhe1re1t Pe1rentere1ls Limited 

Date: 12 th June, 2024 

To, 

BSE Limited 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 

Da1al Street, Fort, 
Mumbai -400 001 

Scrip Code: 541096 

Dear Sir / Madam, 

Registered Office & Works: 
Survey No.: 144-A, Jarod-Samlaya Road, Viii. Haripura, 

Ta. Savli, Dist. Vadodara - 391520 (Guj.) India. 
Mobile : 99099 28332 

E-mail: info@bplindia.in, Web.: www.bplindia)n
CIN NO: L24231GJ1992PLC018237 

(WHO-GMP CERTIFIED * STAR EXPORT HOUSE) 

Sub: Submission of Annual Report under clause 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

We submit herewith Annual Report of the company for Lhe FY 2023-2024 together 
with the Notice of 31st Annual General MeeLing along with typo error correction of the 
company scheduled to be belcl on 2nd July, 2024 at 11:00 /\.M. through Video 

Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio­Visual Means (OAVM) in accordance with the 
relevant circulars issued b_'/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and SEBI. 

The said Annual Report along with the Not.ice is also available on tbe website of the 
company wwv,.bplindia.in 

A copy of the Notice along-vvit.h Link of website where Annual Report is published is 

mailed to all the shareholders of the company whose E-Mails IDs are registered with 

the company /R&T Agents & DPs. 

You are requested to take note of the same. 

For Bharat Parenterals Limited 

�-
, 

Krutika Bhattbhatt 

Company Secretary 
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31st AGM NOTICE 

BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 31st Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the 
members of Bharat Parenterals Limited (CIN: 
L24231GJ1992PLC018237) (“the Company”) will be held on Tuesday, 
the 2nd  July, 2024 at 11:00 A.M. (IST) through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following 
business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited

a. Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for
the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, together with the Reports of
the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

b. Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial
year ended 31st March, 2024 together with the Report of the Auditors
thereon

2. To declare final dividend of ₹1/- (10%) per Ordinary (equity) Share of of
₹10/- each for the Financial Year 2023-24.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Hemang J Shah (DIN: 03024324),
who retires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act,
2013 and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

4. TO CONSIDER AND RATIFY THE REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO CMA
CHETAN GANDHI, COST ACCOUNTANTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDING MARCH 31, 2025.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an “ORDINARY RESOLUTION”:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 14
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other rules, if any,
made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the Company be and is
hereby ratify the remuneration of Rs. 75,000/- (Rupees Seventy Five
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Thousand only) plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses incurred 
in connection with the cost audit as approved by the Board of Directors of 
the Company, payable to M/s. Chetan Gandhi & Associates, Cost 
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 101341), Proprietor- Mr. Chetan Gandhi 
(Membership No. 22096) for conducting Cost Audit of the cost records 
maintained by the Company for manufacturing of pharmaceutical 
formulations for the financial year ending March 31, 2025.” 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors or the Company 
Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby severally authorised to do all 
such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, 
desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

5. TO APPROVE RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an “ORDINARY RESOLUTION”:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and other
applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), read with
Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014
and Regulation 23(4) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations”), including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force and the Company’s policy on Related Party
Transactions  and subject to such approvals, consents, sanctions and
permissions as may be necessary, and basis of approval and
recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the
Company,  approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to enter into contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) with
parties as detailed in the table(s) forming part of the Explanatory Statement
annexed to this notice as mutually agreed between related parties and the
Company, notwithstanding that such transactions may exceed 10% of the
Consolidated Turnover of the Company in any financial year or such other
threshold limits as may be specified under the Listing Regulation from time
to time, up to such extent maximum value of Related Party Transactions
with such parties in aggregate, does not exceed value as specified in the
explanatory statement to this resolution  and on such terms and conditions
as the Board of Directors may deem fit, in the normal course of business
and on arm’s length basis,;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company
(hereinafter referred to as “Board” which term shall be deemed to include the
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Audit Committee of the Company and any duly constituted/ to be 
constituted committee of Directors  thereof in exercise its powers including 
powers conferred in this resolution) be and is hereby authorised to do or 
cause to be done all such acts, matters, deeds and things and to settle any 
queries, difficulties that may arise with regard to any transaction with the 
related party and execute such agreements, documents and writings and to 
make such filings as may be necessary or desirable for the purpose of giving 
effect to this resolution, in the best interest of the Company.” 

6. TO INCREASE IN THRESHOLD LIMITS FOR GRANTING LOANS/
GUARANTEES, PROVIDING SECURITIES AND MAKING INVESTMENTS
IN SECURITIES UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as a “SPECIAL RESOLUTION”:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rules made there under (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and in
supersession of all the earlier resolutions passed in this regard, based on
the recommendation of the Board of Directors of the Company, the consent
of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of
Directors (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term shall include
any Committee constituted by the Board or any person(s) authorized by the
Board to exercise its powers, including the powers conferred by this
Resolution) to (a) give any loan to any person or other body corporate; (b)
give any guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any other
body corporate or person; and (c) acquire by way of subscription, purchase
or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate from time to time in
one or more tranches as the Board of Directors as in their absolute
discretion deem beneficial and in the interest of the Company, for an
amount not exceeding Rs. 150 Crores (Rupees One hundred and Fifty crores
Only), in aggregate, notwithstanding that such investments, outstanding
loans given or to be given and guarantees and/or security provided may
collectively exceed the limits prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 but in any case shall not exceed the limit as stated above.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this
resolution, the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to take from time to time all decisions and such steps as may be
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necessary for giving loans, guarantees or providing securities or for making 
such investments and to execute such documents, deeds, writings, papers 
and/or agreements as may be required and do all such acts, deeds, matters 
and things, as it may in its absolute discretion, deem fit; necessary or 
appropriate.” 

7. TO APPROVE ISSUANCE OF EQUITY SHARES ON PREFERENTIAL BASIS
FOR CONSIDERATION OTHER THAN CASH:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as “SPECIAL RESOLUTION”:

“RESOLVED THAT  pursuant to the provisions of Sections 23, 42, 62(1)(c) 
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”), the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, 
the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 and  other 
applicable rules and regulations made thereunder (including any 
amendments, statutory modification(s) and/or re-enactment thereof for the 
time being in force) and in accordance with the provisions of the Chapter V 
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (the “SEBI ICDR Regulations”), 
and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “SEBI Listing 
Regulations”), as amended from time to time ,the Memorandum and Articles 
of Association of the Company and any other rules / regulations/ 
guidelines, if any, prescribed by any other statutory regulatory authority; 
and subject to the approval(s), consent(s), permission(s) and/or sanction(s), 
if any, of the appropriate authorities, institutions or bodies as may be 
required, and subject to such conditions as may be prescribed by any of 
them while granting any such approval(s), consent(s), permission(s), and/or 
sanction(s), and as agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term shall be deemed to include 
any committee which the Board may have constituted or hereinafter 
constitute to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this 
resolution), consents which may be accepted by the Board of Directors of the 
Company (“Board”, which term shall include any committee which the Board 
may have constituted to exercise its powers including the powers conferred 
by this resolution); the consent of the shareholders of the company be and is 
hereby accorded to create, offer, issue allot 3,67,112 fully paid-up Equity 
shares of face value of INR. 10/- each at price of INR.1465/- (Indian Rupees 
One Thousand Four hundred and Sixty-Five only) which includes Face value 
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of INR. 10/- per shares along with premium of INR. 1455/- (Indian Rupees 
One thousand Four Hundred and Fifty-five only) aggregate 
amounting to INR 53,78,19,080/- based on price determined as per 
regulation 164 of SEBI ICDR Regulation for consideration other than 
cash (i.e. Swap of Equity shares), against purchase of shares of 
Varenyam Health care Pvt Ltd and Varenyam Biolifesicences pvt ltd 
Companies from the proposed allottees as stated in explanatory statement, 
on such terms and conditions as applicable to this proposed transaction 
(‘Preferential issue of Equity shares’) 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in terms of the provisions of Chapter V of the 
SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the “Relevant Date” for determining the floor 
price for the preferential issue of the Equity Shares is Friday, May 31st , 
2024, being the date 30 (thirty) days prior to the date of this 31st Annual 
General Meeting i.e. Tuesday, 2nd July, 2024 for the proposed Preferential 
Issue. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the offer, 
issue, allotment of the proposed Equity Shares, any Director, 
Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary be and are hereby 
severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as 
they may in their absolute discretion deem necessary and desirable for 
such purpose, including without limitation, preparing, signing, 
executing, and filing applications with the appropriate authorities 
for obtaining requisite approvals for the issuance of the Equity Shares, 
as may be required, issuing clarifications on the issue and allotment of the 
Equity Shares, resolving any difficulties, effecting any modifications, 
changes, variation, alterations, additions and/or deletions to the 
foregoing conditions as may be required by any regulator, or other 
authorities or agencies involved in or concerned with the issue of the 
Equity Shares and as the Board may in its absolute discretion deem fit 
and proper in the best interest of the Company without being required to 
seek any further consent or approval of the members or otherwise. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to 
the resolution, the Board be and is hereby authorized to engage 
depositories, registrars, bankers, and other consultants and advisors to 
the issue and to remunerate them by way of fees and/or other charges and 
also to enter into and execute all such arrangements, agreements, 
memoranda, documents, etc. with such agencies, as may be required and 
as permitted by law. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the 
resolution, the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate any or all of 
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the powers conferred upon it by this resolution to any committee of 
directors, any other director(s), and/or officer(s) of the Company. 

 
 
IMPORTANT NOTES: - 

 
1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its General Circular 

No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 read with General Circular No. 
14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 dated 
April 13, 2020, General Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 
2021, General Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, 
General Circular No. 2/2022 dated May 5, 2022, General Circular No. 
10/2022 dated December 28, 2022, General Circular No. 09/2023 
dated September 25, 2023 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) 
and Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) vide its Circular 
Nos. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020, 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 
2021,SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022 and 
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/ CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023 
(collectively referred to as “SEBI Circulars”), have permitted the 
holding of AGM through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio-
Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the physical presence of the Members 
at a common venue vide the above MCA circulars and provided 
relaxation to companies from dispatching physical copy of annual 
report vide above SEBI circulars. In compliance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), amended provisions of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing 
Regulations”), MCA Circulars and Secretarial Standard on General 
Meetings issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (‘SS-

 FOR AND ON BEHALF OF DIRECTORS 

 
 
Date: 10/06/2024 

 Sd/- 

Place: Vadodara  Mr. Bharat Desai 
  Chairman 
Registered office: 
BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
CIN:  L24231GJ1992PLC018237 
Add: Survey No. 144-A, Jarod-Samlaya Road, 
Vill. Haripura, Tal. Savli, Vadodara-391520, 
Gujarat, India 
Tel: +91 9909982332 
Website: www.bplindia.in 
E-mail: info@bplindia.in , cs@bplindia.in 
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2’), the AGM of the Company will be held through VC / OAVM. The 
venue of the meeting shall be deemed to be the Registered Office of the 
Company situated at Survey No. 144-A, Jarod-Samlaya Road, Vill. 
Haripura, Tal. Savli, Vadodara-391520, Gujarat, India. 
 

2. The relevant details, pursuant to Regulations 36(3) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by 
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Director 
seeking reappointment at this AGM is annexed. 

 
3. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
read with the Circulars issued by MCA and SEBI, the AGM of the 
Company shall be conducted through VC/OAVM. National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL) will be providing facility for remote e-voting, 
participation in the AGM through VC / OAVM and e-voting during the 
AGM. 
 

4. As the AGM shall be conducted through VC/ OAVM, physical 
attendance of the members has been dispended with. Accordingly, the 
facility for appointment of Proxy by the Members is not available and 
hence, Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and Route Map of the venue of the 
meeting are not annexed to this Notice. 
 

5. The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to the provisions Section 
102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) setting out material facts 
concerning the Special Business under Item Nos. 4 to 6 of the 
accompanying Notice, is annexed hereto. 
 

6. Shareholders attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be reckoned 
for the purpose of quorum for the AGM as per Section 103 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (Act). 

 

7. The Register of Members and Shares Transfer Books for the Equity 
shares of the Company shall remain closed from 26th June, 2024 to 
02nd July, 2024. 
 

8. As per SEBI Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated June 
8, 2018 and further amendment vide Notification No. SEBI/LAD-
NRO/GN/2018/49 dated November 30, 2018, requests for effecting 
transfer of securities (except in case of transmission or transposition of 
securities) shall not be processed from April 1, 2019 unless the 
securities are held in the dematerialized form with the depositories. 
With the said change coming into effect from April 1, 2019, Equity 
Shares of the Company shall be eligible for transfer only in 
Dematerialized form. Therefore, the Shareholders are requested to take 
action to dematerialize the Equity Shares of the Company, promptly. 
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9. Members holding shares in more than one folio in the same name(s) 

are requested to send the details of their folios along with the share 
certificates so as to enable the Company to consolidate their holdings 
into one folio. 

 
10. Members desirous of obtaining information / details about the 

accounts, are requested to write to the Company at least one week 
before the meeting, so that proper information can be made available 
at the time of meeting. The Members desirous of inspection of 
documents may write to the Company through E-mail and the same 
shall be sent to them electronically. 
 

11. As By virtue of Section 72 of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI circular 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/ CIR/2021/655 dated November 
3, 2021, securities holders holding shares in physical mode are 
required to comply with the requirements of registration/updation of 
valid Permanent Account Number (PAN) and Know Your Customer 
(KYC) details in form ISR – 1 and/or form ISR – 2 as the case maybe 
with the Registrar and Transfer Agents of (RTA) the Company, Adroit 
Corporate Services Private Limited. The facility for nomination is 
available for the members of the Company in respect of the shares 
held by them. Members who have not yet registered their nomination 
are requested to register the same by submitting the Form No. SH-13. 
If a Member desires to opt out or cancel the earlier nomination and 
record a fresh nomination, he/she may submit the same in Form No. 
ISR-3 or Form No. SH-14, as the case may be. Further the folios 
wherein any one of the document/ details are not available on or after 
April 1, 2023, shall be frozen by the RTA. Members are requested to 
submit the said details to Company’s (RTA). 

 
12. As per SEBI Directive, in case of failure to register the PAN and bank 

account details as aforesaid, any transaction in the securities of the 
Company shall be subject to enhanced due diligence by the Company/ 
RTA, as may be prescribed.  
 

13. The shareholders are hereby informed that all the correspondence in 
connection with the shares is addressed to the Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agent: - Adroit Corporate Services Private Limited situated at 
18-20, Jafferbhoy Industrial Estate, Makwana Rd, Marol Naka, 
Andheri East, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400059. 
 

14. Members are requested to send their queries, if any, at least seven 
days in advance of the meeting on Email id-cs@bplindia.in along with 
query. 
 

15. Corporate members intending to authorize their representatives to 
participate and vote at the meeting are requested to mail to 
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cs@bplindia.in, a scanned copy (PDF format) of the Board Resolution 
authorizing their representatives to attend and vote at the AGM. 

 
16. In compliance with MCA Circular No. MCA General Circular No. 

02/2022 Dated 05th May, 2022 and SEBI Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/ CIR/P/2021/79 dated May 12, 2021 and 
owing to the difficulties involved in dispatching of physical copies of 
the financial statements including Board’s Report, Auditor’s report or 
other documents required to be attached therewith (together referred 
to as Annual Report), the Annual Report for FY 2023-2024 and Notice 
of AGM are being sent in electronic mode to Members whose e-mail 
address is registered with the Company or the Depository 
Participant(s) and the same is available on the company and BSE 
website. 

  
 
 
 

17. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their 
name, postal address, email address, telephone/ mobile numbers, 
Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of 
attorney etc to their DPs in case the shares are held by them in 
electronic form and to the Company in case the shares are held by 
them in physical form. 

 
18. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise 

due diligence and notify the Company of any change in address or 
demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also advised 
not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic 
statement of holdings should be obtained from the Concerned 
Depository Participant and holdings should be verified. 

 
19. Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not registered 

/ updated their email addresses with the Company are requested to 
update their email addresses with the company by providing the Folio 
No., No. of shares held and details of Email ID to be registered to 
cs@bplindia.in. Members holding shares in dematerialized mode are 
requested to register / update their e-mail addresses with the relevant 
Depository Participant(s). 

 
20. To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered 

their email addresses are requested to register the same with their DPs 
in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and with the 
Company in case the shares are held by them in physical form. 

 
21. The Shareholders who have not registered their email ID with the 

Company can access the Annual Report on the website of the 
Company www.bplindia.in and website of the stock exchange i.e. BSE 
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Limited www.bseindia.com and the EGM/AGM Notice is also available 
on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting 
facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

22. Shareholder who would like to obtain pdf copy on their email ID may 
write an email to cs@bplindia.in. Pursuant to the Circulars mentioned 
above, the Company has not printed the Annual Reports and hence no 
hard copies of the Annual Report will be provided. 

 
23. Pursuant to Section 108 of Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as 
amended and Regulation 44 of SEBI LODR, 2015, the Company is 
pleased to provide the facility to members to exercise their right to vote 
on the resolutions proposed to be passed in the AGM by electronic 
means. The members whose names appear in the Register of 
Members/ List of Beneficial owners as on 25th day of June 2024 i.e. the 
cut-off date, are entitled to vote on the Resolutions set forth in this 
Notice. Members may cast their votes on electronic voting systems 
from any place other than the venue of the meeting (remote e-voting). 
The remote e-voting will commence at 9:00 a.m. on 28th June, 2024 
and will end at 5:00 p.m. on 1st July, 2024. In addition, the facility of 
voting through electronic voting system shall also be made available at 
the AGM and the members attending the AGM who have not cast their 
vote by remote e-voting shall be eligible to vote at the AGM. The 
Members desiring to vote through remote e-voting are requested to 
refer to the detailed procedure given hereinafter. 
 
The requirement to place the matter relating to appointment of 
statutory auditors for ratification by Members at every AGM has been 
done away by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 with effect from 
May 07, 2018. Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for 
ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors at the 31st AGM. 
 

24. The Company has fixed 25th day of June 2024 as the “record date” for 
determining the eligibility of Members to receive the dividend for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2024, if approved at the AGM. 
 

25. The dividend when sanctioned will be made payable on or before 1st 
August, 2024, electronically through various online transfer modes to 
those members who have updated their bank account details. For 
members who have not updated their bank account details, dividend 
warrants / demand drafts / cheques will be dispatched to their 
registered addresses. To avoid delay in receiving the dividend, 
members are requested to update their bank details by following the 
process mentioned at point no. 27 below. 
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26. In accordance with the prevailing provisions of the Income Tax Act, 
1961, the Company is required to deduct tax at source (TDS) at the 
prescribed rates on the dividend paid to its shareholders. The TDS rate 
would vary depending on the residential status of the shareholder and 
the documents submitted by them and accepted by the Company. 
Therefore, the members are requested to update their PAN and upload 
applicable documents to avoid deduction of tax at higher rate by 
complying with the process mentioned herein under. 

 

27. Members are requested to visit the website of Company’s Registrar & 
Share Transfer Agent, Adroit Corporate Services Private Limited 
(“ACSPL”) and provide the applicable documents such as Form 
15G/15H and other applicable documents at 
https://www.adroitcorporate.com/RandTServices.aspx in order to 
enable the Company to determine the appropriate TDS / withholding 
tax rate applicable. 

 

28. As per the provisions of Section 125 of the Act read with Investor 
Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer 
and Refund) Rules, 2016 as amended (“IEPF Rules, 2016”), the 
amount of dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 
seven years from the date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account, 
shall be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
(“IEPF”), a fund constituted by the Government of India under Section 
125 of the Act. Further, in accordance with the provisions of Section 
124(6) of the Act and IEPF Rules, 2016, shares on which dividend has 
not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more, are 
liable to be transferred to IEPF Account. 

 

29. All the work related to share registry in terms of both physical and 
electronic, are being conducted by Adroit Corporate Services Private 
Limited (“ACSPL”) at 17-20, Jafferbhoy Industrial Estate, Makhwana 
Rd, Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai-400059, Maharashtra, Tel: 022-
42270418, Email ID: info@adroitcorporate.com. The members are 
requested to send their communication to the aforesaid address. 
 
 

30. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING 
AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER: - 

 
The remote e-voting period begins at 9.00 am on 28th June, 2024 and 
will end at 5:00 p.m. on 01st July, 2024. The remote e-voting module 
shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose 
names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on 
the cut-off date i.e. 25th June, 2024 may cast their vote electronically. 
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The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in 
the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, 
being 25th June, 2024. 
 
Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would 
not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue. 
 
Please refer the EVENT NO. is 128797 
 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists 
of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 
 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility 
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders 
are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode is given below: 

Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on 
a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial 
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 
section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and 
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see 
e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access 
to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see 
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online 
for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
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https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing 
the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a 
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will 
open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit 
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to 
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting.  

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned 
below for seamless voting experience. 

 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login 
through their user id and password. Option will be made available 
to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL 
for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able 
to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register 
is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the 
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in 

NSDL Mobile App is available on 

II App Store ~ Google Play 
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the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be 
provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is 
in progress. 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their 
depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for 
e-Voting facility.  Once login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. 
Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 
wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on options available 
against company name or e-Voting service provider-NSDL and you 
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are 
advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at 
abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
for any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL 
and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  
and  1800 22 44 30  

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 
23058738 or 022-23058542-43  

 

B) Login Method for shareholders other than Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in 
physical mode. 

Steps to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website: 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
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3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

      Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can 
log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once 
you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on  e-
Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 
Manner of holding shares i.e. 
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or 
Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares 
in demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client 
ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares 
in demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 126232 then user ID is 
121808001*** 

 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are 

given below:  
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 

password to login and cast your vote. 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to 

retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you 
retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and 
the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, 

your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the 
email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open 
the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the 
.pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID 
for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The 
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.pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  
(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in 

process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered  

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or    
have forgotten your password: 

a.  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your 
demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b.  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c. If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can 
send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account 
number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d. Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting 
the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by 
selecting on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 
 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL 
e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL 
e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies 

“EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and 
General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period and casting your vote during the General 
Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” 
link placed under “Join General Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, 

verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote 
and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be 
displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the 
print option on the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to 
modify your vote. 
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General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are 
required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board 
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the 
duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the 
Scrutinizer by e-mail to csjigartrivedi@gmail.com with a copy marked to 
evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other 
person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to 
the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to 
key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through 
the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions 
(FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders 
available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll 
free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  or send a request to Mr. 
Sachin Kareliya at evoting@nsdl.co.in  

    Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered 
with the depositories for procuring user id and password and 
registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in 
this notice: 

 
1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of 

shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN 
(self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned 
copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cs@bplindia.in 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit 
DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of 
Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN 
card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to respective 
DP. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 
(A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 
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3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to 
evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password for e-voting by 
providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility 
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders 
are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their 
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
  
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE 
EGM/AGM ARE AS UNDER: - 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the 
instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the 
EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on 
the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred 
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the 
EGM/AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to 
attend the EGM/AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the 
EGM/AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances 
connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall 
be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM 
THROUGH 
VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through 
VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by 
following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting 
system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” 
placed under “Join General meeting” menu against company name. 
You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General 
Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be 
displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID 
and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password 
may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions 
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better 
experience. 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with 
a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

r 



                  BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED      ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 
 
 

19 | P a g e  
 
 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets 
or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience 
Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is 
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may 
send their questions in advance mentioning their name demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at cs@bplidnia.in. The 
same will be replied by the company suitably. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 FOR AND ON BEHALF OF DIRECTORS 

Date:  10/06/2024  Sd/- 

Place: Vadodara  Mr. Bharat Desai 
  Chairman 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

Item No. 4 
 
Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 
14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors at 
its Meeting held on May 22, 2024, based on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, had appointed CMA Chetan Gandhi, Cost Accountants (Registration 
No. 101311)  for conducting Cost Audit of the cost records maintained by the 
Company for manufacturing of pharmaceutical formulations for the financial 
year ending March 31, 2025, at a remuneration of Rs. 75,000/- (Rupees 
Seventy Five Thousand only) plus applicable taxes which is subject to 
ratification by the Members. The said remuneration as approved by the Board of 
Directors payable to CMA Chetan Gandhi, Cost Accountants requires to be 
ratified by the Members of the Company in accordance with the Provisions of 
the Section 148 of the Act.  
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their 
relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said 
Resolution. Accordingly, the Board recommends the Ordinary resolution for 
approval by the Members. 
 
 
Item No. 5 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Related 
Party Transactions as mentioned in clause (a) to (g) of the said section requires 
a Company to obtain approval of the Board of Directors and subsequently the 
Shareholders of the Company by way of ordinary resolution in case the value of 
the Related Party Transactions exceed the stipulated thresholds prescribed in 
Rule 15 of the said Rules if such transactions are other than in ordinary course 
of business and on arm’s length basis. 
 
Further, Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (“Listing 
Regulations”) also stipulates that all material related party transactions shall 
require prior approval of the shareholders through ordinary resolution and 
related party shall not vote in the said resolution. 
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Accordingly, the related party transactions as recommended and prior approved 
by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors at their 
respective meetings held on 22nd May, 2024 are hereby placed before the 
shareholders for their approval by way of ordinary resolution to enable the 
Company / Subsidiary Company to enter into the following Related Party 
Transactions in one or more tranches. The transactions under consideration, 
are proposed to be entered into by the Company / Subsidiary Company with 
the following related parties in the ordinary course of business and at arms’ 
length basis. 
 
Pursuant to Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 
2014 and SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/ CIR/P/2021/662, dated 
November 22, 2021, the particulars of transactions to be entered into by the 
Company with related parties are as under: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name Of The 
Related Party 

Name of 
the 
director or 
key 
managerial 
personnel 
who is 
related, if 
any 

Nature of 
relationship 
(including 
nature of 
interest, 
financial or 
otherwise) 

Aggregate 
maximum 
value of the 
contract/ 
arrangement/ 
transaction 
(Maximum  
Limits) (INR.) 

Nature and 
material 
terms of 
contract/ 
arrangement/ 
transaction 

1 Mr. Bharat 
Desai  

 Managing 
Director  

5 crores Remuneration 

2 Mr. Hemang 
J. Shah 

 Executive 
Director 

5 crores Remuneration 

3 Mr. Bhahim B 
Desai  

 Relatives of 
Director 

75 lakhs Remuneration 

4 Mrs. Nikita 
Desai  

 Relatives of 
Director 

45 lakhs Remuneration 

5 Mrs. Himaben 
b. Desai  

 Relatives of 
Director 

2 crores Remuneration 

6 Varenyam 
Healthcare 
Private 
Limited  

Relative of 
Mr Bharat 
R Desai 

Related Party  Sale - 80 Crores 

Purchase- 80 
crores 

Sale and 
Purchase 
Transaction 

7 Varenyam 
Healthcare 
Private 
Limited  

 Related Party 55 – Crores Unsecured 
Loan  

8 Innoxel 
Lifesciences 
private limited  

 Subsidiary 
company 

Unsecured or 
Secured Loan 
upto -75 
crores 

Equity 

Unsecured 
Loan 
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Investment – 
80 crores 

9 Varenyam 
Biolifesciences 
private limited  

 Subsidiary 
Company 

Loans - 55 
crores 

Equity 
Investment – 
60 crores 

Unsecured 
Loan 

 
Brief about the Related Party Transactions- 
  

a) As mentioned above significant transaction involving related parties within the Bharat 
Parenterals Ltd, specifically concerning the sales and purchase of goods between our 
subsidiary companies. As outlined in the ordinary course of business, Bharat 
Parenterals Ltd and its subsidiary, Innoxel Lifesiences Pvt Ltd, along with our wholly-
owned subsidiary company, Varenyam healthcare pvt ltd are set to engage in 
transactions involving the sales and purchase of goods. This transaction is in ordinary 
course of business aimed at facilitating the smooth functioning of our business 
operations and is conducted under fair market terms and conditions. The purpose of 
this transaction is to optimize operational efficiencies within our group of companies, 
enhance supply chain management and ultimately contribute to the overall growth and 
performance of Bharat Parenterals Ltd. The proposed 
contracts/arrangements/transactions relate to sale/purchase of goods/services or any 
other transaction(s), which shall be governed by the Company’s Related Party 
Transaction Policy and shall be reviewed by the Audit Committee within the overall 
limits approved by the members.  
 

b)  
Sr. 
No. 

Particulars For Unsecured Loan to Subsidiary and Wholly owned 
Subsidiary company 

 Name of the related 
party and its 
relationship with the 
listed entity or its 
subsidiary, including 
nature of its concern 
or interest (financial or 
otherwise) 

Innoxel Lifesceinces 
Pvt Ltd- Subsidiary 

Varenyam 
Biolifesciences 
Pvt Ltd- 
subsidiary 
Company 

Varenyam 
Healthcare Pvt 
Ltd- Related 
Party 

 Name of Director(s) or 
key Managerial 
Personnel who is 
related, if any 

Mr Bharat R. Desai 
being whole-time 
director at Innoxel 
lifesciences Pvt Ltd 

Mr Bharat R. 
Desai being 
director at 
Varenyam 
Biolifesciences 

Mr Bharat R. 
Desai relative 
(Spouse, Son 
and Daughter 
in liaw is 
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Pvt Ltd director in this 
company) at 
Varenyam 
Healthcare Pvt 
Ltd 

 Type, Tenure, Material  
terms and particulars 

Type- a) Unsecured 
Loan 
b) Tenure- 9 years 
for unsecured Loan 
  
Material Terms- At 
rate of Interest of 
7% (The interest 
rate shall be revised 
based on revision in 
Rate interest 
Government 
Securities as per 
provision of 
Companies Act, 
2013 with Approval 
of Audit Committee 
and Board)  

Type- a) 
Unsecured 
Loan 
b) Tenure- 9 
years for 
unsecured Loan 
  
Material Terms- 
At rate of 
Interest of 7% 
(The interest 
rate shall be 
revised based 
on revision in 
Rate interest 
Government 
Securities as 
per provision of 
Companies Act, 
2013 with 
Approval of 
Audit 
Committee and 
Board) 

Type- a) 
Unsecured 
Loan 
b) Tenure- 9 
years for 
unsecured Loan 
  
Material Terms- 
At rate of 
Interest of 7% 
(The interest 
rate shall be 
revised based 
on revision in 
Rate interest 
Government 
Securities as 
per provision of 
Companies Act, 
2013 with 
Approval of 
Audit 
Committee and 
Board) 

 Value of the 
Transaction 

75 crores 55 crores 55 crores 

 The percentage of the 
listed entity’s annual 
consolidated turnover, 
for the immediately 
preceding financial 
year, that is 
represented by the 
value of the proposed 
transaction 

28.20% 20.68% Exceeding 20% 
on approximate 
basis as 
consolidation 
turnover 
including VHPL 
turnover will be 
calculated for 
current 
financial year  

 Details of the Unsecured Loan Unsecured Unsecured 
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transaction relating to 
any loans, inter-
corporate deposits, 
advances or 
investments made or 
given by the listed 
entity or its subsidiary 

and advances Loan and 
advances 

Loan and 
advances 

 Any valuation or other 
external party report 
relied upon by the 
listed entity in relation 
to the transaction 

 
 

- 

 

 
 
 

- 

 
 
 

- 

 Any other information 
that may be relevant 

Unsecured loans and 
advances are 
instrumental in 
meeting the dynamic 
financial 
requirements of 
corporate entities, 
specifically tailored 
to address the 
exigencies of working 
capital management 
and strategic 
business endeavors. 
These funds are 
deployed with a dual 
purpose: firstly, to 
ensure the seamless 
fulfilment of day-to-
day operational 
needs; and secondly, 
to fuel strategic 
business planning 
and execution aimed 
at fostering 
development and 
expansion initiatives. 
l in meeting the 
dynamic financial 
requirements of 

Unsecured loans 
and advances are 
specifically 
allocated for the 
expansion and 
development of 
the 
manufacturing 
facility and for 
incur expenses 
before the 
company 
becomes 
operational. 

Unsecured loan 
and advances 
will be  utilize to 
drive growth 
through 
initiatives such 
as market 
expansion, 
product 
diversification, 
infrastructure 
enhancement, 
and strategic 
partnerships. 
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corporate entities, 
specifically tailored 
to address the 
exigencies of working 
capital management 
and strategic 
business endeavors. 
These funds are 
deployed with a dual 
purpose: firstly, to 
ensure the seamless 
fulfilment of day-to-
day operational 
needs; and secondly, 
to fuel strategic 
business planning 
and execution aimed 
at fostering 
development and 
expansion initiatives. 
atives. 
These funds are 
strategically will be  
utilize to drive 
growth through 
initiatives such as 
market expansion, 
product 
diversification, 
infrastructure 
enhancement, and 
strategic 
partnerships.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

c) Investment in Subsidiary Company 
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Sr. 
No. 

Particulars For Investment in Subsidiary Company 

1. 
 

Name of the related 
party and its 
relationship with the 
listed entity or its 
subsidiary, including 
nature of its concern or 
interest (financial or 
otherwise) 

Innoxel 
Lifesceinces Pvt 
Ltd- Subsidiary 

Varenyam 
Biolifesciences 
Pvt Ltd 
(‘VBPL’)- 
Wholly owned 
subsidiary 

Varenyam 
Healthcare Pvt 
Ltd (‘VHPL’)-
Wholly owned 
subsidiary 

2. Name of Director(s) or 
key Managerial 
Personnel who is 
related, if any 

Mr Bharat R. 
Desai being whole-
time director at 
Innoxel 
lifesciences Pvt 
Ltd 

Mr Bharat R. 
Desai being 
director at 
Varenyam 
Biolifesciences 
Pvt Ltd 

Mr Bharat R. 
Desai relative 
(Spouse, Son 
and Daughter 
in liaw is 
director in this 
company) at 
Varenyam 
Healthcare Pvt 
Ltd 

3. Type, Tenure, Material  
terms and particulars 

Acquisition of 
additional Equity 
stake  
 

Acquisition of 
100% Equity 
stake  
 

Acquisition of 
100% Equity 
stake  
 

4. Value of the Transaction INR. 64.90/- per 
share value 
(including INR 
10/- Face value 
per share and 
Premium INR. 
54.90/- per share) 
of Innoxel 
Lifesciences Pvt. 
Ltd. Aggregate 
amounting to INR. 
64,80,57,457/- to 
invested for 
additional Equity 
stake acquisition 

Swap of Equity 
shares of 
Bharat 
Parenterals Ltd 
of 12286 No. of 
shares allotted 
on Preferential 
basis for 
acquisition of 
remaining 40% 
Equity stake of 
VBPL   
 

Swap of Equity 
shares of 
Bharat 
Parenterals 
Ltd of 354826 
No. of shares 
allotted on 
Preferential 
basis  for 
acquisition of  
100% Equity 
stake of VHPL  

5. The percentage of the 
listed entity’s annual 

24.37% 0.68% - 
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consolidated turnover, 
for the immediately 
preceding financial year, 
that is represented by 
the value of the 
proposed transaction 

6. Details of the 
transaction relating to 
any loans, inter-
corporate deposits, 
advances or investments 
made or given by the 
listed entity or its 
subsidiary 

- - - 

7. Any valuation or other 
external party report 
relied upon by the listed 
entity in relation to the 
transaction 

Based on 
Valuation report of 
Independent 
Valuer CA Snehal 
Shah dated 04th 
June, 2024  

Based on 
Valuation 
report of 
Independent 
Valuer CA 
Snehal Shah  

Based on 
Valuation 
report of 
Independent 
Valuer CA 
Snehal Shah 

8. Any other information 
that may be relevant 

Post Acquisition 
Company will hold 
55.89% of Equity 
Stake in Innoxel 
Lifesceinces Pvt 
Ltd 

After the 
completion of 
acquisition the 
company will 
be Wholly 
owned 
subsidiary of 
the company 

After the 
completion of 
acquisition the 
company will be 
Wholly owned 
subsidiary of 
the company 

9. Any other information 
that may be relevant 

- - - 

 
The proposed contracts/arrangements/transactions relate to sale/purchase of 
goods/services or loan, investment  or any other transaction(s), which shall be 
governed by the Company’s Related Party Transaction Policy and shall be 
reviewed by the Audit Committee within the overall limits approved by the 
members. The Board of Directors or any Committee thereof would carefully 
evaluate the proposals providing and/or receiving of loans or guarantees or 
securities or making investments through deployment of funds out of internal 
resources/accruals and/or any other appropriate sources, from time to time, 
only for principal business activities of such entities. 
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The proposal outlined above will contribute to the principal business activities 
of your Company and is in the interest of the Company. Hence, the Audit 
Committee/Board recommends the resolution set out in the Item no. 5 of the 
notice for your approval as an ordinary resolution. None of the Related Parties 
shall vote in the resolution. 
 
Except Mr. Bharat R. Desai being Managing Director of the Company none of 
the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their respective relatives in 
any way, financially or otherwise, concerned or interested in the said resolution 
except to the extent of their shareholding in the Company, if any. 
 
Item No.6 
 
In order to make optimum use of funds available with the Company and also to 
achieve long term strategic and business objectives, the Board of Directors of 
the Company proposes to make use of the same by making investment in other 
bodies corporate or granting loans, giving guarantee or providing security to 
other persons or other bodies corporate as and when required. 
 
Members may note that pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“Act”), the Company can give loan or give guarantee or provide security in 
connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person and acquire 
securities of any other body corporate, in excess of 60% of its paid up share 
capital, free reserves and securities premium account or 100% of its free 
reserves and securities premium account, whichever is higher, with the 
approval of Members by special resolution passed at the general meeting. 
 
In view of the aforesaid, it is proposed to take approval under Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, by way of special resolution, up to a limit of Rs. 150 
Crores, as proposed in the Notice. The above proposal is in the interest of the 
Company and the Board recommends the Resolution as set out at Item No. 6 
for approval by the members of the Company as Special Resolution. 
 
Except Mr. Bharat R. Desai, None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel 
or their relatives are in any way concerned with or interested, financially or 
otherwise in the said resolution except to the extent of their shareholding in the 
Company, if any. 
 

Item No.7 
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1. TO APPROVE ISSUANCE OF EQUITY SHARES ON PREFERENTIAL BASIS 
FOR CONSIDERATION OTHER THAN CASH: 
 

In furtherance of the Company’s expansion plans, the Board of Directors of 
the Company (“Board”) at their meeting held on June 10th, 2024, have 
approved the acquisition of Varenyam Healthcare Pvt Ltd (‘VHPL’) and 
Varenyam Biolifesciences Pvt Ltd (‘VBPL’). The Board had also approved the 
execution of a Share Purchase agreement (“SPA”) between the Company  and 
execution of other necessary documents with regard to the Proposed 
Transaction, whereby the Company would acquire 100% of the share capital 
of VBPL & VHPL. 
 
Further, subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company and such 
other approvals as may be required, paid-up equity shares of face value of 
Rs.. 10 each at an issue price of 1465 per Equity Share (which includes a 
premium of Rs. 1055/- per shares as arrived pursuant to provisions of 
Regulation 164 of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulations, 2018 (the “SEBI ICDR Regulations”) for consideration other than 
cash i.e. Swap of Equity Shares by purchase of equity shares of 18,00,000 no 
of Equity shares of Varenyam Biolifesciences Pvt Ltd at INR. 10/- per share 
and 2,50,000 no of Equity shares of Varenyam Healthcare Pvt ltd at INR. 
2079.3 per shares, as a result, these companies will become wholly owned 
companies.  Pursuant to such aquation of shares, the company as will issue 
its own shares to the shareholders of such company as consideration. The list 
of proposed allottees are  
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Allottees Category  Consideration 
other than 
Cash (Swap of 
Shares) no of 
BPL shares to 
be proposed 
to be allotted 

 BHARATKUMAR RAMESHCHANDRA 
DESAI 

Equity 141 

 HIMABEN BHARATKUMAR DESAI Equity 1,80,890 

 BHAHIM BHARATKUMAR DESAI Equity 88,671 

 NIKITA BHAHIM DESAI Equity 85,124 

 VARENYAM HEALTHCARE PRIVATE Equity 12,286 
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LIMITED 

 

 

The Equity Shares, if any, allotted in the Offer shall rank pari-passu in all 
respects with the existing equity shares.  

 
Accordingly, the approval of the Shareholders is required in accordance with 
Sections 42 and 62 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules made thereunder read with Chapter V - Preferential Issue 
of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as amended.  
 
The consent of the members is being sought by way of a special resolution to 
issue Equity Shares to the Proposed Allottees in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act, SEBI ICDR Regulations, as amended, and any other 
applicable laws.  
 
Necessary information / disclosures in respect of the proposed Preferential 
Issue in terms of Act and rules made thereunder and Chapter V of the SEBI 
ICDR Regulations and other applicable laws are as provided herein below: 
 

Further details of the proposed offer are disclosed below: 
 
The following disclosures for the issue of equity shares on preferential basis 
are made in accordance with the provisions of Section 42 and 62 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of 
Securities) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) 
Rules, 2014: 
 
1. Particulars of the offer including date of passing of Board Resolution: 

 

The Board has pursuant to its resolution dated June 10th, 2024 accorded 
its approval for Consideration in kind for acquisition of 100% stake in 
VBPL & VHPL  by issue, offer and allot up to up to approximately 3,67,112 
(Three Lakhs Sixty-Seven Thousand One Hundred and Twelve) fully paid-
up Equity Shares of with a face value of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten only) each 
(“Equity Shares”) at a price of Rs. 1,465 (Rupees One Thousand and Three 
Hundred and Fifty-six) (including a premium of Rs. 1455/- (Rupees One 
Thousand Four Hundred and Fifty-five) per Equity Share. The Equity 
Shares, if any, allotted in the Offer shall rank in all respects pari-passu 
with the existing equity shares. 
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2. The objects of the issue:  
 

The object of issue of Equity Shares on a preferential basis are expansion 
of the business of the Company by acquiring 100 % stake of in the 
subsidiary companies namely VHPL and VBPL and convert them into 
Wholly owned Subsidiary of the Company.  
 

3. Maximum number of specified securities to be issued and offered and 
price or price band at/which the allotment is proposed/ kinds of 
securities offered and the price at which security is being offered; 
 

The Company proposes to offer, issue and allot in aggregate up to 
approximately 3,67,112 (Three Lakhs Sixty-Seven Thousand One Hundred 
and Twelve) fully paid-up Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) 
each (“Equity Shares”) at a price of Rs. 1,465 (Rupees One Thousand and 
Three Hundred and Fifty-six) (including a premium of Rs. 1455/- (Rupees 
One Thousand Four Hundred and Fifty-five) per Equity Share. 
 

4. The total number of shares to be issued: 
 

3,67,112 (Three Lakhs Sixty-Seven Thousand One Hundred and Twelve) 
fully paid-up Equity Shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten only) each. 
 

5. Basis or justification on which the price has been arrived at 
(including premium) at which the offer or invitation is being made, 
along with report of the registered valuer: 
 
Price arrived as per the valuation report issued by the registered valuer CA 
Snehal Shah including swap ration in compliance with Reg 165 of ICDR.  
. 
 

6. Amount which the company intends to raise by way of such 
Securities: 
 

By this issue, the Company is not raising any fund but will increase its 
Assets by acquiring 100% Equity Stake of two subsidiary companies 
namely VHPL & VBPL 
 

7. Name and address of valuer who performed valuation: 
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The Valuation is performed by the valuation of the Equity Shares has been carried 

out by CA Snehal Shah, Registered valuer having Reg. no IBBI/RV/06/2019/11772 a 

Registered Valuer having office at Vadodara. 

 

8. Identity of the natural persons who are the ultimate beneficial owners 
of the shares proposed to be allotted and/or who ultimately control 
the proposed allottees  
 
As mentioned in Annexure -A 
 

9. Relevant date with reference to which the price has been arrived at: 
 

Friday, May 31st 2024, being 30 days previous to the date of General 
Meeting. Wherever the reference of “Relevant Date”.  
 

 

10. The percentage of post preferential issue capital that may be held by 
the allottee(s) and change in control, if any, in the issuer consequent 
to the preferential issue] 
 

Category of Shareholding 
No. of 
Shares 

Nominal Value of 
Shares 

Percentage 

Promoters 45,33,482 4,53,34,820 65.78% 

Private Investor 7,04,781 70,47,810 10.23% 

Public 16,53,296 1,65,32,960 23.99% 

Total 68,91,559 6,89,15,590 100.00% 

 
Post issue, no change in control over the Company. 
 
** Please be informed that the number of shares allotted has been rounded 
down, and any excess amount received will be refunded. Total number of 
shares to be allotted has been changed due to rounding off. 
 

11. Material terms of raising such securities:  
 

Issue and Allotment of 3,67,112 (Three Lakhs Sixty-Seven Thousand One 
Hundred and Twelve) fully paid-up Equity Shares of with a face value of 
Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten only) each (“Equity Shares”) at a price of Rs. 1,465 
(Rupees One Thousand and Three Hundred and Fifty-six) (including a 
premium of Rs. 1455/- (Rupees One Thousand Four Hundred and Fifty-
five) per Equity Share, in lieu of acquiring the shares of 18,00,000 no of 
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Equity shares of Varenyam Biolifesciences Pvt Ltd and 2,50,000 no of 
Eqyuity shares of Varenyam Healthcare Pvt ltd companies and the said 
shares shall rank pari passu with the existing Equity Shares are offered 
on preferential basis to be done in one or one tranche, as may be 
applicable.  
 

12. Lock In Period 
 

The proposed allotment of equity shares shall be subject to lock-in as per 
the requirement of Chapter V of SEBI ICDR Regulations. 
 

13. Undertaking  
The Company hereby undertakes that: 
(i) It would re-compute the price of the securities specified above in 

terms of the provisions of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, where it is so 
required; 

(ii) If the amount payable, if any, on account of the re-computation of 
price is not paid within the time stipulated in SEBI (ICDR) 
Regulations the above shares shall continue to be locked-in till the 
time such amount is paid by the allottees. 

 

14. Disclosures specified in Schedule VI, if the issuer or any of its 
promoters or directors is a wilful defaulter or a fraudulent borrower. 
 

Not Applicable as the Company or any of its promoters or directors are not 
wilful defaulter or a fraudulent borrower. 
 

15. Proposed time schedule:  
 
Within 15 day (Fifteen) days from the date of passing of this special 
Resolution the company will issue and allot the shares to the proposed 
shareholders. . 
 

16. Contribution being made by the promoters or directors either as part 
of the offer or separately in furtherance of objects:  
 

No contribution is being made by the promoters or directors for issuance of the 

shares but the shares under reference are being issued in lieu of acquiring the 

shares of 18,00,000 no of Equity shares of Varenyam Biolifesciences Pvt Ltd and 

2,50,000 no of Eqyuity shares of Varenyam Healthcare Pvt ltd. 
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17. The current and proposed status of the allottee(s) post the 
preferential issues namely, promoter or non-promoter. 
 
The proposed allottees will be part of the promoter and promoter groups.  
 

Name of Proposed Allottees No of 
Shares 

Class or Classes 
of persons  

Bharatkumar Rameshchandra Desai 141 Promoter 
Himaben Bharatkumar Desai  1,80,890 Promoter 
Bhahim Bharatkumar Desai 88,671 Promoter 
Nikita Bhahim Desai  85,124 Relative of 

Promoter  
Varenyam Healthcare Private Limited 12,286 Related Party 
 Total 3,67,112  

  

 

18. The class or classes of persons to whom the allotment is proposed to 
be made: 
 

The List of proposed allottee and class and classes of persons as 
mentioned above at point no 13. 
 

19. Intention of promoters, directors or key managerial personnel or 
senior management to subscribe to the offer: 
 

The Equity Shares shall be offered to the Proposed Allottee who are 
Promoters and related part of the Company intends to subscribe to any of 
the Equity Shares proposed to be issued under the Preferential basis. The 
intention is to make the subsidiary Company  as Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary Company.  
 

20. The proposed time within which the allotment shall be completed: 
 

Within 15 days from the date of passing of this special Resolution.  
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21. The number of persons to whom allotment on preferential basis have 
already been made during the year, in terms of number of securities 
as well as price:  
The Company has allotted 704781 to Non promoter and Non QIB 68 investors 

which is under process of listing . The Allotment was approved in Board meeting 

of 5th June, 2024 and Shareholders approved in EoGM held on 21st May, 2024  

 

 

22. The justification for the allotment proposed to be made for 
consideration other than cash together with valuation report of the 
registered valuer:  
 

The issue of shares under reference, is pursuant to the valuation report including 

swap ration as identified by the Registered Valuer CA Snehal Shah, copy of 

Valuation Report is available for inspection and placed on company’s website at 

https://www.bplindia.in/index.html by acquiring the shares acquiring the 
shares of 18,00,000 no of Equity shares of Varenyam Biolifesciences Pvt 
Ltd and 2,50,000 no of Eqyuity shares of Varenyam Healthcare Pvt ltd, 

they become wholly owned companies and will help the management of grow 

business in all respect including asking advantage of its good will, intellectual 

rights, business strategy etc.  

 

23. The pre-issue and post issue shareholding pattern of the company:  
Shareholding after Preferential allotment 21st May, 
2024 

 

Category of 
Shareholding 

No. of Shares Nominal Value 
of Shares 

Percentage 

Promoters 42,63,780 4,26,37,800 65.35% 
Private Investor 7,04,781 70,47,810 10.80% 
Public 15,55,886 1,55,58,860 23.85% 
Total 65,24,447 6,52,44,470 100.00% 

    
Shareholding after proposed transaction Preferential 
allotment 

 

Category of 
Shareholding 

No. of Shares Nominal Value 
of Shares 

Percentage 

Promoters 45,33,482 4,53,34,820 65.78% 
Private Investor 7,04,781 70,47,810 10.23% 
Public 16,53,296 1,65,32,960 23.99% 
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Total 68,91,559 6,89,15,590 100.00% 

 

24. Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary: 
 

The Certificate issued by M/s. TNT & Associates, Practicing Company 
Secretaries, certifying that the preferential issue is being made in 
accordance with the requirements contained in the SEBI ICDR Regulations 
and the same will be made available for inspection by the members during 
the Meeting and will also be made available on the Company’s website and 
will be accessible at link: www.bplindia.in. 
 
As required by Section 102(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the documents 
with regard to the preferential issue shall be available for inspection at the 
Registered Office of the Company during business hours from 9:00 A.M. to 
6:00 P.M. (IST) 
 

25. Principle terms of assets charged as securities:  

 

Not Applicable 
 

The Board of Directors accordingly recommends the resolution for your 
approval as Special Resolution. 

 
Except Mr. Bharat R. Desai, None of the Directors or Key Managerial 
Personnel or their relatives are in any way concerned with or interested, 
financially or otherwise in the said resolution except to the extent of their 
shareholding in the Company, if any. 
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ANNEXURE-1 TO THE NOTICE 
 

Details of Directors seeking variation in remuneration/appointment/re-
appointment at the forthcoming thirty first Annual General Meeting {in 
pursuance of Regulation 36 (3) of the Listing Regulations, 2015 and 
Secretarial Standard on General Meeting. 
 
 

Name of the Director Hemang J. Shah 
DIN 03024324 
Nationality Indian 
Date of Joining Board 08/07/2010 
Brief Resume/Nature of 
Expertise and Experience 

Mr. Hemang Shah is Bachelor of 
Commerce and also holds degree of MSW. 
He is associated with the Company from 
more than last ten years and has played a 
pivotal role in the growth and development 
of the Company. 

Age 53 years 
Qualifications B. Com and MSW degree 
Experience 30 years 
Disclosure of Inter-se 
relationship between directors 

None 

Name of Listed entities in which 
person also holds directorship or 
membership of committee 

None other than Bharat Parenterals Ltd 

No. of Board Meeting attended 
during the year 

11 Board Meeting in FY 2023-24 

Remuneration last drawn Rs. 22,54,000/- p.a. 
Remuneration sought to be paid Rs. 25,00,000/- p.a. 
No. of shares held 18350 Equity Shares 
Terms and Conditions of 
Appointment /Re-appointment. 

Re-appointment in terms of Section 152(6) 
of the Companies Act,2013 

Listed Entities from which he 
has resigned as Director in past 
3 years 

NA 
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Annexure -A 
Sr	
.No.	

Name	of	the	
Proposed	
Allottee	

Category	
(Promoter/	
Non	‐	
Promoter)	

Permanent	
Account	Number	
(PAN)	

If	allottee	is	not	a	
natural	person,	
identity	of	the	
natural	person	who	
are	the	ultimate	
beneficial	owner	of	
the	shares	proposed	
to	be	issued,	if	
applicable	

Permanent	
Account	
Number	(PAN)	
of	the	beneficial	
owners	of	
proposed	
allottee	

No.	of	securities	
to	be	allotted	

Post	
issue	%	
of	
capital	
that	
allottee	
will	hold	

1 BHARATKUMAR 
RAMESHCHAND
RA DESAI 

Promoter ABWPD8288Q 

Individual 

- 141 

0.00% 

2 HIMABEN 
BHARATKUMAR 
DESAI 

Promoter ACUPD6891J 

Individual 

- 180890 

2.62% 

3 BHAHIM 
BHARATKUMAR 
DESAI 

Promoter BACPD4375E 

Individual 

- 88671 

1.29% 

4 NIKITA BHAHIM 
DESAI 

Related to  
Promoter 

FRWPS8149J 
Individual 

- 85124 
1.24% 

5 VARENYAM 
HEALTHCARE 
PRIVATE 
LIMITED 

Related Party 

AAFCV5417L 

Shareholder of the 
company- 

a. Bharat Desai 

b. Hima Desai 

c. Nikita Desai 

d. Bhahim Desai 

As mentioned 
here 

12286 0.18% 
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BOARD’S REPORT 

TO,  
THE MEMBERS, 
BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED, 
VADODARA 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 31st Annual Report of the Company 
together with the Audited Annual Financial Statements (Standalone and Consolidated) 
showing the financial position of the Company prepared in compliance with Ind AS 
accounting standards, for the Financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:
The Company’s financial performance for the year under review along with previous year’s
figures is given here under:

(Rs.in lakhs) 

PARTICULARS 

STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED

FOR THE 
YEAR 

ENDED ON 
31.03.2024 

FOR THE 
YEAR 

ENDED ON 
31.03.2023 

FOR THE 
YEAR 

ENDED ON 
31.03.2024 

FOR THE 
YEAR 

ENDED ON 
31.03.2023 

Net Income from Business 
Operations 

25416 21798.15 25736 21798.15 

Other Income 1196 1883.84 859 1173.91

Total Income 26611 23681.98 26595 22972.06 

Profit / (loss) before 
Depreciation 

3720 3801.73 2774 2942.95

Less Depreciation 640 584.80 902 588.24 

Profit after depreciation  3080 3216.93 1872 2354.71 

Less Tax Expenses: 821 783.24 821 792.24 

Net Profit after Tax 2259 2433.69 1051 1575.47 

Earning per equity shares 
(EPS) 

38.81 42.14 24.94 28.40

2. DIVIDEND:
The Board has recommended payment of final dividend of Rs. 1.00 (Rupees One Only)
per Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each (fully paid-up) for the financial year ended March 31,
2024. The Dividend amount is payable after declaration by the Shareholders at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM).

3. RESERVES
There is no amount proposed to be transferred to the reserves in consideration of the
implementation of expansion and strategic planning.
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4. CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL
SHARES:

During the year under review, the Paid-up Equity Share capital of the company as on
April 1st, 2023 was INR. 5,77,46,660.  However, the Company has allotted 45,000 Equity
shares under ESOP scheme which result into increase in paid up share capital as on
March 31st, 2024 to INR. 5,81,96,660.

During the year under review, no changes occurred in the Authorized Share capital. The
company has not issued shares with differential voting rights sweat equity during the
year.

a) BUY BACK OF SECURITIES
The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.

b) SWEAT EQUITY
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

c) BONUS SHARES
No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review.

d) EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN
The company during the year had granted Employee Stock Option of 45,000 Equity
shares allotted to the employees of the company on 12th September, 2023.

5. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND:
The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 apply as a dividend was
declared for the first-time last year by the company. The amount is currently held in the
Unclaimed and Unpaid Dividend Account. Once the figure remains unclaimed for seven
years, the said fund will be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
(IEPF) account after completion of due procedure.

6. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND OPERATION’S REVIEW:
During the year under review, the company generated Gross Income of INR. 26,611
lakhs, earned Gross Profit of INR. 3,080 lakhs and Net Profit of INR. 2,259 lakhs as
against Gross Income of Rs. 23,682 lakhs, earned Gross Profit of Rs. 3,217 lakhs and
Net Profit of Rs. 2,434 lakhs of previous year.

7. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:
During the Year under review, the turnover of the company has been increased by
15.20% and EBITDA to Revenue from operations percentage for Financial Year ended
on 31st March, 2024 is 15.89%.

8. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED FROM THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR TILL THE DATE OF THE REPORT:
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There are no Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position 
of the Company which have occurred from the end of the financial year till the date of 
the Report. 

9. MANAGEMENT BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
The constitution of the Board of Directors of the Company is in compliance with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereto and the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. In accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company and pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable rules made thereof, Mr. Hemang J. Shah,
Executive Director of the Company retire by rotation at the ensuing 31st Annual General
Meeting and being eligible have offered himself for re-appointment.

Details of the proposal for re-appointment of Mr. Hemang J. Shah along with his brief
resume is mentioned in the Explanatory Statement under Section 102 of the Act and
disclosure under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations as annexed to the Notice of
the 31st Annual General Meeting. The Board recommends re-appointment / appointment
of the above Director.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (“KMP”)
As on 31 March 2024, the following persons are Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company pursuant to Section 2(51) read with Section 203 of the Act, read with the
Rules framed thereunder:-

SR.NO NAME OF DIRECTOR/KMP DESIGNATION DATE OF 
APPOINTMENT 

1 Bharatkumar Rameshchandra 
Desai 

Managing 
Director 

30/09/2014 

2 Hemang Jayendrabhai Shah Executive  
Director 

08/07/2010 

3 Jignesh Nitinchandra Shah CFO 14/08/2018

4 Krutika Bhattbhatt CS 02/10/2023

10. CHANGE IN DIRECTORS / KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL DURING THE YEAR:
During the year under review, the Company Secretary of the company has been changed
as Mr. Shyam Singh Rajpurohit resigned from the post on 02/10/2023, and Ms. Krutika
Bhattbhatt has been appointed in place of him as Company Secretary with effect from
02/10/2023.

11. ANNUAL RETURN:
Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act 2013 and
rules made thereunder, the Annual Return of the Company as on March 31, 2023 in
Form MGT-7 and for Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2024 is available on the
Company’s website at www.bplindia.in

12. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
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The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, Foreign 
exchange Earnings and outgo as required under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are applicable 
to the company and annexed as Annexure – 1 which forms part of this Annual Report. 

13. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY:
The Company has adequate internal financial control system including suitable
monitoring procedures commensurate with the size and nature of business. The
internal control system provides all documented policies, guidelines, and authorization
and approval procedure. The company has internal auditors which carries out extensive
audits throughout the year and across all functional areas and submits its report to the
Audit Committee of the Board of Director. The statutory auditors while conducting the
statutory audit reviewed and evaluated the internal controls and their observations are
discussed by the audit committee of the board.

14. STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY:
The Company is not required to constitute risk management committee as provided in
the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

However, the Company has in place an internal Risk Management Policy to monitor the
risk plans of the Company and ensure its effectiveness. The Audit Committee and the
Board of Directors has additional oversight in the area of financial risks.

15. DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS
`CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) INITIATIVES:
The CSR Committee constituted by the Board of Directors in terms of the provisions of
Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) reviews and restates the Company’s
CSR Policy in order to make it more comprehensive and aligned in line with the activities
specified in Schedule VII of the Act. The Company constantly strive to positively impact
the health of people throughout the country. In India, we have strived to serve our
community by setting the standard for quality, safety and value in the discovery,
development, manufacture and delivery of medicines. Your Company through its
Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Policy encourages stronger commitment from the
organization and employees towards the society to address the healthcare challenges of
the country. The Policy applies to all CSR programs/projects of the Company and has
been prepared keeping own core competence and priorities in mind. The policy also aims
to align your Company’s CSR interventions with the healthcare priorities of the
Government of India and other stakeholders working with similar mandates. In doing so,
it would be the endeavor of your Company to synergize it’s CSR initiatives undertaken by
various functions/divisions within one unified strategic umbrella.

The CSR Committee acts in an advisory capacity to the Board and Management with
respect to policies and strategies that affect your Company’s role as a socially responsible
organization. The CSR Committee ensures that the implementation, monitoring and
impact assessment of the projects is in compliance with the CSR Objectives and Policy of
your Company. The details of CSR expenditures made during the year are provided in
Annexure – 2 to this report.
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The Company as per Section 135(4) has adopted the CSR Policy and placed it on the 
Company’s website:  www.bplindia.in 

Composition of CSR Committee is given in the Corporate Governance Report hence not 
reproduced here for the sake of brevity. 

16. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER
SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:
During the year under review, the company has provided loans, Guarantees or
investments in compliance with the provision of section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013. The details relating to loans, Investments or Guarantees made by the company
are disclosed by the auditor in the Notes to financial results of the Company.

17. COST AUDIT COMPLIANCE REPORT:
For the year under review, specified operations of your Company were covered under
the Companies (Cost Accounting Records) Rules, 2014 for maintenance of cost records.
Accordingly, as per provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 such accounts
and records are made and maintained.

The Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of made by the Audit
Committee, has appointed CMA Chetan Gandhi, Cost Accountant, who are in whole
Time Practice as Cost Accountant, having Registration No. 102341 as Cost Auditor of
the Company to carry out cost audit of Cost record of the Company for the FY 2024-25
on a remuneration not exceeding of Rs.75,000/-.

A resolution seeking members’ ratification of remuneration payable to M/s. CMA
Chetan Gandhi, Cost Accountants, Cost Auditor is included at item No. 04 of the Notice
convening the AGM and Board recommends the said Resolution.

18. COMPANY’S POLICY ON NOMINATION AND REMUNERATOIN OF DIRECTORS
APPOINTMENT AND PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION:
The Company has constituted nomination and remuneration committee and adopted
revised Policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial
remuneration, KMP and other employees, Directors’ qualifications, positive attributes,
independence of Directors, and other related matters as provided under Section 178(3)
of the Companies Act, 2013 as specified in Corporate Governance Report which forms
part of this report.

A copy of the policy is uploaded on the Company’s website at
https://www.bplindia.in/policies.html

We confirm that the remuneration paid to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, and
Senior Management Personnel complies with the Company's policy. This policy has been
revised and recommended by the board for shareholder approval to update it in
accordance with market research.

The statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197 of Companies Act,
2013 and Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is mentioned in Annexure 6.
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None of the Executive Directors of the Company were in receipt of any commission from 
the Company or any remuneration from the subsidiaries of the Company. 

19. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW:

Total 11 (Eleven) Board Meetings were held during the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2024.

The details of the Board and Committee Meetings held and attendance of each of the
directors thereat have been set out in the report on corporate governance attached at
Annexure 6.

20. DIRECTOR RESPOSNSIBILITY STATEMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION
134(3)(c) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, in relation to
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2024, the Board
of Directors to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

 In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31st,
2024 the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures, if any.

 The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit of the Company for that period.

 The directors had taken proper and sufficient care towards the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities.

 The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.
 The directors have laid down internal financial controls, which are adequate and

are operating effectively.
 The directors have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provision

of all applicable laws and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

21. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S):

The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Directors
under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he meets the criteria of
independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
16(b) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. In accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, none of the Independent Directors are liable to retire by rotation.

According to Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014, as amended, the names of all the Independent Directors of the Company
have been included in the data bank maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate
Affairs.  The Independent director on meeting was scheduled on 20th March, 2024 to
undertake review and performance of all the directors of the company and
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Familiarization Programme was scheduled on 20th May, 2023 at being of the Financial 
year.   

22. BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEE EVALUATION:
The Board of Directors has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own
performance, Committees of the Board and Individual Directors pursuant to the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the SEBI Listing (Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The performance of Board was evaluated after seeking inputs from all Directors on basis
such as Knowledge and Skills, Professional Conduct, Duties, Role & Function,
Effectiveness, etc. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee further evaluated
performance of individual directors on criteria such as preparedness on the agenda to be
discussed, contribution to the discussion, etc. In a separate meeting of Independent
Director, the performance of non-independent directors and the board as a whole was
evaluated. Further Board opined that the Independent Directors of company appointed
during the year has requisite integrity, expertise and experience (including the
proficiency).

23. SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATE COMPANY AND JOINT VENTURE:
During the year under review, the company has following subsidiaries:
1. Innoxel Lifescineces Private Limited- Subsidiary incorporated on 16th October, 2020

which is also Material Subsidiary of the company
2. Varenyam Biolifesciences Private Limited incorporated on 28th June, 2022.

The information, pursuant to first proviso to Section 129(3) and rule 5 of Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, relating to the financial statement of subsidiary/associate 
company / joint ventures forms part of this report in the prescribed format AOC-1 and is 
given by way of “Annexure- 3”. 

Further, pursuant to provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the financial statements, 
including Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company along with relevant 
documents and separate audited accounts in respect of Subsidiaries and Associate, are 
available on the website of the Company at www.bplindia.in 

24. DEPOSIT:
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits within the meaning of
Section 73 and 74 of the Act read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014 during the year under review and hence there were no outstanding deposits and no
amount remaining unclaimed with the Company as on March 31, 2024.

DETAILS OF LOANS AVAILED FROM DIRECTORS OR THEIR RELATIVES:

As required under Clause (viii) of Rule 2 of Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014, during the year under review, no loans have been availed by the Company from its
Directors and/or from their relatives.
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25. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR RELATED ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH
RELATED PARTEIS:

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year 2023-24
were on an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business and in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued
thereunder and as per Listing Regulations.

All Related Party Transactions with related parties were reviewed and approved by the
Audit Committee and the Board. Policy on Transactions with Related Parties as approved
by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website. Further the approvals have been
taken from the shareholders for material related party transactions.

Pursuant to Regulation 23(9) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the disclosure of
Related Party Transactions, in the format specified in the accounting standards for the
half year ended 30th September, 2023 and 31st March, 2024 has been uploaded on the
Exchange and the website of the company.

The Related Party Transactions, wherever necessary are carried out by company as per
this policy. During the year the policy has not been changed and uploaded on the
Company’s website.

26. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:

The provisions of Secretarial Audit and appointment of Secretarial Auditor as required
under section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 9(1) of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration) Rules, 2014 are applicable to the Company pursuant
to which the Company has appointed M/s Jigar Trivedi & Co., Company Secretaries ICSI
Membership No. 46488 and COP No. 18483 as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company to
undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-24. The
Secretarial Audit report of the company as on 31.03.2024 is annexed herewith as
Annexure-4. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation,
disclaimer or adverse remarks.

27. STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. CNK & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 101961W),
Vadodara, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for
Second term of 5 years starting w.e.f. 2021-22 so as to hold office up to the 34th Annual
General Meeting of the Company, in terms of the provisions of Section 139 of the
Companies Act, 2013

The Auditor’s Report for Financial Year 2023-24 is enclosed with the Financial
Statements in this Annual Report and there are no qualifications, reservations, adverse
remarks, or disclaimers made by the statutory auditor in their Audit Report.

28. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS
The Company is maintaining cost records as specified by Central Government under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.
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29. EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR
ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE
PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS:
No qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks were made by the Statutory Auditor
and the Secretarial Auditor in their respective reports.

30. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS IF ANY:
There was no change in the nature of business of the company or in the nature of
business carried by the Company during the year under review.

31. WHISTLE BLOWER / VIGIL MECHANISM:
Your Company has established a Whistle Blower/ Vigil Mechanism through which its
Directors, Employees and Stakeholders can report their genuine concerns about
unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of
conduct or ethics policy. It is affirmed that no employee has been denied access to the
Audit Committee of the Company pursuant to this policy.

The details of the whistle blower policy are provided in the report on Corporate
Governance forming part of this report as well as its weblink are contained in the
Corporate Governance Report and website of the Company www.bplindia.in.

32. AUDIT COMMITTEE:
The Company has an Audit Committee pursuant to the requirements of the Act read
with the rules framed thereunder and Listing Regulations.

The details pertaining to composition of Audit Committee are included in the Corporate
Governance Report, which forms part of this report.

During the year under review, the Board has accepted all recommendations of the Audit
Committee and accordingly, no disclosure is required to be made in respect of non-
acceptance of any recommendation of the Audit Committee by the Board.

33. DISCLOSURE FOR OBSERVATION OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the
Central Government under section 118 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013.

34. ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT:
The Company has undertaken an audit for the financial year 2023-24 for all applicable
compliances as per SEBI Regulations and Circulars/Guidelines issued thereunder. The
Annual Secretarial Compliance Report has been submitted to the stock exchanges
within 60 days from the end of the financial year under review.

35. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS:
During the year no significant material order has been passed by the Regulators or
Tribunals or Courts which would impact the going concern status of the Company and
its future operations.



  BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
 ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 

10 | P a g e

36. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION:
The information required pursuant to Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(1) of The
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in
respect of employees of the Company, forms part of this report as Annexure-5.

37. POLICY ON PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL
HARASSMENT AT WORK PLACE:

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at work place and has adopted a
policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at the work place
in line with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder. The Company has complied with the
provisions relating to constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the said Act.
The policy aims to provide protection to the employees at the work place and prevent and
redress complaints of sexual harassment.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed of
during the year:

 No. of complaints received: Nil
 No. of complaints disposed of: Nil
 No. of complaints received: Nil

38. CODE OF CONDUCT
Your Company has laid down a Code of Conduct (“Code”) for all the Board Members and
Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The Code is available on the website of
the Company i.e., https://www.bplindia.in/policies.html All Directors and Senior
Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Company’s
Code of Conduct for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

39. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
Your Company continue to imbibe and emulate the best corporate governance practices
aimed at building trust among all stakeholders - shareholders, employees, customers,
suppliers and others. Your Company believes that fairness, transparency, responsibility
and accountability are the four key elements of corporate governance. In compliance
with Regulations 17 to 22 and Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, a separate
report on Corporate Governance presented in a separate section forms an integral part
of this Annual Report as Annexure-6.

40. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING AND CODE OF CONDUCT FOR FAIR
DISCLOSURE:

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting
trading by Insiders in securities of the company. The code requires pre-clearance for
dealing in the company’s securities and prohibits the purchase or sale of securities of
the company by the directors and the Directors while in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information in relation to the company and during the period when the trading
window is closed. The company has also adopted a Code of Practices and Procedures
for Fair Disclosure and Conduct of Unpublished price Sensitive information to formulate
a stated framework and policy for prompt and fair disclosure of events and occurrences
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that could impact price discovery in the market for securities of the company. The policy 
is available on website of the Company. 

41. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT:

The Business Responsibility Report under regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to Company for the year
under review ended 31st March, 2024. Therefore, there is no requirement to submit a
separate report by the company.

42. DETAILS OF FRAUDS: -
The Auditors have not reported any instances of frauds committed in your Company by
its officers or employees, to the Audit Committee under Section 143(12) of the Act details
of which needs to be mentioned in this Report.

43. PROCEEDINGS PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE:
No application is made and no such proceedings or appeals pending under Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year and at the end of the financial
year.

44. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT
THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING
LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE
REASONS THEREOF: -

No such instance of One-time settlement or valuation was done while taking or
discharging loan from the Banks/ Financial institutions occurred during the year.

45. LISTING: -
The Equity shares of the Company continue to remain listed on BSE Limited and. The
annual listing fees for the F.Y. 2024-25 has been paid to the Stock Exchange.

46. ACKNOWLEDGMENT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
We thank our customers, vendors, dealers, investors, business partners and bankers for
their continued support during the year which made the Company grow successfully. We
also place on record our appreciation of the contribution made by our employees at all
levels. Our consistent growth was made possible by their hard work, solidarity,
cooperation and support.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF DIRECTORS 

Date: 10/06/2024 Sd/- 
Place: Vadodara Mr. Bharat Desai 

Chairman
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ANNEXURE - 1 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: (Particulars pursuant 
to the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 
We continue to strengthen our energy conservation efforts. Inter alia the following steps 
have been taken to reduce energy consumption: 

 Use of energy efficient devices/motors for running of machineries.
 Standardization of utility pipelines leading to optimum utilization.
 Efforts have been initiated to improve overall equipment efficiency.

The process is ongoing and the Engineering team is working on various measures to 
conserve this scarce resource. 

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT: 
The Company has on-going basis takes steps to enhance its technical expertise for 
pharmaceutical formulations. The Company puts emphasis on innovation in its 
operations. 
The Company’s R & D department is making constant efforts in absorbing and updating 
themselves with the technological advancements in the product portfolio of the 
Company. 
We continue to focus on product and process improvement and collaborate with 
product vendors to co-create business solutions on customer specific themes.  

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 
Your Company has not taken new technology for absorption and hence it has neither 
imported any technology. The company did not incur any costs for gaining access to this 
expertise and this has resulted in availability of an entirely new product/market for the 
company to explore. 

The Company continued its initiatives during the year, to upgrade technology and quality 
at its plants. As pioneers in the country, your Company invests in best in class technology 
and has lined up an accelerated investment plan to retain its technology leadership 
position. Our Research and Development capabilities, including test equipment’s and 
design software are being improved in line with modern practices. 

   FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO:  [Figures in 
Rs. Lakhs] 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO 

2023-24 2022-23

Foreign Exchange earnings (USD) 190.79 5265.14
Foreign Exchange earnings (EURO) 9767.50 - 
Foreign Exchange outgo (USD) 16.87 177.18
Foreign Exchange outgo (EURO) - - 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF DIRECTORS 

Date: 10/06/2024 Sd/- 
Place: Vadodara Mr. Bharat Desai 

Chairman
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ANNEXURE – 2 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES 

1. A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy of the company:
At Bharat Parenterals Limited, we constantly strive to positively impact the health of
people throughout the country. From past several years, we have strived to serve our
community by setting the standard for quality, safety and value in the discovery,
development, manufacture and delivery of medicines. Your Company through its
Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Policy encourages stronger commitment from
the organization and employees towards the society to address the healthcare
challenges of the country. The Policy applies to all CSR programs/projects of the
Company and has been prepared keeping Company’s own core competence and
priorities in mind. The CSR Committee acts in an advisory capacity to the Board and
Management with respect to policies and strategies that affect your Company’s role as
a socially responsible organization. The CSR Committee ensures that the
implementation, monitoring and impact assessment of the projects is in compliance
with the CSR Objectives and Policy of your Company.

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:
Name of Member Category No. of 

meeting 
held 

No. of 
Meeting 
Attended 

Mr. Bharat Desai Chairman- 
Managing 
Director 

2 2

Mr. Hemang Shah Member- 
Executive 
Director 

2  2  

Mr. Shailesh Gabhawala Member-
Independent 
Director 

2  2  

Mrs. Zankhana Sheth Member-
Independent 
Director 

2  2  

1. Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR
Projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

a. CSR Committee Composition: https://www.bplindia.in/composition.html
b. CSR Projects details: https://www.bplindia.in/csr.html
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2. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR
Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable. :- Not
Applicable

3. 
(a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135.

Average net profit of the company for last three financial years is: INR. 
26,92,34,062/- 

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of
section 135. :- INR 53,84,681/-

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years. :- NA

(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any. :- Nil

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]. :- 53,84,681/-

4. 
(a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing

Project). :-INR. 56,60,069/-

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads. :- Nil

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable. :- Nil

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]. :- INR. 56,60,069/-

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total 
Amount 

Spent for 
the 

Financial 
Year. 

(in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 
Total Amount transferred 

to 
Unspent CSR Account as 

per subsection (6) of 
section 135. 

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 
second proviso to sub-section (5) of 

section 135. 

Amount. Date of 
Transfer. 

Name of 
the Fund 

Amount. Date of 
Transfer. 

56,60,069 - - - - -

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:

Sl. No. Particular Amount 
(in Rs.) 

(1) (2) (3)

YEAR 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 

NET PROFIT 26,21,26,831 27,98,34,357 26,57,40,999 
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(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-
section (5) of section 135 

53,84,681 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 56,60,069 
(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] 2,75,388 
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 

activities of the previous Financial Years, if any 
Nil 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years 
[(iii)-(iv)] 

2,75,388 

5. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three
Financial Years:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
Sl. 
No. 

Preceding 
Financial 

Year(s) 

Amount 
transferred 

to 
Unspent 

CSR 
Account 
under 

subsection 
(6) of

section 
135 

(in Rs.) 

Balance 
Amount in 
Unspent 

CSR 
Account 
under 

subsection 
(6) of

section 
135 

(in Rs.) 

Amount 
Spent in 

the 
Financial 
Year (in 

Rs) 

Amount 
transferred to a 

Fund as specified 
under 

Schedule VII as 
per 

second proviso to 
subsection 

(5) of section 135,
if any 

Amount 
remaining 

to be 
spent in 

succeeding 
Financial 

Years 
(in Rs) 

Deficie 
ncy, if 

any 

Amount
(in Rs) 

Date of 
Transfer 

1 FY-1 
2 FY-2 
3 FY-3 

6. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

 Yes    No 

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired   

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate 
Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:  

Sl. 
No. 

Short 
particulars 

of the 
property 

or asset(s)  

Pincode 
of the 

property 
or 

asset(s) 

Date of 
creation 

Amount 
of CSR 
amount 
spent 

Details of entity/ Authority/ 
beneficiary of the registered 

owner 

0 • 
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[including 
complete 
address 

and 
location of 

the 
property] 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)
CSR 

Registration 
Number, if 
applicable 

Name Registered 
address 

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

7. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per subsection (5) of section 135. :- NA

8. Brief detail about the CSR Expenses-
SR
.  

NO
. 

CSR 
PROJEC
T/  

ACTIVIT
IES  

BRIEFING 
OF CSR 
ACTIVITIE
S 

SECTO
R 

LOCATIO
N 

AMOUNT  

OUTLAY  

(BUDGET)  

PROJECT 
OR 

PROGRAM 
WISE  

AMOUNT 
SPENT ON 

THE 
PROJECT OR 

PROGRAMS 
SUB – 
HEADS:  

1. DIRECT
EXPENDITUR
E

2. 
OVERHEADS
* 

CUMULATIVE 
EXPENDITUR
E  

UPTO 
REPORTING 
PERIOD 

AMOUNT  

SPENT:  

DIRECT OR 
THROUGH 
IMPLEMEN
TATION 
AGENCY 

1 HEALTH The 
company 
directly 
donated 
medicines 
and 
medical 
aids to a 
hospital 
directly to 
treat 
patients 
from 

Health Vadodara 15,00,000/- Direct 
Expenditure 

Rs. 
15,23,431/- 

Direct 
Expenditure 
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economical
ly weaker 
sections 
free of cost. 

2 EDUCAT
ION  

The 
company 
directly 
supported 
a few 
residents 
living near 
rural areas 
close to the 
company 
who were 
unable to 
pursue 
their 
studies 
due to 
financial 
constraints 
and lack of 
basic 
necessities, 
as they 
come from 
economical
ly weaker 
sections. 

Educati
on 

Vadodara 10,00,000/- Direct 
Expenditure 

Rs. 60,510/- Direct 
Expenditure  

3 RURAL 
DEVELO
PMENT  

Related to 
School 
Infrastruct
ure in 
rural area 
near 
company 

Rural 
Develop
ment 

Vadodara 10,00,000/- Direct 
Expenditure 

Rs. 
5,58,128/- 

Direct 
Expenditure 

4 EMPOW
ERING 
YOUTH 
THROUG
H 
EDUCAT
ION  

The Project 
was 
conducted 
by United 
Way of 
Baroda 
Foundation 
on behalf 
of 
Company 
under 

Educati
on 

Vadodara 10,00,000/- Direct 
Expenditure 

Rs. 
5,00,000/- 

Implementat
ion Agency 
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“Education 
Project’ the 
funds were 
utilized 
before 11th 
March, 
2024 by 
these 
funds 
supported 
Few 
students 
from 
Economical
ly weaker 
section to 
complete 
their 
education 
and 
achieve 
their 
Dream in 
Medical 
field  

5 SOCIAL 
WELFAR
E  

The Project 
was 
conducted 
by 
Implementi
ng 
Agencies  

Rural 
Develop
ment 

Vadodara 10,00,000/- Direct 
Expenditure 

Rs. 
27,50,000/- 

Implementat
ion Agency 

6 SOCIAL 
WELFAR
E  

The 
Company 
directly 
contribute
d towards 
social 
welfare 
requiremen
t in rural 
area near 
company 

Rural 
Develop
ment 

Vadodara 10,00,000/- Direct 
Expenditure 

Rs. 
2,68,000/- 

Implementat
ion Agency 

TOTAL INR. 
56,60,069 
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9. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance
of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not Applicable

10. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of
the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the financial year, if any: NIL

11. In case the Company has failed to spend two percent of average net profit of last
three financial years or any part thereof, the Company shall provide reason for not
spending the Amount: Not Applicable, as the company has spent the whole amount
towards its obligation.

12. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and
monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR objective and Policy of the
company:

CSR projects were designed, implemented and periodically monitored based on
need assessment reports and CSR Policy of the Company, which in turn is based
on and implemented with statutory requirements.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF DIRECTORS 

Date: 10/06/2024 Sd/- 
Place: Vadodara Mr. Bharat Desai 

Chairman
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ANNEXURE – 3 

FORM AOC-1 
 (Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or 
associate companies or joint ventures: 

Part A Subsidiaries 
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.) 

1. SI. NO. -1
2. Name of the subsidiary: Innoxel Lifesciences Private Limited
3. The date since when subsidiary was acquired: 16/10/2020
4. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding

company’s reporting period: Not Applicable
5. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant

financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries: Not Applicable
6. Authorized Share Capital: INR. 100,00,00,000
7. Paid up Share Capital: INR. 90,01,45,230
8. Reserves and surplus : NIL
9. Total assets : INR. 2,26,37,31,209
10. Total Liabilities : INR. 1,46,30,15,381
11. Investments : Nil
12. Turnover: INR. 3,74,00,645
13. Profit before taxation:  INR. (7,98,40,666)
14. Provision for taxation : NIL
15. Profit after taxation :  INR. (7,98,40,666)
16. Proposed Dividend : Not Applicable
17. Extent of shareholding (in percentage): 51%

* Innoxel Lifesciences Private Limited became the subsidiary of the company w.e.f. 16th

October, 2020.

1. SI. NO. -2
2. Name of the subsidiary: Varenyam Biolifesciences Private Limited
3. The date since when subsidiary was acquired: 28/06/2022
4. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding

company’s reporting period: Not Applicable
5. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant

financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries: Not Applicable
6. Authorized Share Capital: INR. 10,00,00,000
7. Paid up Share Capital: INR. 4,50,00,000
8. Reserves and surplus:  NIL
9. Total assets: INR. 26,11,23,932
10. Total Liabilities: INR. 21,93,23,091
11. Investments: NIL
12. Turnover: (Not yet commenced operations)
13. Profit before taxation:  INR. (22,61,498)
14. Provision for taxation: NIL
15. Profit after taxation:  INR. (22,61,498)
16. Proposed Dividend: Not Applicable
17. Extent of shareholding (in percentage): 60%
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Varenyam Biolifesciences Private Limited became the subsidiary of the company 
w.e.f. 28th June, 2022.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF DIRECTORS 

Date: 10/06/2024 Sd/- 
Place: Vadodara Mr. Bharat Desai 

Chairman



        Jigar Trivedi & Co.,      Practicing Company Secretaries

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Bharat Parenterals Limited,
Vadodara, Gujarat

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable 
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Bharat 
Parenterals Limited (herein after called "the Company"). Secretarial Audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating 
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion 
thereon.

Based on my verification of the company's books, papers, minute books, forms 
and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the 
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in 
my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial 
year ended on March 31, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder as applicable to the company and also that the Company has 
proper board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in 
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter and Annexure- “A”
attached hereto.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by the company for the financial year ended 
on March 31, 2024 according to the provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

Add.: 11, Jitendra Chamber, Nr. EPFO Bhavan, Ashram Road, Income Tax 
Circle, Ahmedabad-380014, M. 9998781207, Mail: csjigartrivedi@gmail.com

OS 



4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations
made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas
Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition
of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 1992 and The Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2009 (Not Applicable to the
company during the audit period);

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Debt Securities)Regulations, 2008 (Not Applicable to the company
during the audit period);

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue
and Share Transfer Agents)Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity
Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not Applicable to the company during
the audit period); and

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998 (Not Applicable to the company during the
audit period);

6. We have relied on the representations made by the company and its officers
for systems and mechanism formed by the Company for compliances of
other specific  applicable Acts, Laws, Rules and Regulations to the
Company including but not limited to the acts mentioned hereunder:

(a) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936;
(b) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948;
(c) The Employee Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,

1952;



(d) Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 and the Employees’ State
Insurance (General) Regulations, 1950;

(e) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;
(f) The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;
(g) The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970;
(h) The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
(i) Drugs (Control) Act, 1950
(j) The Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940 and the Drugs and Cosmetics

Rules, 1945 and other rules made thereunder
(k) The Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006
(l) The Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substances Act, 1985

(m) The Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substances Act, 1985
(n) The Water (Prevention and control of pollution) Act, 1974
(o) The Air (Prevention and control of pollution) Act, 1981

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of  
i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of

India and
ii. the Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited

and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We further report that, During the period under review, the company has 
reasonably complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except the qualification remarks 
made herein below. 

We further report that, The Board of Directors of the Company is duly 
constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors except as stated herein below. The 
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of 
the Act. 

As informed, adequate notice was given to all Directors to schedule the Board 
Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days 
in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information 
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 



Majority decisions at Board meetings and Committee meetings were carried 
out by requisite majority as recorded in the minutes of meetings of the Board 
of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be and Majority 
decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured 
and recorded as part of the minutes.  

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the 
company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to 
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines. 

We further report that the compliance by the Company of the applicable 
financial laws like direct and indirect tax laws and maintenance of financial 
records and books of accounts has not been reviewed by me since the same 
have been subject to review by statutory auditors and other professionals.  

We further report that, 
1) the BSE Ltd. (Stock exchange) has imposed a fine of Rs. 5900/- on

the company for 1 day delay in filing of submission of Related
Party Transaction pursuant to Reg. 23(9) of SEBI (LODR) 2015.

We further report that, apart from above there was no specific events / 
actions having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the 
above referred laws, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.  

For, Jigar Trivedi & Co. 
   Company Secretaries 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 10/06/2024 

___________________ 
    Jigar Trivedi 
    M. No.:46488
  C.P. No.:18483
P.R. No.:2278/2022

UDIN: A046488F000551718 

Note: This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed 
as Annexure herewith and forms an integral part of this report 

JIGAR 
KANAKCHANDRA 
TRIVEDI

Digitally signed by JIGAR KANAKCHANDRA TRIVEDI 
DN: c=IN, postalCode=380013, st=GUJARAT, street=C48  RAMGHAR 
APPARTMENT NEAR JAY JALARAM SOCIETYAHMEDABADNAVA VADAJOPP 
SBI 380013, l=AHMEDABAD, o=Personal, title=9362, 
serialNumber=dddd10caa7f96918e4b98836a9cdc5363a876ad36c8d2276
cbcb5d662de53feb, pseudonym=936220230818205803595, 
2.5.4.20=8eb6089b5786cc4f48a0efc3a19af2157a766d587d40fd5bf020983
b1a1e120e, email=JIGARKTRIVEDI22@YAHOO.COM, cn=JIGAR 
KANAKCHANDRA TRIVEDI 
Date: 2024.06.10 14:40:51 +05'30'

y 



       Jigar Trivedi & Co.,     Practicing Company Secretaries

‘ANNEXURE A’
(To the Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended March 31, 

2024)

To,
The Members
Bharat Parenterals Limited
Vadodara, Gujarat

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial
records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation
about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of
events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws,
rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For, Jigar Trivedi & Co.
   Company Secretaries

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 10/06/2024

___________________
    Jigar Trivedi

M. No.:46488
C.P. No.:18483
P.R. No.:2278/2022

UDIN: A046488F000551718

Add.: 11, Jitendra Chamber, Nr. EPFO Bhavan, Ashram Road, Income Tax 
Circle, Ahmedabad-380014, M. 9998781207, Mail: csjigartrivedi@gmail.com

JIGAR 
KANAKCHANDRA 
TRIVEDI

Digitally signed by JIGAR KANAKCHANDRA TRIVEDI 
DN: c=IN, postalCode=380013, st=GUJARAT, street=C48  RAMGHAR 
APPARTMENT NEAR JAY JALARAM SOCIETYAHMEDABADNAVA VADAJOPP 
SBI 380013, l=AHMEDABAD, o=Personal, title=9362, 
serialNumber=dddd10caa7f96918e4b98836a9cdc5363a876ad36c8d2276cbc
b5d662de53feb, pseudonym=936220230818205803595, 
2.5.4.20=8eb6089b5786cc4f48a0efc3a19af2157a766d587d40fd5bf020983b1
a1e120e, email=JIGARKTRIVEDI22@YAHOO.COM, cn=JIGAR KANAKCHANDRA 
TRIVEDI 
Date: 2024.06.10 14:40:35 +05'30'

us 



  BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
 ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 

27 | P a g e

ANNEXURE – 5 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

Particulars of employees pursuant to section 197(12) of the companies act, 2013 read with 
rule 5(1) of the companies (appointment and remuneration of managerial personnel) rules, 
2014: 

SR. 
NO. 

REQUIREMENT UNDER RULE -5(1) DETAILS 

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each
Director to the median remuneration of
the Employees of the Company for the
financial year:

 Mr. Bharat Desai, Managing
Director – 50:1

 Mr. Hemang Shah, Executive
Director – 10:1

2. The percentage increase in remuneration 
of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, 
Chief Financial Officer, Company 
Secretary in the financial year: 

 Mr. Bharat Desai, Managing
Director – 0%

 Mr. Hemang Shah, Executive
Director – 5.77%

 Mr. Jignesh Shah, CFO- 6.40%
 Ms. Krutika Bhattbhatt, Company

Secretary-Appointed on 2nd

October, 2023.
3. The names of the top ten employees in 

terms of remuneration drawn and the 
name of every employee 

1. Mr. Bharat R
Desai

2. Mrs. Hima B.
Desai

(i) designation of the employee; Managing 
Director 

President 
Commercial 

(ii) remuneration received; (Rs. In Lakhs) 143.11 171.84

(iii) nature of employment, whether 
contractual or otherwise;

Permanent Permanent

(iv) qualifications and experience of the
employee;

B.SC IC B. Com

(v) date of commencement of 
employment;

03-09-1992 01.05.2006

(vi) the age of such employee; 62yrs 56yrs 

(vii) the last employment held by such
employee before joining the company;

NA NA

(viii) the percentage of equity shares held
by the employee in the company within
the meaning of clause (iii) of sub-rule (2)
above; and

12.74% 13.46%

(ix) whether any such employee is a
relative of any director or manager of the

NA NA



  BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
 ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 

28| P a g e

company and if so, name of such director 
or manager: 

4. The percentage increase in the median 
remuneration of employees in the 
financial year 

13% 

4. The number of permanent employees on 
the rolls of Company 

363 

5. Average percentile increase / decrease 
made in the salaries of employees other 
than the managerial personnel in the last 
financial year and its comparison with 
the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof 
and point out if there are any exceptional 
circumstances for increase in the 
managerial remuneration 

 Managerial Remuneration- 9%
 Others- 13%

6. Affirmation that the remuneration is as 
per the remuneration policy of the 
company. 

Remuneration is as per the 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

of the Company. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

Report on Corporate Governance pursuant to Regulation 34 (3) read with the Schedule V of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing 
Regulations, 2015) for the financial year 2023-24. 

Company’s Philosophy on Code of Corporate Governance 

The Company continued to stay true to its purpose of promoting access to quality 
healthcare in the country by nurturing innovation, encouraging community involvement of 
our colleagues and synergizing efforts with government and other stakeholders for collective 
impact. The Company believes that Corporate Governance envisages attainment of high 
level of transparency, accountability, fair and equal treatment of all shareholders, 
compliance with regulations and sustainable value creation for all shareholders, ethical 
practices and integrity thereby assisting the top management of the Company in efficient 
conduct of its business. The Company believes that its systems and actions must be 
integrated for enhancement of corporate performance resulting in maximization of 
shareholders’ value in the long run, protection of the interest of its shareholders and 
employees and maintenance of cordial relationship with its customers and bankers. The 
Company gives due emphasis on regulatory compliances. 

1. Board of Directors:

A) Composition of Board:
The present Board of Directors of the Company comprises of Six directors of which one
is Managing Director, one is Executive Director, One is non-Executive Director and
Three are Independent Directors. The board comprises of 50% Non-Executive
Independent Directors.

B) No. of Board Meetings during the year:
The Board of Directors met 6 times during the year under review. Detailed agenda
notes and the information required to be given in terms of Business on the agenda
were circulated in advance to all the Directors of the Company. The Directors including
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors actively participated in the Board
Meetings.
Attendance of Directors at the Board and Shareholders’ Meeting during the financial
year 2023-24:

Name of 
Director 

Category No. of BM 
attended 

No. of 
Committee 
Meeting 
attended 

Attendance 
at Last 
Annual 
General 
Meeting 

Bharat R. 
Desai 

Promoter- Executive 
Director 

11 14 Yes

Hemang Shah Executive Director 11 14 Yes  

Shailesh 
Gabhawala 

Non-Executive 
Independent  
Director 

11 14 Yes
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Zankhana 
Sheth 

Non-Executive 
Independent  
Director 

11 14 No

Mukesh Patel* Non-Executive 
Independent  
Director 

11 12 Yes

Sanjay Shah** Non-Executive 
Director 

11 NA Yes

  The Above mentioned directors concerned are not holding position as directorship, 
membership or chairmanship of any other committee in any other listed entity and 
hence, the same is not separately disclosed.   

C) Board Meetings:
During the year under review regular meetings of the Board are held to review
performance of the Company and to discuss and decide on various business strategies,
policies and other issues. Following meetings were held and the details of directors
present at the meeting:

SR. NO. DATE OF BOARD MEETING BOARD 
STRENGTH 

NO. OF DIRECTORS 
PRESENT 

1 20.05.2023 6 6
2 09.08.2023 6 6
3 31.08.2023 6 6
4 12.09.2023 6 6
5 01.10.2023 6 6
6 09.11.2023 6 6
7 05.12.2023 6 6
8 17.01.2024 6 6
9 02.02.2024 6 6
10 13.02.2024 6 6
11 20.03.2024 6 6

D) The Board of directors confirm that in the opinion of the Board of Directors the
Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified under SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosures Requirement) regulation, 2015 and are independent of the
management.

2. No. of Shares and Convertible Instruments held by Non-Executive Directors:
None of the Non-executive directors held any equity shares and Convertible
Instruments of the company except Mr. Shailesh Gabhawala, non-executive
Independent director, who hold 9000 equity shares of the company and Mr.
Mukesh Patel, Non-executive Independent Director who holds 100 shares of the
company.

3. Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors
The Company has a familiarization Program for Independent Directors to
familiarize them with regard to their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company,
along with industry, business operations, business model, code of conduct and
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policies of the Company etc. The company’s policy on familiarization programme 
is available on the website on the company: https://www.bplindia.in.  

4. Details of Skill / expertise / competence of the Board of Directors:
The Board of directors of the company looking to the business model of the
company have short listed the few core skills/ expertise / competence as expected
for the board members. The chart / matrix with respect to area of focus or expertise
of individual Board members is as under:
Name of Director Area of Skills / Expertise 

Business 
Leadership 

Financial 
Expertise 

Risk 
Management 

Corporate 
Governance 

Technology 
& 
Innovation 

Shri Bharat Shah      

Shri Hemang 
Shah 

     

Shri Shailesh 
Gabhawala 

     - 

Smt. Zankhana 
Sheth 

 -    

Shri Mukesh 
Patel 

 -    

Shri Sanjay Shah  ✓    

5. Detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns before the
expiry of his /her tenure along with a confirmation by such director that there are no
other material reasons other than those provided- NA

6. Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee, inter-alia, covers all the matters, specified under Section 177
of the Companies Act, 2013 and also to comply with Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and as Part C of
Schedule II of SEBI Listing Regulation, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013 such as
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of financial
information to ensure presentation is correct, sufficient and credible financial
statements, recommending the appointment, remuneration and terms of
appointment of Auditors of the Company. The Audit Committee has powers, inter-
alia, to investigate any activity within its terms of reference and to seek information
from any employee of the Company as well as seek outside legal and professional
advice. During the FY 2023-24 Four meeting were held of Audit Committee –
20.05.2023, 09.08.2023, 09.11.2023 and 13.02.2024.

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises of the following persons and the
details of attendance of meeting of audit committee is as under:
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NAME OF MEMBER CATEGORY NO. OF 
MEETING 
HELD 

NO. OF 
MEETING 
ATTENDED 

Mr. Shailesh 
Gabhawala 

Non-Executive - 
Independent Director, 
Chairperson 

4 4

Mrs. Zankhana Sheth Non-Executive - 
Independent Director, 
Member 

4 4

Mr. Hemang J. Shah Executive Director, 
Member 

4 4

Company Secretary of the Company by default acts as a Secretary of the Committee. 

7. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

In terms of the provisions Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and  as per
Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations,
2015 and other regulations as may be applicable, the Board has constituted a
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Terms of reference of the Committee are
as follows:

a) Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the
Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every
director’s performance;

b) Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a Director;

c) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors
and the Board of Directors;

d) Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;
e) Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent

director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent
directors;

f) Determine our Company’s policy on specific remuneration package for the
Managing Director / Executive Director including pension rights;

g) Decide the salary, allowances, perquisites, bonuses, notice period, severance fees
and increment of Executive Directors;

h) Define and implement the Performance Linked Incentive Scheme (including ESOP
of the Company) and evaluate the performance and determine the amount of
incentive of the Executive Directors for that purpose.

i) Decide the amount of Commission payable to the Whole time Directors;
j) Review and suggest revision of the total remuneration package of the Executive

Directors keeping in view the performance of the Company, standards prevailing
in the industry, statutory guidelines etc; and

k) Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior
management.

l) Recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management;

m) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;
n) Devising a policy on Board diversity;
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated the Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is designed to attract, 
motivate and retain manpower in a competitive market. The policy reflects the 
Company’s objectives for good Corporate Governance and compliance of Section 178 
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI LODR.  
 During the FY four meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held 
on 20.05.2023, 09.08.2023, 09.11.2023 and 13.02.2024. 

The Nomination and Remuneration of the Company comprises of the following 
persons and the details of attendance of committee meeting is as under: 

Name of Member Category No. of meeting 
held 

No. of Meeting 
Attended 

Mr. Shailesh 
Gabhawala 

Non-Executive - 
Independent Director, 
Chairperson 

4 4

Mrs. Zankhana Sheth Non-Executive - 
Independent Director, 
Member 

4 4

Mr. Mukesh Patel Non-Executive - 
Independent Director, 
Member 

4 4

Company Secretary of the Company by default acts as a Secretary of the Committee. 

8. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated the performance
evaluation criteria in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company. The
Nomination and Remuneration Policy is available on the website of the company
www.bplindia.in. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and with the
applicable Rules thereto and applicable Regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time, the
performance of the Board, its Committees, individual Directors, Chairman and
Independent Directors was evaluated on the basis of a structured questionnaire as it
was prepared after taking into consideration inputs received from the Directors,
covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the
composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and
performance of specific duties, obligations and governance. The performance
evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board except
the Independent Director being evaluated.

The Directors were asked to rate the performance on various parameters including a
high degree of commitment to his responsibilities as an Independent Director,
appears to be familiar with the business model of the Company and the industry it
belongs to, he is aware of his role, rights and responsibilities as an Independent
Director, he has been actively participating in the Board/Committee discussions and
contributing to the decision-making process, he has been known to take initiative on
matters of common interest of the Company and to exhibit sensitivity to the interest
of all the stakeholders, he comes across as a person with expertise and experience,
he keeps himself informed on the latest developments in corporate governance.
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9. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

In compliance with the provisions of Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Board has constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.
This Committee consists of:

a) Mr. Bharat R. Desai
b) Mr. Hemang Shah
c) Mr. ShaileshGabhawala
d) Mr. Zankhana Sheth

Terms of Reference:  

Your Company has been contributing in the upliftment and development of the 
surrounding areas. Pursuant to the requirement of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013, Schedule VII, and Rules made there under a duly constituted Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee is in place. The CSR policy has been placed on the website 
of the Company. The CSR Committee is empowered, pursuant to its terms of 
reference, inter alia, to: 

 Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility
policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company.

 Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred.
 Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility policy.
 Such other roles and functions as may be prescribed in the Companies Act,

2013 and rules made there under.
Further, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the 
information on the CSR activities undertaken by the Company during the year ended 
March 31, 2024 is annexed to the Board's Report. 

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

There are no pecuniary transactions or relationships exist with the Non- Executive 
Directors of the Company. The Non-executive Directors and Independent Directors of 
the Company are entitled to sitting fees as determined by Board from time to time for 
attending Board / Committee meetings thereof in accordance with the provisions of 
Act. The details related to remuneration paid to the Executive Directors are specified 
below: 

       Name Salary Stock
options 

Bonus & 
Performance 
Linked 
Incentive 

Total 

Bharat R. Desai 1,43,11,250 0 0 1,43,11,250 

Hemang Shah 40,24,104 0 0 40,24,104 

a. Service Contracts, Severance Fees and Notice Period
The appointment of the Managing Director and Whole-time Director(s) is governed
by the Articles of Association of the Company, Board Resolutions, Members
Resolutions and service/employment contracts. The Board Resolutions and
Members Resolutions cover the terms and conditions of such appointment read with
the service rules of the Company. There is no separate provision for payment of
severance fee under the resolutions/contracts governing the appointment of
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Managing Director and Whole- time Director(s). The service/ employment contracts 
are terminable by either party by serving notice of three months. 

11. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

   The Company has constituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee in 
compliance of provisions of the Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per 
Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulations, 2015. The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee are as under: 

 Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including
complaints related to transfer / transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual
report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new / duplicate certificates,
general meetings etc.

 Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.
 Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect

of various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.
Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for ensuring
timely receipt of dividend warrants / annual reports / statutory notices by the
shareholders of the Company. During the FY 2022-2023 three meeting were held of
Stakeholder and Relationship Committee – 20.05.2023, 09.08.2023, 09.11.2023
and 13.02.2024.

The Stakeholder relationship committee of the Company comprises of the following 
persons: 

Name of Member Category No. of meeting 
held 

No. of Meeting 
Attended 

Mr. Shailesh 
Gabhawala 

Non-Executive - 
Independent Director, 
Chairperson 

4 4

Mrs. Zankhana Sheth Non-Executive - 
Independent Director, 
Member 

4 4

Hemang J. Shah Executive Director, Member 4 4 

Mr. Shyam Rajpurohit, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company by 
will 

acts as a Secretary of the Committee till 02.10.2023 and thereafter Ms. Krutika 
Bhattbhatt 

acts as a Secretary of the Committee w.e.f. 02.10.2023. 

No. of investor complaints received during the year: 13 
No. of complaints not resolved to the satisfaction of shareholders: 1  
No. of complaints pending: 0 

12. Risk Management Committee :- Not Applicable
13. Senior Management: There is no change in Senior Management since the compared to

previous financial year
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14. General body meetings:
a. The details of the last three Annual General Meetings held are as follows:

Financial 
Year  

Venue  Date & Time  

2020-2021 Annual General Meeting 
conducted through Video 
Conferencing / Other Audio 
Visual Means. Deemed 

Venue is the registered office of 
the company. 

30th September, 2021 at 01:00 PM 

2021-2022 Annual General Meeting 
conducted through Video 

Conferencing / Other Audio 
Visual Means. Deemed 

Venue is the registered office of 
the company. 

27th September, 2022 at 10.30 AM 

2022-2023 Annual General Meeting 
conducted through Video 

Conferencing / Other Audio 
Visual Means. Deemed 

Venue is the registered office of 
the company. 

30th September, 2023 at 10.30 AM 

b. Two Special Resolutions was passed at the 28th Annual General Meeting held on 30th

September, 2021 which are as follows:
i. RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. SHAILESH GABHAWAL AS INDEPENDENT

DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY
ii. APPROVAL OF LOANS, INVESTMENTS, GUARANTEE OR SECURITY UNDER

SECTION
185 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

c. Two Special Resolutions was passed at the 29th Annual General Meeting held on 27th

September, 2022 which are as follows:
i. RE-APPOINTMENT OF MRS. ZANKHANA BIMALKUMAR SHETH (DIN:

08200311) AS INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY
ii. APPROVAL OF LOANS, INVESTMENTS, GUARANTEE OR SECURITY UNDER
SECTION 185 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

d. Ordinary resolutions were passed at the 30th Annual General Meeting held on 30th
September, 2023

e. No resolutions were passed through postal ballot during the last year
f. Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise – Not applicable
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15. INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR’S MEETING DURING THE YEAR:

In accordance with the provisions of SEBI(LODR) and provisions of companies act, 
2013, meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on 20th March, 
2023. 
Further, Confirmation In the opinion of the Board, all the Independent Directors, 
fulfill the criteria of independence as laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and such is based on the 
declaration received from all the Independent Directors.  

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met inter alia, to discuss 
and review: 
 Evaluation of the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of

Directors as a whole.
 Evaluation of the performance of the chairperson of the Company, taking into

account the views of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors.
 Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between

the Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and
reasonably perform its duties.

16. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company’s quarterly and half yearly un–audited results and audited annual
results were published in the leading print media, both in Loksatta Jansatta (regional
language) and Business Standard (English language) having nation-wide circulation
and also through various information notices sent to Stock Exchanges about the
latest developments in the Company. Our Company’s web site i.e.
https://www.bplindia.in is regularly updated regarding disclosures of financial
results and the corporate actions undertaken by the Company. Further, the related
information is uploaded / submitted to Stock Exchanges on time to time basis .

17. General shareholder information:
a) Annual General Meeting:

Date: 30th September, 2023 | Time: 10.30 AM  IST | Venue: This meeting will be
held through VC /  OAVM

b) Financial Year:
The Company follows Accounting financial year which starts from the 1st April and
ends on 31st March.

c) Listing on Stock Exchange: BSE Limited and the annual listing fees has been paid
by the company.

d) Stock Code: 541096
e) ISIN: INE365Y01019
f) Monthly High and Low Market Price Data during FY 2023-24:

PERIOD High Price (in 
Rs.) 

Low Price (In 
Rs.) 

April, 2023 351.00 321.05 

May, 2023 390.00 321.20 

June, 2023 397.00 339.50 

July, 2023 457.90 365.00 

August, 2023 648.40 421.00 
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September, 2023 638.00 531.65 

October, 2023 640.00 523.10 

November, 2023 635.00 513.15 

December, 2023 874.40 553.70 

January, 2024 876.90 743.00 

February, 2024 1350.00 774.25 

March, 2024 1464.90 1040.00 

g) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:

M/s. Adroit Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd 
19/20, 1st Floor, Plot No. 639, Makwana Road, Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai - 
400059 

h) Company Secretary and Compliance Officer:

Name: Ms. Krutika Bhattbhatt 
Contact at: cs@bplindia.in , +91-9909928332 
Website:    www.bplindia.in  
Address for correspondence:   Survey No. 144A,  

Jarod Samlaya Road, 
Vill. Haripura, Tal. Savli,  
Dist. Vadodara – 391520 

i) Share Transfer System:
Share transfers, dividend payments and all other investor related activities are attended
to and processed at the Office of our Registrars and Transfer Agents. For lodgment of
transfer deeds and any other documents for any grievances / complaints kindly contact
at the following address. The powers to approve share transfers and dematerialization
requests have also been delegated to some of the executives of the company in order to
avoid delays that may arise due to non-availability of the Members of the Stakeholders
Relationship Committee.

j) DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31st MARCH 2024

PARTICULARS NUMBER OF 
SHARES 

% OF TOTAL SHARES 

Promoter and Promote
Group 

4263780 73.27

Public 1555886 26.73
   Individuals 1034326 17.77 
   Bank 500 0.01 
   Clearing Members 0 0 
   HUF 30231 0.52 
  Bodies Corporate 490829 8.43 
  Non-Resident Indian 237416 4.11 
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k) Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity:

The Company’s shares are under compulsory dematerialization list and can be
transferred only through depository system. The Company entered into tripartite
agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) to facilitate the dematerialization of shares. As on
31.03.2024, 89.93% shares of the Company were in electronic form.

Dematerialization of shares details as on 31/03/2024:

l) Plant Location:
Survey No. 144-A, Jarod Samlaya Road, Vill. Haripura, Tal. Savli, Dist. Vadodara – 
391520 , Gujarat, India. 

m) Address of Correspondence:
Survey No. 144-A, Jarod Samlaya Road, Vill. Haripura, Tal. Savli, Dist. Vadodara – 
391520, Gujarat, India.  

n) List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during
the relevant financial year, for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit
programme or any scheme or proposal of the listed entity involving mobilization of
funds, whether in India or abroad- NA

o) Outstanding global depository receipts or american depository receipts or warrants or
any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity-NA

p) Dividend payment date-30.09.2023

18. OTHER DISCLOSURES:

a) Related Party Transactions:
All contracts/ transactions/ arrangements entered into during the year with related
parties were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. The
company had not entered into any contract/ arrangement/ transaction with related
parties which could be considered material in accordance with policy of the company.

The disclosure relating to related party transactions entered into by the company in
the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis is disclosed in notes to
financial statements.

b) Details of Non-compliance and penalty:
The Company has complied with all the mandatory and non-mandatory requirements
of the Listing Regulations relating to Corporate Governance and not done any non-
compliance of any applicable laws, regulations and rules. Further no penalty has been
levied on the company.

No. of equity Shareholding No. of Shares % to total capital 
issued 

Held in dematerialized mode in NSDL 4700399 80.77 
Held in dematerialized mode in CDSL 532932 09.16 
Sub-Total (dematerialized mode) 5233331 89.93
Physical mode 586335 10.08 
Total 5819666 100.00%
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c) Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy:
As required by the provisions of Companies Act 2013 and Listing Agreement with BSE
Limited, the Company has established Vigil Mechanism and adopted Whistle Blower
Policy to provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and
directors who avail of the vigil mechanism and also provide for direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee or the director nominated to play the role of Audit
Committee. No employee has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.

d) Details of Compliance With Mandatory Requirements And Adoption Of The Non-
Mandatory Requirements;
The company has complied with all mandatory requirements SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to
time. The Company has also adopted all the non-mandatory requirements as specified
in the Schedule II Part E of the SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations,2015.

e) Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed:
The Audit Committee reviews the consolidated financial statements of the company
and the investments made in the unlisted subsidiary company. The company does
not have any material unlisted subsidiary company. The company has policy
determining “material” subsidiaries is disclosed on website of the company at:
https://www.bplindia.in/for%20investors/policies%20and%20code%20of%20condu
ct/Material%20Subsidiary%20policies.pdf

f) Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions:

The URL of the policy on dealing with related party transaction is
https://www.bplindia.in/for%20investors/policies%20and%20code%20of%20condu
ct/RPT_Policy.pdf

g) Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities.
There is no exposure of the Company involving any commodity price risk or foreign
exchange risk and therefore there is no hedging activities undertaken.

Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified 
institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A)-NA 

h) Certificate from Practicing company Secretary
The company has obtained the certificate from practicing company secretary M/s.
Jigar Trivedi & Co., Ahmedabad that none of the directors of the board of the company
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as a director
of the companies by the Board / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other statutory
authority. The said certificate forms part of the annual report.

i) Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a
consolidated basis, to the statutory auditor for the financial year 2023-2024

Sr. No.  Particulars Consolidated Amount 

(In Rs.)  

1 CNK & Associates LLP 4,94,500/- 
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j) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

a. Number of complaints filed during the financial year: NIL
b. Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: NIL
c. Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: NIL

k) Non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report of paras (2)
to (10) of Para C of Schedule V of LODR, with reasons thereof.
Not Applicable

l) Disclosure of the compliance with corporate governance requirements
The company has complied with all the mandatory requirements specified in
regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of the
SEBI (Listing obligation disclosure requirement) Regulation 2015.

m) Code of Conduct
Declaration by the Managing Director under Reg. 26 of the SEBI (Listing obligation
disclosure requirement), 2015 regarding compliance with Code of Conduct in
accordance with Reg. 26 of the SEBI (Listing obligation disclosure requirement), 2015
with the Stock Exchanges.

n) Transfer of shares to Unclaimed Suspense Account
No shares has been transferred to unclaimed Suspense account of the company.

o) Recommendation of Committees
The Board has accepted all the recommendation of all committees which are required
to mandatory during the Financial Year.

p) Details of Loans and Advances in the nature of loan to firms/companies in which
Directors are interested- Mentioned in Audited Financial Statement

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF DIRECTORS 

Date: 10/06/2024 Sd/- 
Place: Vadodara Mr. Bharat Desai 

Chairman



        Jigar Trivedi & Co.,      Practicing Company Secretaries

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of,
Bharat Parenterals Limited,
Vill-Haripura, Savli,
Baroda Gujarat-389330 

I/We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and 
disclosures received from the Directors of Bharat Parenterals Limited having 
CIN: L24231GJ1992PLC018237 and having registered office at Vill-Haripura, 
Savli, Baroda Gujarat-389330 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), 
produced before me/us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 
Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C 
Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the 
portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to 
us by the Company & its officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors 
on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 
31st March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. 
No.

Name Of Director  DIN Date Of 
Appointment 
in company

1. Mukeshbhai Jivrajbhai 
Patel

00410134 26/09/2020

2. Bharatkumar
Rameshchandra Desai

00552596 03/09/1992

3. Hemang Jayendrabhai Shah 03024324 08/07/2010
4. Shaileshkumar Gabhawala 07884641 03/08/2017
5. Zankhana Bimalkumar

Sheth
08200311 14/08/2018

6. Sanjay Parasmal Shah 08899131 02/10/2020

Add.: 11, Jitendra Chamber, Nr. EPFO Bhavan, Ashram Road, Income Tax 
Circle, Ahmedabad-380014, M. 9998781207, Mail: csjigartrivedi@gmail.com
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        Jigar Trivedi & Co.,         Practicing Company Secretaries

AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To, 
The Members, 
M/s. Bharat Parenterals Ltd
Vadodara

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by 
Bharat Parenterals Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended on 31st March 
2024, as per regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and 
Paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“Listing Regulations”) with amendments as applicable

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of 
the Management. Our examination has been limited to a review of the 
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit 
nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, and the representations made by the Directors and 
Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions 
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Reg. 27 of the SEBI (Listing 
obligation disclosure requirement) 2015 except the appointment of 
Independent Director in terms of Regulation 24 of the SEBI (Listing obligation 
disclosure requirement) 2015 in material subsidiary of the company. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the company

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 10/06/2024

For, Jigar Trivedi & Co.
Company Secretaries

___________________
    Jigar Trivedi

M. No.:46488
C.P. No.:18483

P.R. Certificate No.:2278/2022
UDIN: A046488F000551696

JIGAR 
KANAKCHANDRA 
TRIVEDI

Digitally signed by JIGAR KANAKCHANDRA TRIVEDI 
DN: c=IN, postalCode=380013, st=GUJARAT, street=C48  RAMGHAR 
APPARTMENT NEAR JAY JALARAM SOCIETYAHMEDABADNAVA VADAJOPP SBI 
380013, l=AHMEDABAD, o=Personal, title=9362, 
serialNumber=dddd10caa7f96918e4b98836a9cdc5363a876ad36c8d2276cbcb5
d662de53feb, pseudonym=936220230818205803595, 
2.5.4.20=8eb6089b5786cc4f48a0efc3a19af2157a766d587d40fd5bf020983b1a1e
120e, email=JIGARKTRIVEDI22@YAHOO.COM, cn=JIGAR KANAKCHANDRA 
TRIVEDI 
Date: 2024.06.10 14:39:22 +05'30'
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 Jigar Trivedi & Co.,          Practicing Company Secretaries

Add.: 11, Jitendra Chamber, Nr. EPFO Bhavan, Ashram Road, Income Tax 
Circle, Ahmedabad-380014, M. 9998781207, Mail: csjigartrivedi@gmail.com

CERTIFICATE
To, 
The Board of Directors, 
M/s. Bharat Parenterals Ltd
Vadodara

I Jigar Trivedi Company Secretary in practice, have been appointed as the 
Secretarial Auditor vide a resolution passed at its meeting held on 31st August, 
2023 by the Board of Directors of Bharat Parenterals Limited (hereinafter 
referred to as ‘the Company’), having CIN L24231GJ1992PLC018237 and 
having its registered office at Survey No.144A, Jarod Samlaya Road, Haripura, 
Savli, Vadodara, Gujarat, 391520. This Certificate is issued under Regulation 
13 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India [Share Based Employee 
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Regulations’]. 

Management Responsibility: 

It is the responsibility of the Management of the Company to implement the 
Scheme(s) including designing, maintaining records and devising proper 
systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate 
effectively. 

Verification: 

The Company has implemented the following plans: 
I. Employees Stock Option Plan, 2020 [formulated under the SEBI (Share

Based Employee Beneits) Regulations, 2014], approved by the members
at the General Meeting of the Company held on 30th September, 2020
(hereinafter referred to ESOP, 2020).

For the purpose of verifying the compliance of the Regulations, I have 
examined the Schemes, Resolutions passed at General Meeting and the 
meeting of the Board of Directors / Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
Disclosure by the Board of Directors and other relevant documents made 
available to me and the explanations provided by the Company.

Certification: 

In my opinion and to the best of my knowledge and according to the 
verifications as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the 
Company and its Officers, I Certify that the Company has implemented the 
ESOP, 2020 in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Regulations 
and Resolution passed in the General Meeting by the members of the 
Company.

us 



 Jigar Trivedi & Co.,          Practicing Company Secretaries

Add.: 11, Jitendra Chamber, Nr. EPFO Bhavan, Ashram Road, Income Tax 
Circle, Ahmedabad-380014, M. 9998781207, Mail: csjigartrivedi@gmail.com

Assumption & Limitation of Scope and Review:

1. Ensuring the authenticity of documents and information furnished is
the responsibility of the Board of Directors of the Company.

2. My responsibility is to give certificate based upon examination of
relevant documents and information. It is neither an audit nor an
investigation.

3. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company

Date: 10/06/2024
Place: Ahmedabad

For, Jigar Trivedi & Co.
Company Secretaries

___________________
    Jigar Trivedi

M. No.:46488
C.P. No.:18483
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Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on 
the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company. 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 10/06/2024 

For, Jigar Trivedi & Co. 
   Company Secretaries 

___________________ 
    Jigar Trivedi 
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CERTIFICATION BY CFO AND MANAGING DIRECTOR 
a. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended

March 31, 2024 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:
i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material

fact or contain statements that might be misleading;
ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are

in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.
b. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the

Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violate the Company’s Code of
Conduct.

c. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting. We have disclosed to the auditors and the
Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any,
of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.

There have been no  
i. Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
ii. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year;
iii. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement

therein, if any, of the management or an employee having significant role in the
Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

 Sd/- Sd/- 

Mr. Bharat Desai    Mr. Jignesh Shah 
Managing Director  Chief Financial Officer 

Date: 10.06.2024 
Place: Vadodara 
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CERTIFICATE 
To,  
The Board of Directors,  
M/s. Bharat Parenterals Ltd 
Vadodara 

I Jigar Trivedi Company Secretary in practice, have been appointed as the Secretarial Auditor 
vide a resolution passed at its meeting held on 31st August, 2023 by the Board of Directors 
of Bharat Parenterals Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), having CIN 
L24231GJ1992PLC018237 and having its registered office at Survey No.144A, Jarod 
Samlaya Road, Haripura, Savli, Vadodara, Gujarat, 391520. This Certificate is issued under 
Regulation 13 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India [Share Based Employee Benefits 
and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (hereinafter referred to as “the Regulations’].  

Management Responsibility: 

It is the responsibility of the Management of the Company to implement the Scheme(s) 
including designing, maintaining records and devising proper systems to ensure compliance 
with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are 
adequate and operate effectively.  

Verification:  

The Company has implemented the following plans:  

I. Employees Stock Option Plan, 2020 [formulated under the SEBI (Share Based
Employee Beneits) Regulations, 2014], approved by the members at the General
Meeting of the Company held on 30th September, 2020 (hereinafter referred to ESOP,
2020).

For the purpose of verifying the compliance of the Regulations, I have examined the Schemes, 
Resolutions passed at General Meeting and the meeting of the Board of Directors / 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Disclosure by the Board of Directors and other 
relevant documents made available to me and the explanations provided by the Company. 

Certification:  

In my opinion and to the best of my knowledge and according to the verifications as 
considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company and its Officers, I 
Certify that the Company has implemented the ESOP, 2020 in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the Regulations and Resolution passed in the General Meeting by the members 
of the Company. 

Assumption & Limitation of Scope and Review: 

1. Ensuring the authenticity of documents and information furnished is the
responsibility of the Board of Directors of the Company.
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2. My responsibility is to give certificate based upon examination of relevant documents
and information. It is neither an audit nor an investigation.

3. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs
of the Company

Date: 10/06/2024 

Place: Ahmedabad 

For, Jigar Trivedi & Co. 

    Company Secretaries 

___________________ 
  Jigar Trivedi 

M. No.:46488
  C.P. No.:18483

 P.R. Certificate No.:2278/2022 
  UDIN: 
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DECLARATION 
DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT PPERSONNEL WITH COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT 
This is to inform that the company has adopted a code of conduct for its employees, non-
executive directors and executive directors which is also available on the Company’s 
website. 
I confirm that the Company has in respect of the financial year ended March 31, 2024, 
received from the Senior Management Team of the Company and Members of the Board, a 
declaration of compliance with the code of conduct as applicable to them.  
For the purpose of this declaration, Senior Management Team includes the Chief Financial 
Officer, Company Secretary and other employees in the executive cadre as on March 31, 
2024. 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

Sd/- 
Date: 10.06.2024    Bharat R. Desai 
Place: Vadodara      Managing Director 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
1. Economic Overview and Indian Pharmaceutical market:

Market size of India pharmaceuticals industry is expected to reach US$ 65 billion by
2024, and ~US$ 130 billion by 2030. According to the government data, the Indian
pharmaceutical industry is worth approximately US$ 50 billion with over US$ 25
billion of the value coming from exports. About 20% of the global exports in generic
drugs are met by India.

India is among the top 12 destinations for biotechnology worldwide and 3rd largest
destination for biotechnology in Asia Pacific. In 2022, India’s Biotechnology industry
has crossed US$ 80.12 billion, growing 14% from the previous year.

The Indian pharmaceutical industry has seen a massive expansion over the last few
years and is expected to reach about 13% of the size of the global pharma market
while enhancing its quality, affordability, and innovation.

According to the Indian Economic Survey 2021, the domestic market is expected to
grow 3x in the next decade. India’s domestic pharmaceutical market stood at US$ 42
billion in 2021 and is likely to reach US$ 65 billion by 2024 and further expand to
reach US$ 120-130 billion by 2030. India's biotechnology industry comprises
biopharmaceuticals, bio-services, bio-agriculture, bio-industry, and bioinformatics.
The Indian biotechnology industry was valued at US$ 70.2 billion in 2020 and is
expected to reach US$ 150 billion by 2025. India’s medical devices market stood at
US$ 10.36 billion in FY20. The market is expected to increase at a CAGR of 37% from
2020 to 2025 to reach US$ 50 billion. As of August 2021, CARE Ratings expect India's
pharmaceutical business to develop at an annual rate of ~11% over the next two years
to reach more than US$ 60 billion in value.

2. Industry Structure and Development:

With more than 500 formulations to choose, a strong formulation development base
and coveted WHO-cGMP certificate to its credit, Bharat Parenterals Limited has
already made an export presence across the globe. The large scale modern production
facility at Haripura, Savli is WHO-cGMP certified and abides by its stringent norms.
Its processes are ISO 9001:2000 certified as well over years, Bharat Parenterals
Limited has sharpened its production expertise, built modern production lines and
consolidated manufacturing processes, which conform to international standards.

3. Opportunities and Threats:

The Indian pharmaceutical environment is evolving rapidly with government
involvement which may impact the development of the Indian Pharmaceutical Market.
Factors like government mandated price controls, patent scenario, weakening of
rupee, stringent quality standards, etc. are some of the major issues that need
consideration in the current scenario. Bharat Parenterals Limited will be able to place
itself in a strong position by expanding strategically, increasing its manufacturing
capacities and enhancing capacities across the organization. With the state of the art
and regulatory compliant manufacturing facilities Bharat Parenterals Limited is
geared up to encash the business opportunities available.
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4. Risk and Concerns:
Dynamic business environment of modern times throws several challenges from time
to time. Threats include:
• Growing competition both from domestic and global players
•Preference of some customers towards MNC suppliers over Indian suppliers
• High dependence on imported raw material.
• Volatility in raw and packing material prices and fluctuations in Foreign Exchange
• Rising cost of utilities.
• Cyclic demand changes in some market sectors.
Your company focuses on continual expansion of its products and customer base,
while systematically strengthening its quality, innovation and cost competence in
order to mitigate the potential impact of some of the above threats.

5. Segment-Wise Performance
a) The Company is only in one line of business- Pharmaceuticals.
b) The Segment Revenue in the Geographical Segment considered for disclosures are
as follow:
- Revenue in India includes sales to customers located within India -10886.38 (Rs. In
lakhs)
- Revenue outside India includes sales to customers located outside India – 10863.75
(Rs. In lakhs)

6. Outlook:

The Company is focusing on its core business of manufacturing and marketing of
formulations. Research and development has been put on fast track for cost
competitiveness and to comply with the regulatory market. Cost rationalization and
management control at all levels are practiced to ensure operational efficiency in the
sphere of manufacturing and marketing. Armed with strong resources base and a
vision to be a leading manufacturer of formulations, the company is poised to unleash
its true potentials to meet the challenges and exploit growth opportunities ahead.

World economic overview:
In the global pharmaceuticals sector, India is a significant and rising player. India is
the world's largest supplier of generic medications, accounting for 20% of the
worldwide supply by volume and supplying about 60% of the global vaccination
demand. The Indian pharmaceutical sector is worth US$ 42 billion worldwide. In
August 2021, the Indian pharmaceutical market increased at 17.7% annually, up
from 13.7% in July 2020. According to India Ratings & Research, the Indian
pharmaceutical market revenue is expected to be over 12% Y-o-Y in FY22

7. Internal Control System and their adequacy:

The Company has in place adequate internal control mechanism to ensure proper
and stringent compliance of all policies, procedures and statutes, applicable to the
company, nationally as well internationally. The company undergoes periodical review
and a report thereon is provided to the management for taking further actions.

8. Human Resource:

Your company knows and believes that the success in establishment of Bharat
Parenterals Limited as an international player with core strengths of R&D and Quality
has been achieved due to the hard work and commitment of the human resource. A
happy organization is made by happy human resource and thus, the company
ensures continuous development, work-life balance and high morale of its employees
at all times. Recognizing that people are important part of the organization, a major
exercise in development and training of employees is undertaken at all levels of the
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company. The industrial relations in all the units of the Company during the financial 
year 2022-23 were peaceful and harmonious. Experienced and motivated employees 
have been the backbone of the Company. There were 363 peoples employed in the 
Company as on 31.03.2023. Your Company puts special emphasis on team building 
and positive work culture. We train employees to understand and absorb the latest 
technological trends which in turn, prepare them to achieve higher efficiency levels in 
production, quality besides leading to higher customer satisfaction. There is a 
systematic identification of training needs. Training and development inputs are 
provided to all employees – in the areas of skill development and behavioral 
improvement so that individual development keeps pace with organizational 
development. 

9. Formulation and Developments:
Company always considering Formulation and Development as crucial for sustain
growth of the Company. Company always try to introduce newer and newer drugs
delivery system for ensuring products available as regard to time and enhancing
therapeutic value. To achieve this objective we have experienced and qualified
pharmacists whose activity is to maintain and find out newer and newer delivery
system as well as re-engineering innovative process. This will held the Company to
maintain material consumption ration.

10. Financial performance with respect to operational performance:

A detailed financial overview is given in the Board’s Report of the Company.

11. Cautionary Statement:
Certain statement made in this report, are forward looking statements and actual
results may differ from such expectations or projections about the future, as several 
factors would make significant difference to the Company’s operations such as 
economic conditions affecting demand and supply, government’s regulations, level of 
competitions prevailing at the relevant time, etc. The Company assumes no 
responsibility publicly to amend, modify or revise any such statements on the basis 
of subsequent developments, information or events. 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF DIRECTORS 

Date: 10/06/2024 Sd/- 
Place: Vadodara Mr. Bharat Desai 

Chairman



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Bharat Parenterals 

limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31~t March, 2024, the 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes 

in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the Standalone 

Financial Statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory 

information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies 

Act, 2013 (the "Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 

the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 st 

March, 2024, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for 

the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards 

on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013. Our 

responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for 

the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 

the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit 

of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
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requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtainedis 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone Financial 

Statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 

in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were 

addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in 

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statement and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Company's management and Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the 

other information. The other information comprises the information included in Board's 

Reportincluding Annexuresto that Board's Report,Corporate Governance and Shareholder's 

Information, but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor's report 

thereon. 

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we 

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read 

the other informationand, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 

this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 

regard. 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone 

Financial Statements 

The Company's management and the Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in 

Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these 

Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 

performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 

accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 

the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, Implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 

Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; 

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 

intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 

so; 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting 

process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial 

Statementsas a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 



influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial 

Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 

of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

override of internal control; 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design aucfrt 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(j) of the Companies 

Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has 

adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 

controls; 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management; 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a 

going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 

in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report, However, future events or conditions 

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; 
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 

the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 

factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) 

to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governanceregarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit; 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 

and where applicable, related safeguards; 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the 

current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's 

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 

rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 

public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we 

give in the H Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 

Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 

far as it appears from our examination of those books; 



(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the 

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the relevant books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 stMarch,2024 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 st March, 

2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act; 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

"Annexure B"; 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the 

provisions of section 197 of the Act; and 

(h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position 1n its 

standalone financial statements - Refer Note 38 to the Standalone Financial Statements; 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there 

were any material foreseeable losses; 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 



iv. 

i.The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief that no funds 

have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 

other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 

foreign entities (-Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 

or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (" Ultimate 

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; 

ii.The Management has represented that , to the best of it's knowledge and belief that no funds 

have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 

in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

iii.Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and 

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe 

that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e) contain any material mis­

statement. 

v. The final dividend paid by the company during the year in respect of the same declared for the 

previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Companies Act 2013 to the extent it 

applies to payment of dividend. 

As stated in note 56 to the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Company have 

proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the 

ensuring Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordance with section 123 of the 

Act, to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend. 



vi. Based on our examination, which includes test checks, the company has used accounting software 

for maintaining its books of accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 which has a 

feature of recording audit trails {edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the 

year for all the relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our 

audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. 

For CNK & Associates LLP 

Partner 

Membership No. 158289 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: 22nd May 2024 

UDIN: 24158289BKAOIC4647 



ANNEXURE "An TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Referred to in Para 1 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in our 

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the Company on the Standalone Financial 

Statements for the year ended 31-1March,2024. 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company 

and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state 

that: 

I. (a) In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment's and Intangible Assets: 

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment; 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets; 

(b) The company has a phased programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and 

Equipment so as to cover all assets once in three years. In accordance with this programme, 

certain Property, Plant and Equipment were verified during the year and no material 

discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical 

verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets; 

(c) Based on our verification of the documents provided to us and according to the information and 

explanations given by the Management, the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other 

than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in 

favour of the lessee) as disclosed in the financial statements, are held in the name of the 

Company as at the Balance Sheet date; 

(d) The company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use 

assets) and intangible assets during the year; 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any 

benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules 

made thereunder; 
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II. (A) The inventory have been physically verified by the Management at reasonable intervals. 

Considering the size of the Company, the frequency of verification is reasonable and the 

procedures are adequate. No discrepancies have been noticed on such verification; 

(B) Based on our examination of the records, the company has been sanctioned working capital 

limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current 

assets and quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks are in agreement 

with the books of account of the company; 

Ill. The Company has made investments in, companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships and 

granted unsecured loans to other parties, during the year, in respect of which; 

a) The Company has provided unsecured loan to two subsidiaries with aggregate amount 

granted/provided during the year is Rs. 2,205.56 lakhs during the year and where balance 

outstanding as at Balance Sheet date is Rs. 7590.68 lakhs. 

Further company has provided Corporate Guarantee for its one of its subsidiary with aggregate 

amount granted/provided during the year Rs. 6,686.06 lakhs whose balance outstanding as at 

Balance Sheet date is Rs.6,686.06 lakhs. 

b) ln our opinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans, during 

the year are, prim a fade, not prejudicial to the Company's interest; 

c) In our opinion, schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated 

and receipts of principal and interest are as per the terms of agreement. 

d) In our opinion, there is no overdue amount of principal and interest for more than 90 days; 

e} In our opinion, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due 

during the year; has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of 

existing loans given to the same parties; 

f) In our opinion, there company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either 

repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment and accordingly 

reporting under this clause is not applicable. 

IV. The Company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 

2013 in respect of Joans granted, investment made, and guarantee and securities provided, as 

applicable; 
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V. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within 

the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the rules framed there under, therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3(v) of the Order are not 

applicable to the Company; 

VI. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company as prescribed by the 

Central Government under sub section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act and are of the 

opinion that prima fade the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the 

Company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to 

determine whether they are accurate or complete; 

VII. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues: 

(a) In our opinion, the company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues 

including Goods and Service tax, provident fund, employee state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, 

service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues as 

applicable to the appropriate authorities. There were no undisputed amounts payable with 

respect to above statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of six months from 

the date they became payable; 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the 

particulars of statutory dues as at March 31, 2024 which have not been deposited on account of a 

dispute, are as follows: 

Name of the Nature of dues Amounts Period to which Forum where 

statute the amounts dispute is 
(Rs. In lakhs) 

relates pending 

Income Tax Act, Income Tax 52.69 2014-15 CIT Appeal 

1961 

Finance Act, Service Tax 9.70 April 2012 to CESTAT, 

1994 March 2015 Ahmedabad 

VII!. There were no transactions which were not recorded in the books of account, have been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax 

Act, 1961; 



IX. (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment 

of interest thereon to any lender: 

(b) The company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other 

fender; 

(c) The company has applied the term loan for the purpose for which the loans were obtained; 

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short­

term basis have, prima fade, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the 

Company; 

(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 

obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures; 

(f) We report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities 

held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies 

X. {a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 

(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3{x)(a) of the Order is 

not applicable; 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or 

partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 

3(x)(b) of the Order are not applicable; 

XL (a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the company has been noticed or reported 

during the year; 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form 

ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 

Government, during the year and up to the date of this report; 

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by 

the company during the year; 

XII. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not 

applicable; 



XII!. In our opinion, all the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 

188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the 

Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards; 

XIV. (a) In our opinion and the records examined by us, the company has an internal audit system 

commensurate with the size and nature of its business of the company; 

(b) We have considered report of the internal auditors for the period under audit; 

XV. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the 

records, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with the directors or persons 

connected with them. Hence, the provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable; 

XVI. (a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the 

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the order is 

not applicable; 

(b)ln our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core 

Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 

3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable 

XVII. The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding 

financial year; 

XVIII. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year; 

XIX. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets 

and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and 

our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination 

of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us 

to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that 

Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and 

when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We 

further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we 

neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one 

year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due; 



XX. (a) The company is not required to transfer unspent amount to a fund specified in Schedule VII to 

the Companies Act for other than ongoing projects. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of 

the Order is not applicable for the year; 

(b) The company has not spent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on ongoing 

project. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(.xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year. 

For CNK & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 101961W/W-100036 

Rachit Sheth 

Partner 

Membership No.158289 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: 22nd May 2024 

UDIN: 24158289BKAOIC4647 



ANNEXURE uB" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of BHARAT 

PARENTERALS LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31 st March,2024 in conjunction with our audit of 

the Standalone Financial Statementsof the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The company's management and Board of Directors of the company is responsible for 

establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial 

reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include 

the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements of the Company that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

orderly and efficient conduct of its business,the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and 

the Standards on Auditingprescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 

extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance 

Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements of the company were established and maintained and if such controls 

operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements of the company and their operating effectiveness. 

Our audit of internal financial controls over financialreporting included obtaining an 

understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 

material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 

internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 



judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone 

Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtainedis sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 

and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) 

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 

receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with 

authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable 

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 

disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 

the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 

due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 

internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 

internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 



Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

Company has, in all material respects, an internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements of the Company and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 

operating effectively as at 31 st March, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting 

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For CNK & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 101961W/W-100036 

Rachit Sheth 

Partner 

Membership No.158289 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: 22nd May 2024 

UDIN: 24158289BKAQIC4647 



BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
CIN:L24231GJ1992PLC018237 
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, Z0Z4 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKIIS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

Sr. PartlcuJars 
No. 

ASSETS 
(1) Non current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 
(b) Investment Properties 
(c) Pioanc;al Assets 

[i) Investment in subsidiaries 
(li) Loans 

(iii) Other Financial assets 
(d)Deferred tax assets (net) 
(e) Other Non Current Assets 

(2} Current assets 
(a) Inventories 
[b) Financial Assets 

(i) Trade receivables 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iii) Bank Balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 
(Jv) Loans 
( v] Other financial assets 

(c) Other current assets 
( d) Current tax Assets 

EQUITV AND LIABILITIES 
[1) Equity 

(a) Equity Share capital 
(b) Other Equity 

Total Assets 

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 

LIABILITIES 
(2) Non-Current I labllltles 

(a) Financial Liabilities 
(!) Borrowings 

(b) Provisions 
{ c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 

(3) Current liabilities 
(a) EiD~D,ia! Liahilitii:.:; 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Trade payables 

a) total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises 

and Small Enterprises 
(iii] Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities 
( c) Provisions 
(d) Current Tax Liability (Net) 

Total Lia blllties 

Total Equity aod Llaoutttes 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our Report of even date 

For C N K & A.s.soclates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

F;;::::::; r61WJW•1:::,,. 

1r=□~\).--Rachlt Sheth ~ ~ 
1l!: 

Partner ~~ / \"'l. 
Membership Na.; 1582.89 ~tD, ,., 

Place: Vadodara 
Date: 22nd May, 2024 

Note 
No 

3 
4 

5 
6 
7 
B 
9 

10 

11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 

17 
18 

19 
20 
8 

21 
22 

23 
24 
25 

Asat Asat 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

3,846.54 3,527.69 
89.46 98.52 

4,860.74 3,840.00 
7,590.68 5,385.13 

309.22 321.26 
11.67 -

190.85 178.B9 

5,443.16 3,784.22 

13,977.60 11,239.88 
142.99 635.46 
123.36 107.49 

10.73 6.57 
354.50 376.79 

1,736.29 1,300.99 
27.50 -

38,715.31 30,802.87 

581.97 577.47 
20 779.00 18528.79 

21,360.97 19,106.25 

365.82 6B8.96 
210.2.9 132.66 

- 39.88 

7,936.42 3,882.43 

92..56 401.79 
5,225.31 4,390.53 

1,479.24 1,000.77 
1,899.60 998.46 

145.10 107.15 
- 54.00 

17,354.34 11,696.62 

38,715.31 30,802.87 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 
BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 

Bharat R Desai 
Managing Director 

DIN; 005~16. 

~~· 
Krutika Bhatt 
Company Secretaty 

Place: Vadodara 
Date: 22nd May, 2024 

2P-
Dlrector 

t:: 
Chief Financial Officer 



BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
CIN:L24231GJ1992PLC018237 
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKIIS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

Sr.No. Particulars 

I Revenue From Operations 
II Other Income 

Ill Total Income (1+11) 

IV EXPENSES 
Cost of materials consumed 
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 

Changes in Inventories of Finished goods, Stock-in-Trade and work 
in-progress 
Employee benefits expense 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortization expense 
Other expenses 

Total expenses OVJ 

V Profit/(Loss) before tax (Ill-IV) 

VI Tax expense: 
(1) Current tax 
(2) Deferred tax 
(3) Short/ (Excess) provision of tax in respect of earlier years 

VII Profit/ (Loss) for the period (V-VI) 

VIII Other Comprehensive Income 
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
- Remeasurement of Defined benefit plans 
- Income tax relating to Remeasurement of Defined benefit 

plans 

Total other comprehensive income (VUI) 

IX Total comprehensive income for the period {VU+VUI) 

X Earnings per equity share: 
(1) Basic 
(2) Diluted 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
As per our Report of even date 

For C N K & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 101961 W /W-100QJ6 ... 

l / '~1 if '~(vt-.DODt,RP--JifJ 
~\ ) ;;:_,, 

~~-S:1/ 
Rachit Sheth 'l:f?E.£f'!!!J·• 
Partner 
Membership No.: 158289 

Place: Vadodara 
Date: 22nd May, 2024 

Note No. 

2.6 
27 

28 

29 

30 

31 
32 

3&4 
33 

34 

35 

Yearended Year ended 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

25,415.74 21,798.15 
1,195.66 1,883.84 

26,611.40 23,681.98 

17,316.50 14,606.93 

40.88 116.48 
(1,518.97) (975.33) 

1,961.12 1,693.32 
318.83 218.59 
639.80 584.B0 

4,773.14 4,220.28 

23,531.31 20,465.05 

3,080.09 3,216.93 

868.89 840.32 
(44.87) (57.08) 

(3.291 . 

2 259.36 2,433.69 

(26.54) 5.75 
6.6B (1.45) 

(19.861 4.30 

2 239.51 2438.00 

38.81 42.14 
38.81 42.14 

~ · 
For and on behalf of Board ofDlrectors of 

BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 

Bharat R Desai 
Managing Director 
DIN: 00552596 

~· 
Krutlka Bhatt 
Company Secretary 

Place: Vadodara 
Date: 22nd May, 2024 

==r-
Director 

DIN: 03024324 

f-' 
Jignesh Shah 

Chief Financial Officer 



BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 

CJN:L24Z31GJ1992 PLCO lffS 7 

STIINDALONH STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FO,t THE YIIAR 6NDl!D 31ST MARCH, :l.024 

AlJ. AMOUNl'S AIU: 11'1 RS. l.AKHS UNLESS OTHHRWJSe STATED 

Parllcllllr• 

A 
Proflt befbra income tax 

AdjllSbne!ltsll>r; 
Deprectation :and amortisation expense 
(Gaio]/Loss on Sales of Proporcy, Plant •nd Equipments (llet) 
Fair wluaticn oflnvestment-5 through FVl"PL 

Amount no lon~eT "Davablc written bade 
(GainJ/Loss on Sal .. of Investment (Net) 
Share B"-'l<XI Poymont 
Flnanc111 Cost 
Unreollsed Fore1Gn exd>ange fluctus.tton 
Intare.st: Income 

Operating pro8t before wo•Jdng ""pita! <haoi;e• 

Movements ID worldng capita!: 
Assets 

(Increase)/ Decrease in tradl!I recelv-ables 
(lncreasoJ / Decrease !n lnV<>l\lOr!es 
(rnc:rc.aso) / Dec:reas111 in otb~r firlancial assets 
(Jncr~~J / Decrease in Loacs 
(Iner~)/ Decrease in othercul"NllntU&et.$ 
(Increase)/ Dec:reasu i11 other non curre-ntassets: 

LlabUlties 
I ru:rease / (Decrease) In tn~ payable, 
lncreaso / [De<rease) In proY1slons 
Increase/ {Oac..-a-a~) In other current liabilities 
lnCl'IOaU / (lle¢rea,e) in other financial liabilitios 

C1$h pnerated from operations: 

Direct taxes paid (net) 

Net ash l"rom opcrnttng :rdlvltl,.. (A) 

B f.ash floWli from tnvesdng arttutttes • 
Purchase of Property, pwit al>d equipments 
(lndudl"3 C.pital work 1n progress Jo<ludlng capital Advance) 
Proc,,eds of sale of Propel\)', plaotand egulpmeols 
Purchase of investtnents ln subsidlarles 
crncree..,;e l / Decre:11se Bank BaJances other than cash and. cash equivalents 
Interest R«eived 

Net c,sb (used) In lnvc<llng acdvllles (BJ 

C f.aab fJ9w from flnandnr acttvttlei : 
Proceeds from Wue of skaN1s 
Dividend Paid 
Proc<eds/(R~payruent) oflong term llorto,ving;, 
Procoads/(Repayment] of short term Borrowilll(S 
l'lllllnCOCost 

Net cash [used) In Onandng actMtta. [CJ 

NliT INCREASti IN CASH AND CASH l!QU[V ALEN TS [[A) + (8) + (CJ[ 

CASH AND CASH EQU[VALENTSAT THE BBG!NNINGOFTHEYEAR 

8alaru:es with ban]II; 

[a) In currentao::1;1unts 

(b) lo Cash Crodit Account 

Bffectof exchange dlffereru:es on resta~ment of foreiKn currency cash and cash equivalents 

Cashon Hand 

CASH AND CASH BQUJVALENl'S AT THE END OF TlfE YEAR 

For th 1: year eoded 31st Mardi., For the year eru!ed31ot Ma.-.b, 
2024 2023 

3,080.09 3,216.93 

639.80 581.llO 
4.44 (563.02] 

2050 
l'-11 -

{53.15) 
13.96 53.09 

318.83 218.59 
(84.37) 11.21 

(417.22) (182.73) 

3,567,6S 3,306.23 

(2,640.30] (3,914.98] 
(1,658.95) [1,708.18] 

36.3S 2,028.26 
(2,209.72) (3,161.27) 

(435.31) (429.31) 
[11,961 58.61 

519.4S 2,541.70 
115.57 45.1S 
901.1S 574.90 
474.65 381.21 

(l,34-1.41) (277.66) 

950.39 B78.36 

rz.291.so1 (1 156.041 

(1,036.08] (506.50) 
70.09 989,69 

(1,020.74) (2,177.25) 
{15.88) 20.62 
392.90 278-58 

11 609.701 11.394.86 

44.55 
(39.47) 

[323.15) (253.32) 
4,054.00 3,324.27 
(318.83) (218.59) 

JA17.10 .!.852.36 

148'.411 3H.46 

634.34 332.8B 

14-0.61 ;67.23 

- 65.76 

140.61 6SZ.9~ 

6.95 11.121 

147.56 631..87 

2.38 2.47 

149.94 634.34 

(l) T~ above cash flow Statement has been prepared undt:r the!" Ind l~ct Method" as slrt out in Indian Acoounrinc Srnn.dards - 7, "Statement of CIIISh Flow", 
w. 

The aa:ampanying notfl!r are an l11tes;ral part of the Hnanclsl statements. 
As. per our Report of cvan data 

Placo; Vadodan, 
Date: 22nd May, 2024 

~-
For a11d on bll:'half ofBoani of Direc:ton of 

Bl!AllATPAllENT~E""'_,"m.~--

BbaratRD0"31 
Manai;ng Director 

01 N, 00552 96 

KnUll<a l!hatt 
COll'lp!Ulf Se<netary 

Plac<: Vadodara 
Date: 22nd May• 202♦ 

H gShab 
Director 

7 4324 

g;:.h-
Chief Financial Officer 



BHARAT PARENTERALS IJMITED 
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MAROI, 2024 
AI.L AMOUNTS ARE IN RS, LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATIID 

a. Equity Share Capital: 

As ii t 31st March, 20.24 As at 31st Man:h, 2023 
Particular 

Balance at the OlStAprll, 2023 

Changes ln Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors 

Restated balance at the 01st AprU, 2 02 3 

Changes In equity share capital during the current year 
Balance at the 31st March, 2024 

b. Otbl!l" Equttr. 

( 11 Current renort!n1r nerlod 

Partkular 

Balance at the Obt Aprll, 2023 
Changes in accDuntlng policy or prior period errors 
Restated balanre ii t Che 01st April, 202 3 
Total Com prehenslve J ncome for the current year 
Addition during the year 
Transfer during the year 
Remeasurement of the Net Defined benefit 11a b!Uty / asset, net of tax effect 
Balance at the 31st March, 2024 

' 21 P ,p , rtimt 11, l d rev1011sre o er o 

Parncular 

Balance at the 01.st Apr11, 2022 
Changes ln accounting policy or prior period errors 
Restated balance at the 01st April, 202 2 
Total Comprehenslve Income for the current year 
Addition during the year 
Tr.insfer during the year 
Remeasurement of the Net DeHned benefit Uability /asset. net of tax effect 
Balance at the 31st Man:b, 2023 

The accompany! ng notes are an Integral part of the financial statements. 
As per our Reportofeven date 

For C N K & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: LOL961W/W-100036 

✓ 
Racblt Sheth 
Partner 
Membership No,: 158289 

Place: Vadodara 
Date: 22nd May, 2024 

Nos. 

5,774,666 

-
. 

45,000 
S,B19,666 

General Reserve 

3.99 
-
-. 
---

3.99 

General R-rve 

3.99 
-. 
-
-
-. 

3.99 

Rs.lnlakhs Nos. Rs. In Lakhs 

577.47 5,774,666 577.47 
- -
- -

4.50 -
581.97 S,774,666 !'.77.47 

Reserves and Surulus 
Security 

Employee Stock Retained Total 
Premium 
reserve 

Option lleserve Earnings 

152.37 S3.09 18,319.33 18,528.78 
- - - -
- - - -. 2,259.36 2,259.36 
- S9.28 - 59.28 

107.10 (112.37) (43,31) {48.58) 
- . (19.06} {19.86) 

259.47 0.00 20.515.S3 20,779.00 

Reserves and Surulus 
Security 

Employee Stock Retained Total 
PremiWD 

Option Reserve Eamlnp 
reserve 

152.37 - 15,88133 16,037.70 

- - - . 
- - -

- 2,433.69 2,433.69 
- 53.09 - 53.09 
- - . . 
. . 4.30 4.30 

152.37 53.09 18319.33 18,528.79 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 
BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 

rc-< 
-&-/"' 
Bharat R Desai 

Managl ng DI re,,tor 

DIN: 005:lg: »~~-
Knltlka Bhatt 

Company Se ere ta ry 

Place: Vadodara 
Date: 22nd May, 20 24 

... 

mangSbah 
Director 

7 024324 

'CJ?:.~ Jlgnesh Shah 
Chief Financial Officer 



BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. COMPANY OVERVIEW: 

1.1 Description of Business 

The Company is a Public Limited Company domiciled in India and is incorporated 
under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. Its shares are listed on 
one recognised stock exchanges in India. The registered office of the Company is 
located at Vill.- Haripura, Savli, Baroda - 389 330. The Company is dealing in 
Manufacturing of Pharmaceutical Formulations. 

1.2 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 

i. Compliance with Ind AS 

The Financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act to 
be read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and 
the relevant amendment rules issued thereafter. 

ii. Historical cost convention 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except the 
following: 

• Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 

• Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value. 

iii. Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company's 
functional currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except otherwise 
indicated. 

- \ 

,':':. , · 
,, . 

\ 



iv. Composition of Financial Statements 

The financial statements comprise: 

- Balance Sheet 
- Statement of Profit and Loss 
- Statement of Changes in Equity 
- Staten1ent of Cash Flow 
- Notes to Financial Statements 

1.3 Key Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expense. Actual results may differ 
from these estimates. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any 
change in these estimates and assumptions will generally be reflected in the 
financial statements in current period or prospectively, unless they are required to 
be treated retrospectively under relevant accounting standards. 

2.1 Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Notes 
A. Property, Plant and Equipment: 

i. Recognition and measurement 

Freehold land is carried at cost and not depreciated. All other items of property, 
plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Income and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the 
item to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 
manner intended by management, are recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 



If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful 
life, then they are accounted and depreciated for as separate items (major 
components) of property, plant and equipment. 

An Item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when 
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the 
asset. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

ii. Subsequent Expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic 
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. 

iii. Depreciation 

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of the assets (other than 
freehold land) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the Written 
Down Value Method on the basis of useful lives specified in part C of Schedule II to 
the Companies Act, 2013. The Estimated useful lives, residual values and 
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the 
effect of any changes in the estimated accounted for on a prospective basis. 

B. Capital Work-in-Progress 

Plant and properties in the course of construction for production, supply or 
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. 
Cost includes professional fees and borrowing costs (for qualifying asset) 
capitalized in accordance with the Company's accounting policies. Such plant and 
Properties are classified and capitalized to the appropriate categories of Property, 
Plant and Equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of 
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the asset 
are ready for their intended use. 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment 
outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under "Other 
Non Current Assets" and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are 
disclosed under 'Capital work-in-progress'. 



C. Investment Properties 

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, is 
classified as investment property. Investment property is measured initially at its 
cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to 
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs 
and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an investment 
property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is de-recognised. 
Though the Company measures investment property using cost based 
measurement, the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. The 
Company has used government registration rates for the purpose of determining 
fair value of Land and Buildings. 

D. Impairment: 

i. Non - financial assets 

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication 
that any property, plant and equipment with finite life may be impaired. If any such 
impairment exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to determine the 
extent of impairment, if any. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 
amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of 
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair valueless costs of disposal and value in use. 
If the recoverable amount of the asset ( or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be 
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating 
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in 
statement of Profit and Loss. 

E. Leases 

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of 
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 



Company as a lessee 

(A) Lease Liability 
At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present 
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be 
discounted using incremental borrowing rate. 

(B) Right-of-use assets 
Initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the 
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. 

Subsequent measurement 

(A) Lease Liability 
Company measure the lease liability by (a) increasing the carrying amount to reflect 
interest on the lease liability; (b) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease 
payments made; and (c) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment 
or lease modifications. 

(B) Right-of-use assets 
Subsequently measured at cost less accwnulated depreciation and impairment losses. 
Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight line 
basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the under lying asset. 

Impairment 
Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair 
value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis 
unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those 
from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash 
Generating Unit (CCU) to which the asset belongs. 

Short term Lease: 
Short term lease is that, at the commencement date, has a lease term of 12 months or 
less. A lease that contains a purchase option is not a short-term lease. If the company 
elected to apply short term lease, the lessee shall recognise the lease payments 



associated with those leases as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the lease 
term or another systematic basis. The lessee shall apply another systematic basis if 
that basis is more representative of the pattern of the lessee1s benefit. 

As a lessor 
Leases for which the company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. 
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases 
are classified as operating leases. 

Lease income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on straight line basis 

over the lease term. 

F. Inventories: 

Inventories are measured at the lower of Cost and Net Realizable Value. The cost of 
inventories includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production 
or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present 
location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in 
progress, costs include an appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on 
normal operating capacity. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, 
less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. The net realisable value 
of work in progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related 

finished products. 

Raw materials, components and other supplies held for use in the production of 
finished products are not written down value below cost except in cases where 
material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished 
products will exceed their net realisable value. 

G. Investments and Other Financial Assets: 

i. Classification: 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 



• Those to be measured subsequently at fair value ( either through other 
comprehensive income, or through Statement of Profit and Loss), and 

• Those measured at amortized cost. 

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the 
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at 
fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in Statement of Profit and Loss or 
other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend 
on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity 
instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable 
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair 
value through other comprehensive income. 

The Company reclassifies debt or equity investments when and only when its 
business model for managing those assets changes. 

ii. Measurement 

At initial recognition, in case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit and 
loss, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction 
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss are 
expensed in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(a) Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows 
where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are 
measured at amortized cost. 

(b) Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI): Assets that are held 
for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the 
assets cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured 
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI), except for the recognition of impairment gains or 
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized 
in Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to 



profit and loss and recognized in other gains/ losses. Interest income from these 
financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. 

(c) Fair value through profit and loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for 
amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through Statement of Profit and 
Loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income. 

Trade Receivables: 

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services 
performed in the ordinary course of business and reflects Company's unconditional 
right to consideration (that is, payment is due only on the passage of time). Trade 
receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain 
significant financing components. The Company holds the trade receivables with the 
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them 
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss 
allowance. 

iii. Equity Instrwnents 

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the 
Company's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity 
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and 
losses to Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividends from such investments are 
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss as other income when the Company's 
right to receive payment is established. 

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are 
recognized in other gain/losses in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment 
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at 
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value. 

iv. De-recognition 

A financial asset is derecognized only when 

(a) The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial 
asset or 



(b) Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but 
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 

H. Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand 
and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is 

adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals 
of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or 
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from the 
operating, investing and financing activities of the company segregated. 

In the Cash-flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank 
overdrafts, which are included as current borrowings in liabilities on the balance 
sheet 

I. Financial Liabilities: 

i. Measurement 

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in the case of loans, 
borrowings and payables recognized net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and 
borrowings. 

ii. De-recognition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is 
discharged or cancelled or expires. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of 



Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the Effective 
Interest rate (EIR) amortization process. 

J. Foreign Currency Translation: 

Initial Recognition: 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency by applying to 
the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and 
the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

Conversion: 

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary 
items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency 
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction and non­
monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation 
denominated in a foreign cmTency are reported using the exchange rates that 
existed when the values were determined. 

K. Revenue recognition: 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or 
services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration 
to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or 
services. The Company assesses promises in the contract that are separate 
performance obligations to which a portion of transaction price is allocated. 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of 
the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on the delivery of the goods. 

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are 
separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs 
to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Company considers the 
effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing component 
and consideration payable to the customer like return and trade discounts. 



Sales are disclosed excluding net of sales returns and Goods and Service Tax (GST). 

i. Interest income 

Interest income from the financial assets is recognized on a time basis, by reference 
to the principle outstanding using the effective interest method provided it is 
probable that the economic benefits .associated with the interest will flow to the 
Company and the amount of interest can be measured reliably. The effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of that financial 
asset. 

ii. Export Benefits 

Export incentives are recognized when the right to receive them as per the tenns of 
the entitlement is established in respect of exports made. 

The benefits accrued under the duty drawback scheme and Merchandise Export 
from India Scheme (MEIS) as per the Import and export Policy in respect of exports 
under the said scheme are recognised when there is a reasonable assurance that the 
benefit will be received and the company will comply with all attached conditions. 
The above benefits has been included under the head 'Export Incentives.' 

iii. Dividend income: 

Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is 

established. 

iv. Other Income: 

Other income is accounted for on accrual basis except where the receipt of income is 
uncertain in which case it is accounted for on receipt basis. 

Oaims/Insurance Claim etc are accounted for when no significant uncertainties are 
attached to their eventual receipts. 

' 



L. Employee benefits: 

i. Short-term obligations: 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected 
to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the 
employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employee's services 
up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be 
paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee 
benefit obligations in the balance sheet. 

ii. Provident Fund: 

Contribution towards provident fund for employees is made to the regulatory 
authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are 
classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any 
further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis. 

iii. Gratuity: 

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the "Gratuity Plan") 
covering eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. 
The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, 
death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the 
respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment. The gratuity plan in 
Company is funded through annual contributions to ICICI Prudential life insurance 
under its Company's Gratuity Scheme. The liability or asset recognised in the balance 
sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation at the end of the_ reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. 
The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit 
method) at the end of the year. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is 
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of 
government bonds. Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity 
in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. They are included 
in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. 
Past-service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

Ir 



iv. Compensated Absences: 

Entitlement of employees accumulating earned leave and eligibility of compensation 
or encashment of the same is also a defined benefit obligation and is treated as long 
term in nature in terms of the policies of the Company for the same. The value of 
obligation towards the same is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation using 
projected unit credit method as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gain / losses are 
immediately taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deferred. 

v. Share based Payment 

The grant date fair value of options granted to employees is recognised as an 
employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, on a straight line basis, 
over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate of equity instruments that 
will eventually vest. At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its 
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the 
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the 
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to 
the equity-settled employee benefits reserves. 

M. Borrowing costs: 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is 
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying 
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for 
their intended use or sale. 

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings 
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs 
eligible for capitalisation. 

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

It,..../ 
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N. Income tax: 

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current 
period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes 
in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences. 

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or 
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in India. Management 
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in 
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions 
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences 
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in 
the financial statements. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the 
carry forward unused tax losses can be utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit 
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates 
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the temporary differences 
are expected to be received or settled. 

0. Provisions and Contingencies: 

i. Provisions 

Provisions for legal claims, product warranties and make good obligations are 
recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not 
recognised for future operating losses. 



Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will 
be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a 
whole. A provision is 1·ecognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to 
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small. 

Long-term provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows 
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money. 
Short term provisions are carried at their redemption value and are not offset 
against receivables from reimbursements. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting 
period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised 
as interest expense. 

ii. Contingent Liabilities 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from 
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non­
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either 
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable 
estimate of the amount cannot be made. 

iii. Contingent Assets 

Contingent Assets are not recognised as but are disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements. 

P. Earnings per Share: 

i. Basic earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing: 

........ .:.,.;:.,..<I',.. 



- The profit attributable to owners of the companyl excluding any costs of 
servicing equity other than ordinary shares. 

- By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the 
year. 

ii. Diluted earnings per share 

Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic 
earnings per share to take into account: 

- The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with 
dilutive potential equity shares1 and 

- The weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have 
been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity 
shares. 

Q. Segment reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting 
to the Chief Operating Decision Maker 11CODM11 of the Company. The CODM is 
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating 
segment. The Company has monthly review and forecasting procedure in place and 
CODM reviews the operations of the Company as a whole. 

R. Exceptional items: 

Certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, 
pertaining to the ordinary activities of the Company is such that its disclosure 
improves the understanding of the performance of the Company1 such income or 
expense is classified as an exceptional item and accordingly, disclosed in the notes 
accompanying to the financial statements. 



2.2 Recent pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to 
the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as 
issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified 
any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the 
Company. 



BHARAT PARENTERALS UMITED 
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 

ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS, LAKRS UNLESS OTHERWISE Sf ATED 

3 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Particulars Land • Freehold Wlndmlll 

Gross carrying amount As at 31st March, 2023 34.08 234.63 

Additions 
Disposals . 81.06 

Gross carrying amou11tAs at 31st March. 2024 34.08 153.S7 

Acaimulated depredation as at 31st March, 2023 - 136.68 

Charge for the year 9,42 

Disposals 29.95 

Accumulated depredation as at 31st March, 2024 - 116,15 

Net carrvina amount; 

A• at 31st March, 2024 U.08 37.42 

As at 31st Mardi. 2023 34.08 97.95 

Particulars Land , Freehold Windmill 

Gross c:arrylng amount As at 31st March, 2022 41S.34 234.63 

Additions 
Disposals (381.26) 

Gro•• canylng amount As at 31st March, 2.023 34.08 234.63 

Accumulated depredation "" at 31st March, 2022 124.0S 

Charge for Ille year - 12.63 

Disposals -

Accumniated depredation as at :! 1st March, 2023 - 136.68 

Net ran:vtng amount: 

As at 31st March, 2023 34.08 97.95 

As at 31st March, 2022 415.34 110.59 

Notes, 

me.:tr1ca1 Factory 
1ns1anat101t Buildlno 

331.57 1,120.20 
139.27 

331.57 1,259.47 

217.641 309.06 
29.53 84.26 

247.13 393.32 

84.-44 866.15 

113,97 811,14 

Electrical Factory 
Installation Buildlno 

327.80 970.98 
7.08 149.22 

(3.30) 

331.57 1,120.20 

189.66 240.04 
32.12 69.02 
(3.18} 

217,60 309.06 

113.97 811.H 

139.14 730.94 

Building - Oth"'s 
Plant and Fumlrore and Vehicles Computers 
Fnulnme1tt Fixture• 

496.33 4.039.28 550.H 504.90 100.li6 

B11.02 58.81 - 15.03 

- 107.70 56.66 -
¥,16.33 4,742.59 608.94 4-48.24 115.69 

237.71 2,197.61 345.82 354.97 84.64 

16.81 JBl.S8 54.19 42.96 12.00 

100,67 40.28 

254.52 2,478.53 4G0.01 357.65 96.63 

241.81 2,264.07 208.93 90.59 19.06 

258.62 1,841.66 204.31 149.93 16.03 

Building • Odu!rs 
Plant and F11rnl1Ure and 

Vehlcies Computers 
Ennlnment Fixttlres 

¥,16,33 3,796.16 510.47 4S7.61 88.33 

298.28 39.67 47.29 12.33 

(55.16) -
496.33 4,039.28 SS0.14 504.90 100.66 

211.114 1,876.60 303.30 303.41 74.32 

25.87 330.90 42.52 51.56 10.31 

- (9.88) - - -
237.71 2,197.61 345.82 354.97 84.64 

2S8.62 1,841.66 204.31 149.93 16.03 

284.49 1,919.56 207.17 154.ZO 14.01 

1 . Assets pledged o.s security : 
l'he fl"1!e hold Land and Building); . all movable Plant and Machi nerles and other assets are pledged as security on part passu basis \D Ille bankers under a mortgage, The Compan.y is not allowed to seU these as.sets to other entity. 

•• J '··· .. ·, 
"\. . ·, 

~~ <~\ 
,_,. ~ -<,\ ',,.., \ .. ' lu . 

i • u <?! 

"'~_Al;/ -~ ;-..."t"" \'");'p ,:s-..,, 1/ 
' ,,. cty"' --~D!,S,. 

Caplt.al work· Total 
Jn.nro~ss 

7,411.78 
1,024.13 

245.43 

8,190.48 

3,884.09 
630.74 
170.90 

4,343.93 

3,846.54 

3,527.69 

Capital work· Total 
in·ll'llt,-:ress 

62,10 7,359.7S 
553.86 

(62,10) (501.83) 

7,411.78 

3,322.21 
574.94 
[13.06) 

- 3,884.09 

- 3,527.69 

62.10 4,037.54 



BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
NOTES TO STANDALONE FCNANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

4 InvestmentProperties 

Asat 
Particulars 31st March 2024 

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 
(at costless accumulated depreciation) 

Building given on Operating Lease 
Opening Gross Block 149.93 

Additions -
Closing Gross Block 149.93 

Less: 
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 51.41 
Add : Depreciation for the year 9.06 
Closing Accumulated Depreciation 60.47 

Total 89.46 

Note: Refer note (46) for other disclosure. 

Asat 
31stMarch 2023 

149.93 
-

149.93 

41.55 
9.86 

51.41 

98.52 



BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

5 Investments 

Particulars 
Asat 

31st March, 2024 

Investment valued at cost 
a) Investment In subsidiary (Cost) 

Investment in Shares of lnnoxel Lifesciences Private Limited 4,590.74 
rev 4,59,07,407 & PY 3,56,99,998 Nos. Equity Sharesl 

Investment in Shares ofVarenyam Biolifesciences Private 270.00 
Limited rev 27,00,000 & PY 27,00,000 Nos. Equi~ Shares) 

Total 4860.74 
Aeere11ate amount of quoted Investments 

Asat 
31st Marcll, 2 02 3 

3,570.00 

270.00 

3840.00 

During the year company has acquired additional 1,02,07,409 Nos. of equity shares in lnnoxel Lifesciences Private Limited 

("!LPL'). 

6 Loans 

Particulars 
Asat Asat 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Unsecured, considered good 
- Loans and Advances to Subsidiaries (Refer note no. 43) 7,590.68 5,385.13 

Total 7 590.68 5385.13 

7 Other Financial Assets 

Particulars 
Asat Asat 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

[i) Bank deposits wlth more than 12 months of orl2lnal maturity 242.31 254.35 

(Ill Deposits 66.91 66.91 

Total 309,22 321.26 

8 Deferred tax assets fnetl 

Particulars 
Asat As at 

31st March 2024 31stMarch 2023 
Deferred Tax Assets 
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: 
Provision For Employee Benefit 92.76 56.99 

Remeasuremcnts of the defined benefit plans - 3.36 

Others 52.45 42.38 

TotalDTA 145.21 102.74 
Deferred Tax Liability 
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: 
Property, Plant & Equipment's 130.22 142.61 

Remea.surements of the defined benefitnlans 3.31 -
Tota!DTL 133.54 142.61 

Net Deferred Tax ( Assetl/ Llabllltv C11.67l 39.88 

9 Other Non - current Assets 

Partltulars 
Asat Asat 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Unsecured, considered good 

[al Capita 1 Advances 91.09 79.13 

(b]Balance with GovernmentAuthorities 99.76 99.76 

Total 190.8S 178.89 



BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATllD 

10 Inventories 

Particulars 

loYe!llQri~:i (lower Qf ,a.st i.!Dd Dill [t:alis~d !i!IY.ru 
Raw Materials 
Raw Material (F&D) 
Work-in-Progress 
Finished goods 
Goods in Transit (Raw materials) 

Total 

11 Trade Receivables 

Particulars 

Trade Receivables considered Good-Secured 

Trade Receivables considered Good-Unsecured 
- Receivable from Related Parties (Refer Note 37(d)) 
- Others 

Trade Receivable which have significant increase in credit risk 

Trade Receivables credit impaired 

Total 
Less : Expected Credit Loss Allowance 
Total 
Note: Refer Note 47 for Aging of Trade Receivable. 

12 Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Balances with banks 
(aJ In current accounts 
(b) In cash credit accounts (Refer note 21 {i)) 

Cashon Hand 

Total 

13 Bank Balances 

Particulars 

Other Bank Balances 
(a) Term deposits with original,maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 
months 
(b) Balances held as Margin Money 
(c) In earmarked accounts 
- Balances held in unpaid dividend accounts 

Total 

Asat 
31st March, 2024 

2,107.23 
34.34 

436.90 
2,488.86 

375.83 

5 443,16 

Asat 
31st March. 2024 

1,292.42 
12,855.50 
14,147.92 

38.04 

-

1418S.96 
(208.37) 

13,977.60 

Asat 
31st March, 2024 

140.61 
. 

2.38 

142.99 

Asat 
31st Mardi, 2024 

1.64 

117.88 

3.84 

123.36 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

2,225.20 
34.78 

422.44 
984.36 
117.44 

3,784.22 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

1,138.46 
10,247.46 
11.38S.92 

22.33 

. 

11408.25 
(168.37) 

11,239.88 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

567.23 
65.76 

2.47 

635.46 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

1.64 

105.85 

-
107.49 



BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
NOTES TO ST ANDA LONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

14 Loans 

Particulars 
Asat 

31st March, 2024 

(a) Loans to Employees 10.73 

Total 10.73 

15 Other Financial Assets 

Particulars 
Asat 

31st March, 2024 

(a) Interest accrued on deposits 98.33 
(b) Security and other deposits 255.67 
(c) Term deposits 0.50 

Total 3S4.S0 

16 Other Current Assets 

Particulars 
Asat 

31st March, 2024 

(a) Advance to Suppliers 279.78 
(b) Advance to employees 0.06 
(c) Expenses paid in advance 146.20 
( d) Balances with government authorities 1,310.26 

Total 1. 736.29 

. r 
' \ 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

6.57 

6.57 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

74.01 
302.28 

0.50 

376,79 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

324.05 
0.12 

127.04 
849.78 

1,300.99 



BHARAT MRENTERAIS LIMITED 
NOTES TO STANDAID.NE nNANCIAL STA1'DIENT5 FDR TIIEYEAR ENDD> surr MARCH, ZDzt 
AU. AMOlJNrS ARE IN RS. lAKHS UNLESS OTHlDl'WISE S'fATED 

17 51lare0lpltlll 

A>llborlsed t•ulN Share <A• ltal 

ParUAlan 

aJll11thorbed 
63.00.000 • lklultv1bart:s of ~s.10/- each 

bl 5hores bsutd. subscrlbedaa<I lllllvwl<I 
C.Y. S0.19.666 (P.Y, 57,74,666\- Eooltv ,hares or lb.10/- mh 

<l Sbaresflllly oald 
~Y. 58,l,9,666 /P.Y. 57 ,74,666) • 6qultv ,hm>, of 11s. 10/· ea<h 

d) Reoo11~m .. tlDJ1 ufthe number of sZl:IRS ~dl111 at the beBDnloa 11nd at~ end oftb11tret,0rtlD.1 period. 

Particulars 

Atlhc beKtnn!naottMpert.od 
Add flt.,.,, , Ch>.n•es4u~no tllev.., (rtl'w OOlo No. 531 
Al:l;heend r,ft!,eA flrlod 

tl t,emis & Rllhts atllllcbed to aadt dass or mares; 

Alaclisl lllarc:tt...-:u..-:f 
t,/um.,_ Rs. bll.akh• 

5.774,,6(;6 571.47 
45000 ..so 

5 • 19 666 &8L97 

IIHt Aut 
UdKom,,2024 31st March, ?023 

,. ... 630.DO 

030.00 63U.00 

SD!.97 571.47 = .~"l"'J.47 

,.,,.,. .,.,,7 
se•.97 S77.47 

A .. 1 2 
Numller> Rs. In Lakh• 

5.714,6<56 571.47 

577~666 577.47 

The C,ampany has only cmc: d:a:.s gf equity Jb~ having par VIiii.Le gf R5. lD pt,r shar.. Each htlkler of eqult:yshur:s I; entfdd tDom, voba peT 1baro. In the event of Uie IJquldatJon of lhei Comp an)", the balders of equtty 
,~1NS vllD be t:ntu,ec1 to ruatw t<nn.ilnln1 assel5 af lNI Ccmpany. n.e di:Stributton will t,,e In proponton to di& numb~r 0f eqult;-shire:; held by the shareooldeB. 

f)Shar'eS rMHYcd for IS3U.e l&MeJ" opUou 

Pun.uant to at)proved employ~ ~todt: cptJim 11:be:m.e •Bharat Pattnt$ral~ ~mployee Stock Option Plan .2Q20-, the Comp.1ny h~s granmd 2.00.(IQO f.10:ll of employees $tock cptlcms: ofwhlch 45.0DO (31 M1n:h 2023: MIL) 

-ortheopdons h~ve bean 11tXWdud (also refer note S3). 

i_ • .,.._ ___ ..__ldl- of •·• 
,u.,.i.ltlMan.ft l.OH ..Mac"llRMlrdl, 

Pra11111terNJIIQlt Noofmlrw itti 11rtota1 :shares '6 ctiaoeo -US Ibo No of4larfl ~ ortotal sbues 
%<haopdwln1th• 

Y'"r ,ear 

ehan1tllO~eL 74-1,515 12.74% ·0.109<. 741,slS 12.1101, ILDO'!I, 

Htrni10. lle$~1 783.430 UMl'II ·0.11)% 783,430 13.S?'II, a.oO'II, 

fool• P, '1>ah soo Wl1% 0.00% SOD 0.01% Q,011'11, 

Sha.llir:shG.Deul 2,600 M4% 0.00% 2500 0,04% 0.00% 

BhahlmB.0.W 1;591 D.03% -Ml'I! 2,500 0.04% 0.00% 

Latalen S. Parikh 2.000 IJ.03'11, 0.00% woo O.Ol% 0.00% 

Dti~:el:&bllills arid stact PrlnW Llmlll!d 2,731.536 46.'l4'11 •ll.J7% 2,731,536 47.30'lb 0.00% 

b) 5bantJ b1tld.by alwa0Jdft'S mdl holdln.l :mon IMln G~ urtt..daaras 

Asatn•Manh,2-0lA- ,.. .. ,i.a:-. 202~ 
Sbareboldl!tf No. olshanlr PIUTll!IDbtp N@.O[ahua . .,,.._ 

fqully m,aros wll1I v«lng rtgbts 

Bb.ir;t ll De,i11l 
741.,StS 12,7-4% 741.,SlS 12&1% 

HlmaB.O...t 
103.430 1.3,46% 103,4!0 13.51'1, 

Dci:a-1 shanis 11nd sbDdc Private Umltsd 
2,731,536 46.94'11> 2.'7:11,536 47.30'l4> 

A,DI 5olt Oi .. s Pl"lv.ale UmJteii r An,harl 
..io.no 5.84% 340,130 s.-

TO"' 
4,596,611 '7&98'11, 4,596,61l 7'1,60% 

18 Odler l!<r•fly 

...... .... .. 
PartlCUlars 31slMardJ, 202+ u,01ui:11.2on 

0."""1- 3.99 3.99 

EM:plo,ee Stock ~tlon ~95111r.1• 
MO 53.09 

Set=\.lrllf Prslttium~erve 2S9.47 152.37 
Reta.1 .. .,,. - --' - ---

..... ,. ,aai, .. 
TDlal 

.. ,DO ....... 
A.nl ,.,.1 

¥artlnwi ... 31n Mardi, 2D'24 nst Maid!. 202:i 

GowmliRoscrvc 
M. l)e?' W:t BaltmO!I Sh01Jt 3.99 3,99 

3,99 3,99 

Eq:iluyeeStock Opdoll. Rcsene 
Bal.ilncc as per the la,t nna.ncLal :11atements 53.ll'l 

Add: Tw-,,,erva C:n::atcd dur1ni the yciar S9.20 53.09 

JM;&: Reg,erye Utlll9ed dW"ll\8 dill year t1Z.'37 

Total 0.00 $3.09 

ieatrlty Pl'Ollllm rHHVe 

Btblni:i= as i:ierthe last. flnenc:lsl st1Uementil ISZ.37 lSJ,31 

Add: fm~raassd durin1 the )"eQT 107.10 

Tolll 259,47 m,,:i, 

Retaln.ed F.arolnaS 
B:ll1cwe a, oer Ui• bst nnandal 11tttemem:s 1.8.319.ll 15.901.34 

Add: Profit lbr tlu: year a 0er Sbit.mentof Pr0Ht 11'1.d ams 2,259.36 2.4l3.6'1 

t.,u, liqu1tv DMdend (U,311 

Items afotbar Comprehensive lncom~ 
'19.B6' Remeasunn:iant or the Net Deftr,.ed bendlt llabml;)'/as,et.. J1atof tm: errei:t 

4.30 

Tobi 20.Sl~S:I 1"-'19.!3 

11U 'Ttie Gerun.l ~rve-ts u1ed from time t.a urcc to tranSNr profits from r~lalnod pmlngt rar approprbtlOll purpmts.. As. the GGJenll Jtawrv• IJC"611tsd by a 1r.lnsfer from orie caruponent or equity to a~er and 1, 
nDt11n Item olcthtr l:O.ITlpri,han:slv& in.com~. ltcn::i, 11'.duded J:r1 the ga1enl reserve ts not redas~fled su.bsaque-ntly ltO the Sta~menl er flront and Los,, 

HJ Emp!~se SuN::kOpdon Reserve 1, usad IC! recqrn1~ the Dllrval\1c of c:q:ulty ,ettlad shant bned plft"Cllllt traJ'JsadloM. 

183 Security premluo:i ~l'V4!i I! used w record the prcml\;in on mue c,f ,uqulty i;hareunder £SOP sduui:ie.The reserve bl ut1l1,8d In ;ux·.ordam;:e wlth lhe provl01lonof tha Companles M 2013. 
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. I.AKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

19 Borrowings 

Asat 
Particulars 31st March, 2024 

Secured - at amortized cost 
(a) Term Loans 
- from Banks (Refer below note (i) and (ii)) 339.17 
-Vehicle Loans (Refer below note (iii)) 26.65 

Total 365.82 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

685.83 
3.12 

688.96 

(i) The above Term loans are secured by first charge by way of hypothecation of all the movable machinery financed or to be financed 
under the said term loans by the respective banks. The above Term Loan also includes hypothecation of entire Plant & Machinery 
(excluding Plant & Machinery covered under Primary Security) of the Company Situated at Survey No, 144 & 146, Jarod Samlaya 
Road, Haripura Village, Savli, Vadodara (Both Present& Future). 

Interest rate on term loan is 1 Y MCLR (Presently 1 Y MCLR is 8.60%) + 0.60% p.a. i.e. 9.20% p.a. The Loan is repayable in 60 Equated 
monthly installment of Rs, 18, 75 lakhs. 

Interest rate on ECLGS loan is Repo + 2.4% presently 8.9% p.a. The Loan is repayable in 36 Equated monthly installment after the end 
of24 months of moratorium. 

(ii) Maturity profile of Secured Term loans are set out below: 

Particulars 
0-1 year 
1-2 years 
2-3 vears 

(iii) The above Vehicle Loans are secured by way of Hypothecation of respective Vehicles. 

20 Provisions 

Particulars 

a) Provision for employee benefits 
Provision for Compensated absences 
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 36) 

Total 

::::--

Amount 
351.98 
263.26 
102.56 

Asat Asat 
31st March 2024 31st Marc.h 2023 

91.68 70.55 
118.60 62.10 

210.29 132.66 
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21 Borrowings 

As at 
Particulars 

31st March, 2024 

Secured 
a) Current Maturities On Long Term Debt 
(Refer note 19 (i) & (ii)) 351.98 
b) Loans repayable on demand (Refer below note) 

• Working capital loan and Packing Credit 7,584.44 

Total 7 936.42 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

280.26 

3,602.17 

3882.43 
Note: (i) The above loan exclusively hypothecated against the entire current asset and entire movable fixed assets including plant and 
machinery (Present & Future) of the company, Further, the above loan is guaranteed by Mr. Bharat Desai & Mrs. Hima Desai. Rate of 
interest on the above cash credit facility ranges from 8% to 8. 7 4 % P.a. 

Note: (ii) The company has borrowings from banks secured against the current asset and quarterly returns filled for the same with 
the banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the company. 

22 Trade Payables 

Particulars 
Asat Asat 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Total outstanding due to Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 40) 92.56 401.79 
Total outstanding due to other than Micro and Small Enterprises 5,225.31 4,390.53 

Total 5 317.87 4,792.32 
Note: Refer Note 48 for Aging of Trade Payable. 
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23 Other Financial Liabilities 

Particulars 
Asat 

31stMarch 2024 

(a) Security Deposits 20.08 

(b) Other payable* 1,455.32 
(c) Unpaid Dividend 3.84 

Total 1479.24 
*Include Commission payable pertains to Sales. 

24 Other Current Liabilities 

Particulars 
Asat 

31st March, 2024 

(a) Advances from Customers 1,431.77 
(b) Statutory Dues 48.06 
(c) Salary and Wages Payable 126.05 
(d) Other payable 293.73 

Total 1899.60 

25 Provisions 

Particulars 
Asat 

31st March, 2024 

Provision for employee benefits 
(a) Provision for compensated absences 4.65 
(b) Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 36) 16.51 
(c) Provision for Bonus 123.93 

Total 145.10 

Asat 
31stMarch 2023 

21.50 
979.27 

-

1,000.77 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

746.13 
39.00 

114.01 
99.31 

998.46 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

2.66 
7.08 

97.41 

107.15 
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ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

26 Revenue from Operations 

Particulars 
Year ended 

31st March, 2024 

Sale of Products 25,375.62 

Other Operating Revenue 40.12 

Total 25.415.74 

26.1 Sales including GST 

Particulars 
Yearended 

31stMarcb 2024 
Gross sales of Product (including GST) 28,283.51 

Less:- Goods & Service Tax 2.907.89 

Net Sales ofnroduct 25,375.62 

26.2 Sale of Products comprises of: 

Particulars 
Year ended 

31stMarcb 2024 

Domestic Sales 7,707.85 

Export Sales 15,742.92 

Deemed Exoort 1.924.86 

Total 25,375.62 

2 6.3 Other operating revenue comprises of: 

Particulars 
Year ended 

31st March, 2024 

Sale of Scrap . 31.40 

Services Income - lob work 8.72 

Total 40.12 

27 Other Income 

Particulars 
Vear ended 

31st March, 2024 

Interest Income 417.22 

Fair Value change of investment held for trading -
Gain/ (Loss) on sale of investments (Net) -
Export Incentives 204.82 

Gain/(loss) on sale of Property, Plant and Equipments (Net) -
Net gain on foreign currency transactions/translations 298.93 

Bad Debts Recovered 66.00 

Amount no longer payable wrttten back 12.11 

Recovery of freight and other charges 123.89 

Non ooeratinl! income 72.69 

Total 1195.66 

.... 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

21,750.13 
48.02 

21798.15 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

25,224.68 
3 474.55 

21,750.13 

Yearended 
31stMarch 2023 

8,148.19 
10,863.75 
2,738.19 

217S0.13 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

41.88 

6.14 
48.02 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

182.73 
(20.50) 
53.15 

132.21 
563.02 
469.85 

18.00 
-

433.71 
51.67 

1883.84 
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28 Cost of Raw Material and Components 

Particulars 
Year ended 

31st March, 2024 

Cost of Raw Material Consumed 17 316.50 
Total 17 316.50 

29 Purchase of Traded goods 

Particulars 
Year ended 

31st March, 2024 
Purchase ofTraded ~oods 40.88 

Total 40.88 

30 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 

Particulars 
Year ended 

31st March, 2024-

Inventories at the end of the year: 
Finished Goods 2,488.86 

Work-in-Progress 436.90 

2 925.77 

Inventories at the beginning of the year: 
Finished Goods 984.36 

Work-in-Progress 422.44 

1.406.80 

Net rincrea.sel / decrease (1518.971 

31 Employee benefits expense 

Particulars 
Year ended 

31st March. 2024 

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 1,786.95 

Share Based Payment (Refer note 53) 13.96 

Contlibutions to Provident Fund and Other Funds 145.18 

Staff Welfare Exoenses 15.03 

Total 1,961.12 

32 Finance costs 

Particulars 
Year ended 

31st March, 2024 

Interest expense on borrowings 313.85 

Interest due to MSME Vendors 4.99 

Total 318.83 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

14,606.93 
14,606.93 

Year ended 
31st March. 2023 

116.48 
116.4-8 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

984.36 
422.44 

1,406.80 

249.94 
181.53 

431-47 
(975.33) 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

1,522.78 
53.09 

105.50 
11.95 

1,693.32 

Yearended 
31st March, 202 3 

213.77 
4.82 

218.59 
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33 Other Expenses 

Particulars 
Year ended 

31st March, 2024-

Power and Fuel 423.59 

Consumption of Stores and spares 275.24 
Manufacturing Processing cost 633.99 

Carting, Freight, Octroi Inwards 8.57 
Repairs & Maintenance 

-Machinery 105.64 

-Building 86.90 

-Others 18.28 

Sales promotion and advertisement Expenses 143.04 
Legal and Professional fees 225.20 
Freight/ Clearing and Fotwarding Charges on Sales 729.62 
Payments to Auditors (Refer note 41) 4.95 
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer Note 42) 56.75 

Travelling Expense 81.40 

Research and development expenses 103.32 

Commission on sales 868.26 
Provision for Expected Credit Loss 40.00 
Bank charges 74.31 

Bad debts 85.20 

Loss on discard of Property, Plant & equipments (Net) 4.44 
Rates and Taxes 54.76 

Donation 0.69 

Insurance Expense 226.23 

Deduction and Damages Expenses 163.01 

Miscellaneous Exoenses 359.77 

Total 4,773.14 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

372.72 

282.15 
527.48 
12.51 

78.24 
89.88 
16.17 
74.77 

236.66 
740.47 

3.96 
65.59 

126.34 
104.91 
816.74 

42.25 
37.99 

-
-

1.72 
0.67 

240.41 
7.52 

341.14 
4,220.28 
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34 TAX EXPENSE 

Particulars 
Year ended 

31st March, 2024 
(a) Income tax expense 

Current tax 868.89 
Short/ (Excess) provision of earlier year (3.29) 
(i) Total Current tax expenses 865.60 

(ii) Total Deferred tax expenses (Benefits) (44.87) 
(44.87) 

Total lncome tax expenses (i + ii) 820.72 

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied 
by India's tax rate 

Profit before income tax expense 3,080.09 
Tax at the Indian tax rate of25.17% (2022-2023 - 25.17%) 775.20 

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/ (taxable) in calculating 
taxable income: 

Depreciation 32.50 
Income considered separately -
Non-deductible tax expenses (Disallowances u/s 438 etc) 31.78 
deductible tax expenses [allowances u/s 35) -
Short/(E:xcess) provision of earlier year (3.29) 
Others (including Deferred tax) (15.46) 
Income Tax Expense 820.72 

\ 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

840.32 
-

840.32 

(57.08) 
(57.08) 
783.24 

3,216.93 
809.64 

28.74 
114.63 

9.92 
(1.95) 
. 

(177.731 
783.24 
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35 Earnings per share (EPS) 

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. 

i. Profit attributable to Eouitv holders ofComvanv 

Particulars 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for basic and diluted earnings 
2,259.36 2,433.69 

per share 

ii. Wei2hted avera2e number of ordinary shares 

Particulars 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Issued ordinarv shares(in Nos) 5,819,666 5 774,666 

Weighted average number of shares at March 31 for basic and diluted earnings per 5,821,633 5,774,666 

shares 
Basic earnings per share 38.81 4Z.14 
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36 Disclosure as required under Ind AS 19 • Employee Benefits 

[A] Defined contribution plans: 
The Company makes contributions towards provident fund to defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. The 
provident fund contrlbutlons are made ta Government administered Employees Provident Fund. Both the employees and the Company 
make monthly contributions to the Provident Fund Plan equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee's salary. 

The company recognised Rs. 82.03 lakhs (P.Y; Rs. 75.21 lakhs) for provident fund contributions In the Statement of Prolltand Loss. 

[BJ Defined benefit plan: 
The Company makes contributions to Gratuity Fund managed by IC!Cl Prudential life insurance, a funded defined benefit plan for 
qualifying employees. The scheme provides for payment to vested employees as under: 

i) On normal retirement/ early retirement/ w1thdrawal / resignation: As per the provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act', 1972 w1th vesting 
period of S years of service. 
li) On death In senrice: As per the provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 without any vesting period. 

The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements as at 31st 
March, 2024. 
DeOned benefit plans• As per actuarial valuation 

a) Reconciliation in present value of obligations (PVO) - Deflned Beneftt Obligation: 
Gratuity funded 

31st March, 2024- 31st March, 2023 

Present value of Benefit Obligations at the beginning of tile period 215.63 204.27 

Current Service Cost 34.31 26.22 

Interest Cost 1S.31 15.12 

Benefits paid (4.71) (16.94) 

Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses due to chaMe in assumptions 39.75 [13.041 

Present value of Benefit Obll2ations at the end of the period 300.29 215.63 

I Gratn.lty Fwtded 
b) Change in fair value of plan assets: 31stMan;h, 21)24 31.'ltMarch, 2023 

Fair value of Plan assets a tthe beginning of the year 146.45 159.50 

Expected Return on p Jan assets 10.23 11.1B 

Benefits paid (4.71) (16.94) 

Actuarial Gains and (Losses) 13.21 (7.29 

Fair value of Plan assets at the end of the year 165.19 146.45 

c:} Reconciliation of PVO and fair value of plan assets: 
Gratuity Funded 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Present value ofBenefit Obligations at the end of the period 300.29 215.63 

Pair value or Plan assets at the end of the vear 165.19 146.45 

Net { Asset] / LiabiUty reco11nlsed In Balance sheet 135.11 69.18 

d} Net Expenses recognised in the statement of Profit and Lass accounts 
Gratuity Funded 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 21)23 

Net Interest Cost 5.08 3.94 

Current Service Cost 34.31 26.22 

Total 39.39 30.16 

e) Amount recognised in Other comprehensive income Remeasur-ements: 
Gratuity Funded 

31st March, 2024 I 31st March, 2023 

Actuarlal (Gains)/ Losses 26.54 I fS.75) 

t) Assumptions used In the accounting for the gratuity plan: 
Grat:ul.ty Funded 

31stMarch, 2024 31st March, 2023 

D lscount Rate (%) 7.10% 7.40% 

Salary escalation rate (%) 7.00% 7.00% 

Mortality" : 
* Indian Assured Lives Mortalitv [2012-14) Ult 

..._ 
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37 Related Party Disclosures 
a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: -

SrNo Particulars ReJattonshlp 

I Subsidiary: 
lnnoxel L.ifesciences Private L.imtied Subsidiary Company 
Varenyam Biolifesciences Private L.lmited Subsidiary Company 

II Key Managerial Personnel/ Directors: 
Mr. Bharat Desai Managing Director 
Mr. Hemang I. Shah Executive Director 
Mr. Shaileshkumar Ghabhawa\a Jndependent Director 
Mrs. Zankhana Sheth Independent Director 
Mr. Mukeshbhai Jivrajbhai Patel Independent Director 
Mr. Sanjay Parasmal Shah Non Executive Director 
Mr. Jignesh Shah ChiefFinancial Officer 
Mr. Shyam Rajpurohit Company Secretary (Upto 02.10.2023) 
Krutika Bhatt Company Secretary (w.e.fOZ.10.2023) 

Ill Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel/ Directors: 
Mrs. Shltal H. Shah Relatives of Director 
Mr. Bhahim B Desai Relatives of Director 
Mrs. Nikita Shah Relatives ofDlrector 
Mrs. Himaben b. Desai Relatives ofDirector 

w Enterprise in which is director or bis relatives are Interested or director 

Varenyam Healthcare Private Limited Enterprise In which ls director or his relatives are 
interested or director 

b) Key Managerial Personnel Compensation 

Particulars Yearended Year ended 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Short-term employee benefit<, 204.87 183.82 
Terminal Benefits 2.59 1.30 
Total Comoensation 207.46 185.12 

c) Transactions wim Related Parties: 
During the year, the following transactions were carried out with related parties and relative of Key Managerial Personnel in the ordinary course 
of the business. 

Sr No 

a) 

1 
i) 
ii) 
Iii) 
Iv) 
v) 
vn 

Particular 

Transections with subsidiary 

lnnoxel Lifesclences Private Limited 
Loans and advance Given 
Loans and advance Repaid 
Investment In Equity Shares 
Interest On Loan and advances 
Sale of Property Plant and Equipment's 
Tradin2 Sales 

/-~-71'"'":_~.;.:, 
,r .,£,aL u ·i ~ . 

.,·./\',"' ,,,_... .... '{;;_.'-

,$§'/ tu · 
r, VA 

,j> 
<' 

Year ended Year ended 
31st March, 2024- 31st March, 2023 

3,989.40 4,696.30 
2,521.56 3,388.14 
1,020.74 3,088.05 

264.37 119.15 
. 900.90 

3.24 -
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2 Varenyam Biolifesc:iences Private Limited 
i) Advance Given 389.50 
ii) Interest On Advance 122.54 
iii) Investment in Equity Shares -
iv) Reimbursement of Expense -
b) Enterprise In which is director or his relatives are Interested or director 
1 Varenyam Healthcare Private Limited 
i) Sale of Goods 2,405.34 
ii} Purchase of Goods 18.13 

SrNo Key Managerial Personnel and their 
Name of Parties Year ended 

relatives 31st March, 2024 
Key Managerial Personnel 

1 Remuneration Mr. Bharat Desai 143.11 
Mr. Hemang J. Shah 40.24 
Mr. Jignesh Shah 15.22 
Mr. Shyam Rajpurohit 4.17 
Ms. Krutika Bhatt 4.72 

2 Sitting Fees to Directors Mr. Shaileshkumar Ghabhawala 0.10 
Mrs. Zankhana Sheth 0.10 
Mr. Bharat Desai 0.10 
Mr. Hemang J. Shah 0.10 
Mr. Mukeshbhai J. Patel 0.10 
Mr. Sanjay P. Shah 0.10 

3 Sale of Property Plant and Equipment's Mr. Bharat Desai 

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel 
4 Remuneration/Perquisite Mr. Bhahim B Desai 74.73 

Mrs. Nikita Shah 39.96 
Mrs. Himaben b. Desai 171.84 

5 Consultancy Expenses Mrs. Shital H. Shah 11.00 

d) Outstanding Balances 

SrNo Particulars Asat 
31st March, 2024 

1 Subsidiary Company 
lnnoxel Lifesciences Private Limited (Loans and Advances) 5,434.37 
lnnoxel Lifesciences Private Limited (Receivable) 3.82 
Guarantee given by the company on behalf of subsidiary 
(lnnoxel Lifesciences Private Limited) 6,686.06 
Varenyam Biolifesciences Private Limited (Loans and Advances) 2,156.32 

2 Key Managerial Personnel and relatives 
Mr. Bharat Desai 11.50 
Mrs. Himaben b. Desai 9.44 
Mr. Hemang J. Shah 2.24 
Mr. Jignesh Shah 1.03 
Mr. Bhahim B Desai 1.56 
Mrs. Nikita Shah 0.83 
Mr. Shyam Rajpurohit -
Ms. Krutika Bhatt 0.84 

3 Enterprise In which Is director or his relatives are interested or director 
Varenyam Healthcare Private Limited 1,288.60 

1,629.73 
29.78 

270.00 
744.86 

1,250.79 
82.29 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

143.17 
25.71 
10.33 

3.07 
-

0.20 
0.20 
0.20 
0.20 
0.20 
0.20 

32.61 

67.88 
36.01 

173.6S 

9.00 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

3,728.59 
-

-
1,656.53 

11.50 
9.44 
2.09 
0.82 
0.92 
0.52 

0.5 

1,138.46 
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38 Cootiogeot Liabllltles 

Sr No Partlculars 

(i) Contingent liabilities 

a) Liabilities Disputed In appeals 
- Income Tax 
- Service Tax 

b) LetterorCred!tand Bank Guarantees 

Total 

{U) Commitments 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be cxccu ted on 
capital account & not provided for: 

-Tanl!ible Assets 

39 Disclosure pursuant to leases 
As Lessee: 

Short term Leases: 

Asat Asat 
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023 

86.14 86.14 
10.75 10.75 

2,136.91 2,571.84 

2,233.81 2,668.73 

333.92. 81.71 

The Company has obtained premises for its business operations under operating lease or leave and license agreem<:nts. These are not non-cancellable and are renewable by mutual 
consent on mu tu ally agreeable terms. 

Lease payments are recognised In statement of Profit and Loss under the head "Rent Expense" in note no 33. 

40 Disclosure related t9 Micro and Small Enterprises 

On the basis of confirmation obtained from the supplier who have registered themselves under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MS MED Act. 

2006) and based on the Information available \vith the company, the following are the details: 

Particulars 
Asat Asat 

:U Mar~h, 2024 31 March, 2023 

( a) the principal amount and the Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year (Refer 92.56 401.79 

be low notes) 

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterpcises Development Act, 4.99 

20 06 (2 7 of 20 D 6), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting 

year; 

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the - 4.BZ 

appointed day dut1ng the year] but without adding the Interest speclfled under the Micro, Small and Medium Bnterprises 

Development Act, 2006; 

( d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and . 12.11 

( e J the amount of further 1 nterest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when tlie Interest dues -
above are acrually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the 

Micro, Small and M edlum Enterprises 
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41 Auditor's Remuneration 

Particulars 

Statutory A1tdltors 
Audit Pees (including for quarterly limited review) 
For certification 
For other matters 
Total 

42 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

Yearended Year ended 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

3.75 3.75 
1.20 0.21 

. . 
4.9S 3.96 

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the company. The areas for CSR activities are promoting education, art and culture, 

healthcare, destitute care and reha bllitatlon and rural development projects as specified in Schedule VI I of the Companies Act, 2 013. The details of amount req ulred to be spent and 

actual expenses spent during the year is as under: 

Particulars Yearcmded Year ended 
31itt Mardl. 2024 31st M.arch 202 3 

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year 53.BS 59.51 

(b} Amount spent durlng the year on 
1. Construction / Acquisition of Assets 
- In cash . 
• Yetto be paid in cash . 
2. On purpose other than {i) above 
• In cash 56.7~ 65.59 
• Yetto bo paid . 
(c) Shortfall at the end of the year . 
{d) Total of previous years shortfaU . . 
[e} Reason for shortfall 

Rural Development. Rural Development, 
Health & l!ducation Health & Education 

(I) Nature of CSR activities promotion etc.. promotion etx; .. 

(g) Details of related party transactions 
(h) Movements in tho provision of CSR during the year 
Balance at the beginning of the ycac . . 
Provision made during the year - . 
Provision utlllsed during the year . . 
Balance nt the end of the • ear . . 

43 Disclosure as per section 186{4) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(i) The company has [!lven advances & loan to following parties and the outstanding balances are as under: 

Nameotpany As on 31st March, As on 31st Ma«h, 
2024 2023 

Advam:es &."Id Loan glYen to sukldiarlrs 

lnnoxel Llfesdences Private Limited 5,434.37 3,728.59 
Varenyam Biolifesclences Private LiJlllted 2,156.32 1,656.53 

The above loan has been Riven to above entitles for meeting their business requirements. 

(II) The comnanv has elven Guarantees to followina ,,,,...., and the outstandlni! balances are as under: 

N11meotpany As OD 31st March, As on 31st Marcil, 
2024 2023 

Guarantees 
lnnoxcl Llfesclenoes Private Llmlted 6,686.06 . 

The above Guarantees has been given for su bsldlary' s debt 

(Ill) The co~nar,v has made lnv-ent to followin" na~ and the outstandln11 balances are as under: ~ 

Name of party As on 31st March. As DD 31st Marek. 
2024 2023 

Investment 
lnnoxel Llfesciences Ptivate Limited 4,590.74 3,570.00 
Varenyam Blollfesciences Prlvare Limited 270.00 270.00 

~\\ 
~- \ 

VA')Q:)~r, I 
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BHARAT PARENTERAIS LIMITED 
NOTES TO SiANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS, LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

{11.'1 Details of Advances and Loans provided to the promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties 

Particulars 

Partii:ulars 
Balance outstanding as at the Opening balance sheet date in respect of ab01.'e cases 
i)Suhsidlarles 
ii)Joint Venture 
iii)Assoclates 
iv} Related Parties 
iv) Others 
Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year 
i) Su bsidiarles 
ii)Jolnt Venture 
111) Associates 
Iv) Related Parties 
Iv) Others 
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date In respect of above cases 
i) Subsidia,y 
ii)Joint Venture 
iii)Assoctates 
iv) Related Parties 
iv) Others 

Loans 
Percentage to the Total 

t.otal Loans 

5,385.12 100% 5,385.12 
. . 
. . 

. 
. . . 

Z,205.S6 100% 2,205.56 
. . . 
. . . 
. - . 
. . -

7,590.68 100% 7,590.68 
. . . 
. . . 

. . 
. 

(v) The company has charged the Interest of Rs. 264.37 lakhs [P.Y. 119.15 lakhs) from lnnoxel L!fesciences Private Limited & Rs. 122.54 lakhs (P.Y. 29.78) from Varenyam 
Blolifesciences Private Limited, The rate of interest range from 6% • 7 % P.a. The above loan given for a t.enure ofupto 9 years from Ille commencement ofloa11. 

44 Operating Segments 

The actMtles of the Company relate co only one segment Le. Manufacturing of Pharmaceuticals Fonnulations 

Geographical btlormation 

The analysis of geographica I information Is based on the geographical location of the customers. The geographical Information considered for disclosure are as follows, 

Revenue by Geography 

Year ended Year ended 
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Within India 9,632.71 10,886.38 

Outside India 15,742.92 10,863.75 

Carrying value of segment assets 

Asat Asat 
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Within India 28,526.40 24,910.85 

Outside India 10,188.91 5,892.03 

Property, Plant & Eq11lpment by Geographjcal Locations 
The Company has common PPE for producing goods for domestic as well as overseas market There are no PPE situated outside India. Hence, additional segment-wise information 

for PPll / additions to PP E has not been furnished. 

45 Expenditure on Fonnulatlon and Development (R&D} 
The Company's F&D center as certified by Department of Scientific and Industrial Research function at survey No. 144 / 146 Jarod - Samlaya road, Village l{arlpu ra, V adodara 

Exoenditure incurred In the F&D center durlll1! the financial vear 2023 24 & 20 22 23 are 2iven below . 
Year ended Year ended 

Partjculars 31st Marcil, 2024 31st Marc:b, 2023 

Capital Expenditure 
1.95 

Recurrlne Exo endi ture 106.07 137.78 

Total ExoendJture 106.07 139.73 

46 Investment Prooertv· 
Year ended Year ended 

(i) Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 202 3 

Amount recognised In Statement of Profit or Loss for Investment prope rtles Rental Income 
. 

Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income 
. 

D eorcciation 
(9.06' (9,861 

Profit fi"om Investment Prooertv r•.1.061 f9,86l 



(ii) 

BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANClAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS, LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

Part1tulars 

Fair Value 
Investment Properties 
Total 
Estimation of fair val11e: Method of Estimation 

Year ended Year ended 
31st March. 2024 31st Mardi, 2023 

193.54 193.54 
193.54 193.54 

In the absence of valuation reports, the Company has used the govemment registration rates for the purpose of detern11nlng the fair value of Land and Buildings. 

47 Trade receivables agin g 

Outstanding for follc.wtng per I ods from due date or Payment 
Particulars 

Lesstban6 6months-1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 
months year 

As at 31st March, 2024 

(\) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 10,754.7 1,915.14 905.16 358.52 214.45 14,147.92 

{11) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant 
increase in credit risk 38.04 38.04 

- - - -

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired -
- - - -

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good - - - . . 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant 
increase in credit risk -

- - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired -. . . 

Less : Expected Credit Loss Allowance {65.08) (11.6B) (45.26) (35.85) {50.50) (208:37) 

% Expected Credit Loss Allowance to Trade Receivable -0.61% -0.61% -5.00% -10.00% -20.00% 

TotaJ 10689.S8 1,903.46 859.90 322.66 201.99 13,977.60 

As at 31st Marcil, 2023 

{I) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 9,282.48 1,073.06 671.40 112-.47 246.50 11,385.92 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - whiclt have slgnlftcant 
increase In credit risk 22.33 22.33 

- - . 
( iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit Impaired -

- . 

(Iv] Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good -. . 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant 
Increase in credit risk -

- . . 
( vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit Im paired -. - -
Less : 8Xpected Credit Loss AUowance 

(62.59) (7.19) (33.57) (11.25) (53.77) (168,37) 

% Expected Credit Loss Allowance to Trade Receivable 
-0.67% -0.67% -5.00% -10.00% -20.00% 

Total 9,219.89 1,065.87 637.83 101,22 215.07 11239.88 

48 Trade PayableAR1n11 
Outstandin ~ forfallowtno I erlods th1m due date of Pavment 

Particulars Lessthan 1 Total 

vear 
1-2years :Z-3 years More than 3 yeal"S 

As at 31st Marc:h, 2024 
{i) MSMB 77.55 8.05 6.96 - 92.56 

{ii) Others 5,127.99 26.28 7.08 63.96 5,225.30 

{lit) Disputed dues -MSME - - - -
fivlDlsputed dues - Others - - - . -
Total 5,205.54 34.32 14.04 63.96 5,317.86 

, 

As at 31st March, 202 3 
(I) MSME 394.53 7.26 - . 401.79 
(II) Others 4,192.64 21.S7 9.05 167.27 4,390.53 

(Iii) Disputed dues - MSM E - - - -
lflv1Disouted dues• Others - . - - -
Total 4,587.17 28.83 9.05 167.27 4,792.32 .. 

---



BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
NOTES TOS'TANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS, LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

49 AaountingRatios 

SN Particulars Numerator Denominator 

1 Current Ratio ( in times) Current Asset 
Current 
Llabllltles 

2 Debt-Equity Ratio (in times) Total Debt 
Share holder's 
11-"nuitv 

Earnings 
3 Debt Service Covel'3ge Ratio [ in times) available for Oe ht Service 

debt servlce 

Net Profits 
Average 

4 Return on Equity Ratio (in %) 
after taires 

Shareholder's 
Eauitv 

5 Inventory Turnover Ratio (In times) Revenue From Average Vall1e of 
Ooerations lnventorv 

6 Trade Receivables turnover ratio (in times) 
Revenue From Average Trade 
Onerations Receivable 

Cost of 
7 Trade Payable turnover ratio (in times] sal es+Other 

Average Trade 
Payable 

e.xpenes 

8 Net capital turnover ratio {in times) 
Revenue From 

Working Capital 
Operations 

9 Net profit ratio (ln %) 
Net profit Revenue From 
After Tax Ooerations 

10 Return on Capltlll employed (ln %) EBIT 
Capital 
Emnloved 

2023-24 

1.30 

0.39 

5.66 

11.17% 

5.51 

2.02 

4.08 

5.04 

0.09 

0.11 

11 Return on [nvesbnent (in%] 
lncomefrom Average 

NA 
Investment I nvestrnent 

------SOC1/':--.. 

I 

l 
I 

202Z-Z3 %Varlance 
Reasons for variance 

(lf+/-2S%) 

1.61 -54.82% 
Increase in Borrowings 
during the year. 

0.24 164.95% 
l ncrease In Borrowings 
durin~ the vear. 

Increase In Borrowings 
5.67 -32.06% 

durtng the year. 

13.63% -0.83% 

7.44 -24.22% 

2.35 -21.85% 

Higher procurement at 

5.10 -26.31% 
year end resulting In to 
increasing in trade 
payable 

3.29 60.29% 
Increase In Borrowings 
during the year. 

0.11 11.11% 

0.14 -10.11% 

NA NA 



BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

so Fair Value Measurements 

Financial Instruments by category 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 

FVTPL FVOCI Amordzed Cost 

Financial Assets 

Investments !n Subsidiary 4,860.74 

Trade Receivables - - 13,977.60 

Cash and Cash Equtval en 13 - - 142.99 

Bank balances other than above - - 123.36 

Loans - - 7,601.42 

Other Financial Assets . - 663.72 

Total Financial Assets - - 27369.82 

Financial Liabilities 

Borrowings - - 8,302.24 

0tlter current financial Liabilities . . 1,479.24 

Trade payables . . 5,317.87 

Tomi financial Liabilities - - 15099.35 

(ll Fair value hierarchy 

As at 31st March, 2023 

FVTPL FVOCJ A111ordzed Cost 

3,840.00 

- . 11,239.88 

. - 635.46 

- - 107.49 

- - 5,391.69 

- - 698.04 

- - 21912.57 

. . 4,S71.39 

- 1,000.77 

- . 4,792.32 

. 10,364.48 

This section explains the Judgements and estimates made In determining the fair values of the financial tnsb"ument:s that are (a) reaJgnlzed and measured at fair value. To 
provide an indication about the re!iablllty of the Inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has class!lled Its financial instruments lnt:o the three levels prescribed 

under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table. 

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial Instruments measured using quoted ptices. 

Level 2: The fair value oflinancia! instruments that are not traded in an active market ls determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use ofobservable market 

data and rely as little as possible on cntity·speclflc estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the Instrument is included In level 2. 

Level 3: If one or more oftlte significant inputs is not based. on observable market data, die Instrument is included in level 3. 
There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year. 
The Company's policy ls to recognise b"ansfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of the reporting period. 

(ii) Valuation technique used to detemdne !'air value 

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments Include, 
- the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar Instruments 
• the fal r 11al ue of the remaining financial instruments ls determined using discounted analysts ( if any) • 

..,.,,,:·; -;:-::~; . ·, 
,.,, "~~ovi.,,,;: '::-1 
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BHARAT PARINTERALS LIMITED 
CIN,LZ4231Gll 992PLC018237 
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR END6D 31ST J\IIARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

51 Financial Risk Management 
The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. 

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to 
monitor risks. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activit ies. 

(A) Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises 
principally from the Company's receivables from customers, loans and investments. Credit risk is managed through continuous monitoring of receivables and 
follow up for overdues. 

(i) lnve1o"tments 
The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in liquid securities and only with counterparties that have a good credit rating. The 
Company does not expect any tosses from non-performance by these counter parties, and does not have any significant concentration of exposures to specific 
industry sector or specific country risks. 

(ii) Trade Receivables 
The Company has used Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for assessing the impairment loss. For the purpose, the Company uses a provision matrix to compute 

the expected credit loss amount The provision matrix takes into account external and internal risk factors and historical data to credit losses from various 
customers. 
Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables 

Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 
2024 2023 

Balance at the beginning of the year 168.37 126.12 
Changes in loss allowance 40.00 42.25 
Balance at the end of the vear 208.37 168.37 

Other than trade and other receivables, the Company has no other financial assets that are past due but not impaired, 

(B) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity rlsk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with itS financial liabilities that are settled by deliverin1 
cash or another financial asset The responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors. which has established an appropriate liquid it) 
risk management framework for the management of the Company's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements 
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecas 
and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles offinancial assets and liabilities. 

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities 

The tables herewith analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for: 
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flaws. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact o 
discounting is not significant 

Contractual maturities of financial Iiabillties 

As at 31st March, 2024 
Non-derivatives 
Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 
Total Non-derivative liabilities 

As at 31st March, 2023 
Non-derivatlves 
Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 
Total Non-derivative liabilities 

(C) Market risk 
(il Price Risk 

Particulars Less than 
lyear 

7,936.42 
5,317.87 
1,479.24 

14,733.53 

3,882.43 
4,792.32 
1,000.77 

9,675.52 

More than 
Total 

lyear 

365.82 8,302.2, 
- 5,317.8: 
. 1.479 2, 

365.82 15,099.3! 

688.96 4,571.3° 
4,792.3: 

. 1,000.7' 
688.96 10,364.-tl 

The company is mainly exposed to the price risk due to its investments in securities. The prtce risk arises due to uncertainties about the future market values 
these investments. The above instruments risk are arises due to uncertainties about the future market values of these Inves tments. 

Ii 
\ 
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Management Policy 
The company maintains its portfolio in accordance with the framework set by the Risk management Policies. 

(iil Foreign Currency Risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates. interest rates and equity prices - will affect the Company's income or the 
value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable 
parameters, while optimising the return. 

The risk is measured through a forecast of foreign currency for the Company's operations. 

The Holding Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in Indian Rupee, are as follows: 

(i)Trade receivable and other Receivable 

As at 31st March, 2.024 

Currency 
Trade 

Hedges 
receiV3ble and other 

Receivable 
available 

USD 190.79 -
EURO 9767.50 . 

As at 31st March, 2.023 

Currency 
Trade 

Hedges 
1•eceivabte and other 

Receivable available 

USD 5 26S.14 . 
EURO . -
(ii) Trade payable and other payable 

As at 31st March, 2024 

Currency Trade 
Hedges 

payable and 0th.er 
oa=ble 

available 

USD 16.87 -
As at 31st March, 20Z3 

Currency Trade 
Hedges 

payable and other 
oavable 

available 

USO 177.18 -
Sensitivity 

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from Unhedged foreign currency denominated financial 
Instruments. 

Particular Imo act on nrofit after tax 
31st March 2024 31st March 2023 

USD sensitivity 
INR/USD increases by 5% 8.70 254.40 
JNR/USD decreases by 5% (8.70) (254.40) 

EUR sensitivity 
INR/EUR increases by 5% 488.37 -
INR/EUR decreases bv 5% (488-37) . 

Capital Management 
52 Risk management 

Net exposure to 
foreign currency risk 

190.79 
9 767.50 

Net C'l!posure to 
foreign currency risk 

5265.14 
-

Net exposure to 
foreign currencyrisk 

16.87 

Net exposure to 
foreign currency risk 

177.18 

For the purpose of the company's capital management, equity includes equity share capital and al! other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of th 
Company. The Company manages its capital to optimise returns to the shareholders and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions or ii 
business requirements. The Company's objectives are to safeguard continuity. maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support i• 
business and provide adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth and maximise the shareholders value, The Company funds its operatic 
through internal accruals. The management and Board of Directors monitor the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. 
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53 Share-based payments 
(a) The share-based payment plan is an employee option plan. The options are equity settled options. 

At the annual general meeting of company held on 30dt September, 2020, member of the company p.issed the special resolution for introducing "Bharat Parenterals Employee 

Stock Option Plan 2020" of 2,00,000 options for the benefit of the employee of the company. The resolution also accorded approval for the Board of Directors, to formulate the 

Scheme as per broad parameters outlined in the resolution. Pursuant to Scheme framed, t:be company has granted options ID eligible employees of the company under plan. Bach 

options entitle for one equity share. The company granted 90,000 Stock Option to its employees by virtue of grant letter dated 12th, November, 2020 and 17th, June, 2022. The 

vesting conditions ofwhkh are as outlined In their grant letter. Necessary impact have been considered. Further, the company has not yet granted the 1,10,000 Stock Option to lts 

employees. The options are exercisable atan exercise price of Rs. 99 per share (Face Value of Rs.lo per share). 

(bl Set out below is the summarv of oodons 
Year ended 31st March 2024 Year ended 31st March 2023 

Particular Average exercise 
Ho. of options 

price/share in Rs. 

Ooeoln" balance 99 45000 
Granted duriJUt the year -
Exercised durin" the year 99 45,000 
Forfeited durin2 the year - . 
Closin2 balance - -
Vested and exercisable . . 
f cl Share ootlons outstandln1rnt the end of the vcar have the followin" exercise oerlod and exercise ortoos • 

Grant Grant Date 

Graot I - Exercise price Rs. 99.00 12/11/2020 

Grant II - Exercise price Rs. 99.00 17/06/2022 

{d) No opUons expired during the ye.ar ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. 

( e} Contractual life of options 

Grant Grant Date 

Grant 1- Exercise price Rs. 99.00 12/11/2020 
Grant Il • Exercise price Rs. 99.00 17/06/2022 

Ex:erctse 
period 

lyearsfrom 
the date of 
}ktino 

lyearsfrom 
the date of 
llstloiz 

Expiry Date 

11/11/2021 
16/06/2023 

Average exercise 
No. of options 

price/share tn Rs. 

. 
99 45,000 
- -
- -
99 45,000 
99 4-5,000 

Share Options as Share OpUons as 
on 31 Mardi 2024 on 31 March 2023 

- -

- -

Share OptJons as 
Share Options as 

on 31st March 20Z4 
on 31st Mardi 

Z023 

- -
- -

The company has charged to statement of Profit and Lo$$ as employee benefit expenses Rs. 13.96 Lakhs (P.Y. 53.09 l.akhs) by creating an Employee stock opdon reserve which is 
grouped under the head 'Other Equity'. 

54- Other disclosures 
(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiaood or pending against The Company for holding any Benami property. 

(ii) The Company do not have any charges or satiSfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. 
(iii) The Company have nottraded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year. 
{Iv) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or t!lltity(les), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the 

Intermediary shall: directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate 8eneflciaries) or 

provide any guarantee, security or the like to oron behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
(v) The Company have not re<:eived any fund from any person(s) or entity(les), including foreign entitles (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise) that The Company shall: 

(a) directly or lndim:tly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of tlie Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

[b} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
(vl)The Company do not have any such transaction which Is not recorded in the books of accounts and that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year In the tax 
assessmen.ts under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961} 
(vii) The company holds all the title deeds orlmmovable property in its name. 
(vili) The company Is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender. 
(ix) There is no Scheme of Arrangement approved by the Competent Authority in tenns ofsed:ions 230 to 237 of the Companies Act. 2013. 

ct '··;_·:,"";·. 
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55 The financial statements were authorized for issue In accordance with a resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 22nd May,2024. The financial statements as approved by 
the Board of Directors are subject to final approval by its Shareholders, 

56 Information on Dividend for the year ended 31st March. 2024 

The Holding company proposed or declared dividend after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements have been approved by the Board of DireclDr for issue are not 

recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date. 

The Board of Director recommended final d ivldend of Rs 1.00 per equity share far the financial year ended an 31st Man:h, 2024, The payment Is subject to approval of share holder 
in ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company, [Previous year Rs. 0.7 S per equity share). 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
As per our Report of even date 

For C N K & Associates LLP 
Chartered Account.ints 
Firm Registration No.: 101961W/W-100036 

✓ 
Rachit Sheth 
Partner 
Membership No.: 158289 

Place, Vadodara 
Dab!: 22nd May, 2024 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 
BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 

~ ~ 
Bharat R Desai Hemang Shah 

Krutika Bhatt 
Campany Secretary 

Director 
DIN: 030a4324 
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Chief Financial Officer 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Bharat Parenteralslimited 

("the Company"), its subsidiaries company {the Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the 

Group") which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Consolidated 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of 

Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and 

notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and 

other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the "Consolidated Financial Statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 

{the "Act"} in the manner so re9uired and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 

Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2024, the 

consolidated profit and consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in e9uity and its 

consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on 

Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those 

Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 

Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 

Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the 

independencerequirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under 

the provisions of the Actand the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 

in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 

we have obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the 

Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our 

audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in 

the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statement and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for other information. The other information 

comprises the information includedBoard's Report including Annexures to that Board's Report, 

Corporate Governanceand Shareholder's Information, but does not include the Consolidated Financial 

Statementsand our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do 

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 

the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 

Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with 

respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of 

the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive 

income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Groupin accordance with the 

Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.The respective Board of Directors of 

the companies included In the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records 

in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for 



preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 

accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 

for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; 

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies 

included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the group to continue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate their respective entities or 

to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so; 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing 

the financial reporting process of the Group. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements 

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 

basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control; 



• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are 

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Grouphas adequate internal financial 

controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls; 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management; 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 

report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 

the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease 

to continue as a going concern; 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 

business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial 

statements of such entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the 

independent auditor. For the other entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which 

have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, 

supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our 

audit opinion; 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually 

or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 

the Consolidated Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 

qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 

and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements; 



We communicate with those charged with governance of the company regarding, among other matters, 

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit; 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards; 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and 

are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 

communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated 

Financial Statements; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 

aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept by the Group so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors; 

(c) The ConsolidatedBalance Sheet, the ConsolidatedStatement of Profit and Loss (including other 

comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the ConsolidatedCash 

Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account 

maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act; 



(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on 31 st 

March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the company and the report of the 

statutory auditors of its subsidiarycompany, incorporated in India, none of the directors of the 

Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 st March, 2024 from being 

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act; 

(f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure 

A"; 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the 

provisions of section 197 of the Act; and 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Consolidated Financial Statements disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its 

financial position of the Group- Refer Note 38 to the Consolidated Financial Statements; 

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses; 

iii. The Group is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the Company. 

iv. 

i. The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief that no 

funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 

premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) 

or entity(ies), including foreign entities (" Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otheiwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

soci,:~:. 

I 



behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the 

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

ii. The Management has represented that , to the best of it's knowledge and belief that no 

funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entityOest including 

foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise, that the Company shall, whetner, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any .manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 

Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 

the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

iii. Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in 

the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 

representations under sub-dause 0) and 00 contain any material mis•statemeht. 

v. The final dividend paid, by the Holding Company during the year in respec~ of dividend 

declared for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it 

applies to payment of dividend. 

vi,. As stated in note no. 55 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of 

Directors of the Holding Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is 

subject to the approval of the members of the respective co .respective ensuing Annual 

General Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to 

-the extel}t'.it applies to declaration of dividend. 

vii. Based on· our examination, which, included test checks, that perfonned by us on the 

Holding Company and its associates which are companies incorporated in India· whose 

financial statements have been audited under the Act, the Holding Company and 

associates have used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which 
~: · ' 

has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 

throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective software except 

in case of subsidiaries in which audit trail (edit log) facility has not been available from 1st 

April, 2023 to 18th June, 2023. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come 

across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. 



2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxj) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) 

Order, 2020 (the "Order"/ "CARO") issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of 

the Act, to be included in the Auditor's report, according to the information and explanations given 

to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company and its subsidiaries included in 

the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, 

we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports. 

For CNK & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 101961W/W-100036 

✓ 
~ ~~' 

Rachit Sheth 

Partner 

Membership No. 158289 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: 22nd May 2024 

UDIN: 24158289BKAQIE 1213 



ANNEXURE "Au TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (•the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of BHARAT PARENTERALS 

LIMITED ("the Company") and in respect of its subsidiaries wherein such audit of internal financial 

controls over financial reporting was carried out by us and have been appropriately dealt with by us in 

making this report as on 31 st March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial 

Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiary company, which are companies 

incorporated in India are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities 

include the design, implementation and maintenance of internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements of the Company that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its 

assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company, its subsidiary company, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {the "Guidance Note") 

and the Standards on Auditing,issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to 

be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 

internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Control and, both issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 



whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company were 

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the internal financial controls 

with reference to financial statements of the company and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 

internal financial controls over financialreporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 

controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other 

auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being 

made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) 

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 

or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 

or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 

controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 

over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 



Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

Company, its subsidiary company has, in all material respects, an internal financial controls with reference 

to financial statements of the Company and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 

operating effectively as at 31 st March, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 

established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated 

in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over- Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For CNK & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 101961W/W-100036 

✓ 
Rachit Sheth 

Partner 

Membership No. 158289 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: 22nd May 2024 

UDIN: 24158289BKAOIE1213 

\ 
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BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
CIN:L24231GJ1992PLC018237 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

Sr. 
Particulars 

No. 
ASSETS 

(1) Non current Assets 
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 
(b) Capital work-in·progress 
(c) Intangible under development 
(d) Investment Properties 
(e) financial Assets 
(i) Other Financial assets 

(f)Deferred tax assets (net) 
(g) Other Non Current Assets 

(2) Current assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Fi nanctal Assets 

(i) Trade receivables 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iii) Bank Balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 
(iv) Loans 
(v) Other financial assets 

(c) Other current assets 
( d) Current tax Assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
(1) llqulty 

(a) Equity Share capital 
(b) Other Equity 
(c) Non-Controlling Interest 
Total equity attributable to equity holders ofthe Company 

LIABJLITI ES 
(2) Non•Current liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 

(b) Provisions 
(c )Oefe!Ted ta,c liabilities (Net) 

(3) current liabilities 
(a) Ei11ao,ial J.iabili:tii:~ 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Trade payables 

Total Assets 

a) total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 
b) total outstanding dues of creditcrs other than Micro Enterprises 

and Sma 11 Enterprises 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities 
( c) Provisions 
(d) Current Tax Liability (Net) 

Total Liabilities 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our Report of even date 

For c N K & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 101961W/W-100036 

Ra chit Sheth 
Partner 
Membership No.: 158289 

Place: Vadodara 
Date: 22nd May, 2024 

Note As at Asal 
No 31St March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

3 20,947.98 4,119.04 
4 2,389.16 9,901.43 
5 104.47 -

6 89.46 98.52 

7 309.22 321.26 
8 11.67 . 
9 539.37 2,165.69 

10 6,146.77 3,784.22 

11 14,142.11 11,240.68 
12 870.96 785.23 
13 338.45 212.96 
14 10,73 6.57 
15 397.41 376.79 
16 4,057.01 2,021.87 

27.50 . 

50,382.27 35,034.25 

17 581.97 577.47 
18 19,144.72 17,702.16 

4,090.71 3,510.27 
23,817.40 21,789.90 

19 7,316.22 1,092.02 
20 210.29 132.66 
8 - 39.88 

21 8,441.80 3,882.43 
22 

102.71 401.79 
5,900.S2 4,732.54 

23 2,235.00 1,711.82 
24 2,178.65 1,090.92 
25 179.70 107.15 

53.17 

26,564.87 13,244.36 

50,382.27 35,034.25 

q{; 
For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 

BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 

BharaJR Desai 
Managing DI rector 

~~ 

;;:·. 
Kiutika Bhatt 
Company Secretary 

Place: Vadodara 
Date: 22nd May, 2024 

Director 
DIN:03024324 

t..~ 
Chief Financial Officer 



BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
CIN:LZ4231GJ1992PLC018237 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT ANO LOSS FOR THE YllAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 
ALI.AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

Sr.No. Partl(U,)ars 

I Revenue Prom Operations 
II Other Income 

Ill Total Income {I+ II) 

IV EXPENSES 
Cost of mare rials consumed 
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 

Changes in Inventories of Finished goods, Stock-in-Trade and work-
in-progress 
Employee benefits expense 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortization expense 
Other expenses 

Total expenses (IV) 

V Profft/(LossJ before tax (III-IV} 

VI Tax expense: 
(1) Cummt tax 
(2) Deferred tax 
(3) Short / (Excess) provision of tax in respect of earlier years 

VII Profit/ (Loss) for the period (V-VI) 

VIII other Comprehensive Income 
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
• Remeasurement of Defined benefit plans 
• Income tax relating to Remeasurement of Defined benefit 

plans 

Total other comprehensive income (VIII) 

L'l: Total comprehensive Income for the period (Vrt+Vm) 

Net Profit attributable to: 
Owners of the company 
Non Controlling lnte1·t,t 

Other Comprehensive Income attributable to: 
Owners of the company 
Non Controlling Interest 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 
Owners ofthv comp.my 
Non Controlling Interest 

X Earnings per equity share: 
(1) Basic 
(2) Dilured 

The accompanying notes are an Integral partofthe finnncial statements. 
As per our Report of even date 

For C N X & Assoctates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registr: tio7 61 : W-100: 6 

~ 1 ':fvACODARA ': 
RachitSheth \Q-\ /J; ' 
Partner ~~ 
Memb=hlp Noa 1S8289 ./?.<"o ACCG • 

Place: Vadodara 
Date: 22nd May, 2024 

h 

I 

Note No. Year ended Year ended 
31st March, Z024 31st March, 2023 

26 
27 

28 

29 

30 

31 
32 

S&6 
33 

34 

35 

25,736.07 21,798.15 
859.20 1,173.91 

26,59S.27 22,972.05 

17,316.50 14,606.93 
37.64 116.48 

(1,518.97) (975.33) 

2,278.22 1,799.59 
322.49 21859 
902.05 588.24 

5,385.16 4,262.85 

24723.10 20,617.34 

1872.17 23S4.71 

868.89 B40.32 
(44.87) (57,081 
(3.29] . 

1051.44 1571.47 

(26.54) S.75 
6.68 (1.45} 

(19.861 4.30 

1.031.59 t S7S.78 

1,451.71 1,644.04 
(400.27) (68.36) 

(19.861 4.30 
. 

1,431.8S 1,648.34 
(400.27) (68.36) 

24.94 28,40 
24.94 28.40 

~ -
For and on behalr of Board ofDirectors of 

BHARAT PARE~ 

~ Shah Bharat A Desai 
Managing Director 

DIN:~ 

~ ka Bhatt • 

Company Secretary 

Place: Vadodara 
Date: 22nd May, 2024 

Director 
DIN:03024324 

£. 
11V~~hShab 

Chief Financial Officer 



BHARAT PARENTERAIS LIMITED 

ClN:l.1.4231 GJ l 99ZPLC018237 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASK FLOWS FOR TH ti YE/lit EN 1>e1> 31sr MARCIi. 2 024 

ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. 1.AKKS U NLHSS OTlfEll WIS£ STATED 

ParUculars. 

A rash now (mm oneraunr i1dirit1e1; 
Profit before income tu 

AdJustmcots; Jor : 
Share of (Profit)/L~ss to h1inorley 

Oepreciatfon and .a.mortWjatlon cxi:icnse 
(Gain)/ Loss on SaJes of Property, Plant and Equipments (Net} 
Fair v.altlatjotl of Investments lhrough FVTPL 
Amount no longer payable \o\Tinen back 
(C..iln)/ Lo.sz. on Sale:. ti( rn\ll!lj;tmen:t (N~t) 
Share Based Paym&t'll 
pjnance Cost 
llnreall15,:ed Por,algn e-xchange fhcc1uation 
Interest Income 

Opcratl ng prtiHt before workini;; cap ital chan,:es 

MovcmeRts :In worltlnE capltJl: 
Assel:i 

(lncre.11~) / Diei:rn,Hi0 In trade rocelvables 
(Increase) / Decrease In Inventories 
O.ncrease) / Decrease in other fm~nctal a~ts. 
{Increase) / Oecr~se In Loani-
{[nC"re-ase1 / Oecr~ase In omer current as.sets 
{(ncreascJ / Decr~se in other r,on current assets 

Uablllth:s 
lm:rease / (Det:reaSi:') in tn1de tla)'~bles 
lncr~.:u:e I (Cle,rl"<)St:.!) in pl'OVislous 
Increase I ([lecreas~) j n other currant l labUilies 
Increase/ (Decrease] In ether financial liabilities 

cash e,enerated trom ar,~ra llons : 

Olrect taxes paid (net) 

Net cash from operating adivl ties (A) 

B Cash How, from inve:1tingactiYities 
Purdi:;n:,of Properly, plant.;md equipmenl's 
(lndudlng Capital work In sirogrcs:s lncludinH c:;;ipital Advani::e & lnla.ngible under development) 
Proceeds of sale or Property, plant ani:i !;!"I L-1ipment's 
(Purchase)/Sale or ln,e,tments 
n :cero.asel / Decrease Bat\k Balances olhe r than Cash and c~ euuh/.ahml-5 
Jn~re.nRecelved 

Net cash (used) In Investing acUvltles (DJ 

C casb Dow D:am floaoclne ;artiririM • 
Proceeds rrtJm i5SU(;!' t1r:5ht1re~ 

Dividend P:aid 
Proceeds/(Repaym.,t) ofl•o~ Wm BorrowJngs 
Procee<ls/ (Re-payment) of short term Borrowings: 
F!na:ru:c Cost 

Increase/ (Decrea~} in Non controlllnFt 11\terest 

Net <ash (use-d) In fl naPcll11: acUvides {C 1 

N6T INCREASB IN CASH AND CASI! &QUIVALENTS [(A) • (BJ • (CJ) 

CASK AND CA.SK EQUIVALENTS IITTHB BEGINNING OF Tll6 VeAR 

Ba.lances wltb banks 

{a) ln currel\t accounts 

(b) In Cash Credit Ac<ount 

Effec:tof exchanged iJferem:es tm re::ibtement gr rg ~ign ,i;:urn:qcy cash and cash equlv.alents 

Cash on Hand 

CASH MID CASH EQUIVALENTS AT TJlij ~NO OP THe VCAR 

For the year ended 31st March, For the year ended 31st March, 
2024 2oi~ 

11872.1? 2,354.n 

400.27 6836 
902.05 588.24 

B.46 9.13 
20.so 

16.71 
(54.78) 

13.96 53.09 
322.49 210.59 
(89.0l] 11.21. 
(42.04] (33.81) 

3,405.09 3,235.24 

('2.799.lB) [3,915.78) 
{2,362.55) (1,708.18) 

21.61 1,932,41 
(4.16) 6.51 

(2,035.13] (1.119.60] 
1,626.32 SB.61 

662.SI 3,463.88 
150.17 45.14 

1,097.74 658.26 
523.19 389.07 

475.70 3,045.58 

946.27 879.19 

f4 70.S71 2 .166,38 

(10,430.21) (9,160.06) 
70,09 150.88 

1,182.44 
(125.49] (!J4.8SJ 

7.21 129.66 

fl0,470.401 1 7 781,9.P 

«.55 
(+3.31) 

6,224.20 (124-38) 
4,559.37 3,324.27 
(322.49) [218.59] 
590.45 3,078.-1-9 

11.042.76 6 OS9.79 

93.80 444.24 

7H4.ll 339.07 

868.44 716.09 

65.76 

868.44 702.66 

6,9& 11,W 

875.39 781.53 

2.;3 2.57 

077.91 711+.11 

(i) The allovll!: cash flow Statemen1 llas been prepared under the "lndi:r~ct Me-ttu;id" as set out in lndi~n At:t:01.tnti 11g Stand a~ - 7, ·•statemenl or Cash Plow". 

·; p· \l I h :tckiat lndli::uc C.ish Outflow. 

The accompanying nob?S e.re an integal part of the flnan.clal statements, 
As per our R&port or even date 

For C N K & Assocla!e5 LLP 
Charnred Acwuntants 

"~~,.,,~, ~ 

RadiitSbelh ) □·AuODARA"' 
Partm:r ~ 
~ember<hlp No.· 150289 \ :,,_ f,.~ 

r;--,;. ~ 
('~r:-o r,.cc0 

PlilCe: V.idodara 
Dale: 2,n~ Msr. 2024 

Far and on behalr or Bi:,ard of Dtrectors or /l!?, BHARATPARl!NTBAALSLIMJT£D 

~:,nn~•I ~-
Managh1.; !tireclDr Otrector 

~~- o:i ~: 
Com pi:t ny Secr~ry Chief Fi nanr;ial O fli~r 

Place: V;,.i;to~farn 
Date, 22n~ May. 2024 



BHARAT PARENTl!RAlS LIMITED 
CONSOLIDATEOSTATE'Ml!NT OF CKANGES IN EQ.UIT\' FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTllERWISE STATED 

a. Equity Share capital: 

As at 31st Matc11, 2024 A$at31StMarcb,2023 
Particular 

Balance at the OtstAprll, 2023 
Changes hi Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors 
Restated balance at the 01stAprtl, 2023 

Changes In equity share capital during the current year 
Balance at the 31st March, 2 024 

b. Other Equity: 

fll CurrentrePOrt:1112 period 

Particular 

Balance at the 01st April, 2023 
Changes In accounting pollcy or prior period errors 
R..stated balante a:.t lhe 01.stAprll, 2023 
Total Comprehensive Income for the current year 
Addition during the year 
Transfer d11ring the year 
Remeasurement of the Net Deli ncd benefit liability /asset, net of tax effect 
Jialance at the 31st March 2024 

121 Prev1ousreportlm! period 

Particular 

Balance at the 01st Aprll, 2022 
Changes In accounting policy or prior period errors 
Restated balance at the O 1st April, 2022 
Total Comprehensive Income for the current year 
Addttion during the year 
Transfer during the year 
Remeasurement of the Net Defined benefit liability/asset, net of tax effect 
8 alan~e at the 31st March. 2 02 3 

The ace om panying notes are an integral pa rt of the n na ncial state men ts. 
As per our Report of even d•te 

for C N K & Assoda~s LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Finn Re:istr:✓1961 W/W-100~-

~ soc,•>, 

Ra chit Sheth 
!"a:tner 
Membership No.: 158289 

Place: Vadodara 
Date: 22nd May, 2024 

Nos. 

5,774,666 
. 
. 

45,000 

S,819,666 

General Reserve 

3.99 

. 

. 

3.99 

General Reserve 

3.Q9 
. 
. 
. . 

3.99 

R$.lnl.akhs Nos. 

577.47 5,774,666 

. 
4.50 

581.97 5,774,666 

Reservvs and Su,p !us 
Security 

Employee St;ock Premium 
Optlon Reserve 

reserve 
152.37 53.09 

. . 

. 
59.28 

107.10 [112.37] 
. 

259.47 0.00 

Reserves and Surplus 
Securily 

Employee Stock Premium 
Optlon Reserve 

resel"'le 
152.37 

. . 
. 

53.09 . 
. . 

152.37 53.09 

Rs. In L:ucbs 

577.47 

. 

577.47 

Retained Earnlogs 
Total 

17,492.72 17,702.16 

. 
1,451.71 1,451.71 

. 59.28 
[43.31) (48.58) 
(19.86) (19.86) 

18881.?7 19144.72 

Retained Ramlngs 
Total 

15,848.68 16,005.03 
. . 
. 

l,639.74 1,639.74 . 53.09 

4.30 4.30 
17 492.72 17,702.16 

For and on behalfo[ Board of Direcll.lrs of 
BHARAT PARllNTtiRALS LIMITED 

~-, 
M anag!ng Director 

DIN: 00552596 

I '1r-~ 
Krntlka Bhatt 

Company se,r~:-y 

Place: Vadodara 
Date: 22nd May. 2024 

-~ ., 
mrector 

DIN: 03024324 

~ h~•h 
Chter r-;n~nrlal o m,P.r 



BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. COMP ANY OVERVIEW AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

1.1 Description of Business 

The Company is a Public Limited Company domiciled in India and is incorporated 
under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. Its shares are listed on 
one recognised stock exchanges in India. The registered office of the Company is located 
at Vill.- Haripura, Savli, Baroda - 389 330. The Company is dealing in Manufacturing of 
Pharmaceutical Formulations. 

1.2 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 

i. The Financial statements of the subsidiary used in the consolidation are drawn up to the 
same reporting date as that of the Bharat Parenterals Limited ("the Holding company") 
i.e. 31st March, 2024. 

The Financial statements of the group have been prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act to be read 
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the 
relevant amendment rules issued thereafter. 

ii, Principles of consolidation 

The Consolidated statement consist of Bharat Parenteral limited ("the Holding 
Company") and its subsidiary (collectively referred as "the Group"). The consolidated 
financial statements have been prepared on the following basis: 

The Financial Statements of the holding company and its subsidiary have been 
consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of like items of 
assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group balances and intra­
group transecti.on resulting in unrealised profits or loss. 

iii. Composition of Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Consolidated financial statements are drawn up in Indian Rupee, the functional 
currency of the group, and in accordance with Ind AS presentation. The financial 
statements comprise: 

Balance Sheet 
Statement of Profit and Loss 
Statement of Changes in Equity 
Statement of Cash Flow 
Notes to Financial Statements 

2. Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Notes 

The Material Accounting Policies of the holding company and its subsidiaries are similar 
Refer Note No. 2 of Standalone Financial Statements. 

...,,...,-""".._. 
~··t·.:,Oc1.,~ -;.:;:--,, 



BHARAT PARllNTF.RALS UMITEO 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YF..AR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 

All AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

3 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Partkulars Land - Freehold Wlru:lmill 

Gro,s ..,,,,iylng amount As at 31st March. 202 3 518.38 234,63 

Addi~ons 4.95 

Dtsposals - 81.06 

Other adjusnnentftransfer 41.55 

Gross carrying amount As at 31st March, 2024 481.78 153.57 

Acounulated depreciation as at 31st March, 2023 - 136.68 

Charge fur the year - 9.42 

Dispos31£ 29.9S 

Accumulated depreciation~• at 3151 March, 2024 - 116.15 

Net carrying amount; 

As at J let March, 2024 481.78 37.42 

As at 31.<t March. 2023 S18.38 97.9S 

Parli.culars l,and • Freehold Wlndmill 

Cross carrying amount As .i.t 1st April, 2022 41.5.34 234.63 

Add!llons 155.55 -
Disposals -52.50 

Gress carrying amount As at 31st March. 2023 518.38 234.63 

Accumulated depreciation •• at 1st April, 2 0 2 2 124.05 

Charge for the year 12.63 

Disposals 

Accumulatod depreciation as at 31st March, 2023 136.68 

Net carrying amount: 

As at 31st Mardi, 2023 518.38 97.95 

As at 31st Morch, 2022 415.34 110.59 

Notes: 

ElectJ'lcal Factory Building 
Instal!atlon 

331.57 1,120.zo 
139.27 

-
331.57 1,259.47 

217.60 309.06 
29.53 E4.26 

247.13 393.32 

B4.44 866.15 

113.97 811.14 

Electrical Factory Building 
Installation 

327.80 970.98 

7.08 149.22 
-3.30 

331.57 1,120.20 

189.66 240.04 

32.12 69.02 
-3.18 

217.60 309.06 

113.97 811.14 

139.14 730.94 

Building - Ochers 
Plant and Furniture and 

V<!hicles Computers 
Eaulornent l'bctures 

496.33 4,134.70 5S3.72 504.90 112.15 

5,704.31 11,273.75 538.98 - 176,77 

107.70 56.66 -

6,200,63 15,300.74 1,09Z.69 448.24 288.92 

237.71 2,198.00 3%.07 354.97 87.45 

62.71 532.56 67.87 42.96 63.69 

100.67 40.28 

300.42 2,629.B9 413.94 357.65 151.14 

5,900.21 12,670.85 678.75 90.59 137.79 

258.62 1,936.69 Z07.6S 149.93 24.71 

Building - Others 
Plant and Furnib.lre and Vehicles Computers 
Eoutnment Fixtures 

496.33 3,796.16 S10.47 457.61 88.33 

393.70 43.25 47.Z9 23.82 

-55.16 

496.33 4,134,70 553.72 504.90 112.15 

211.84 1.876.60 303.30 303.41 74.32 

2S.87 331.29 42.77 Sl.S6 13.12 

-9,88 . -

237.71 2,198.00 346.07 354.97 87.45 

258,62 t.936.69 207.6S 149.93 24.71 

284.49 1,919.56 207.17 154.20 14.Ul 

1 . Assets pled&•d as security : 
Tbe free hold La.nd and Buildin~ ,all mov~ble Plant and Machineries and oth~r ass~ts are pledged as: security on pari pass:u basis tQ the banke.-s under a mortg.ige. The Comp.any is not allowed to sell these asse~ to other entity. 

\\i,-.. /. 
~lt ·-"- ":. --

--·~ ..,..Z.SC-~L~·; ~~--· ,, I'·- - -- ' ·" ' 
j~. -"-~ ~ 0l · 1_ 

... ~ . 

Capital work-in Total 
nrl'\Dress 

9,901.43 17,908.01 
17,838.02 

2.45.43 

9,901.43 9,942,98 

25,557.61 

3,887.53 
893.00 
170.90 

4,609.63 

20,947.98 

14,020.47 

Capital work-in Tot.al 
--...... r-ess 

2,565.42 9,863.06 

7,398.12 8,218.0Z 
-62.10 -173.07 

9,901.43 17,908.01 

. 3,322,Zl 

578.38 
. -1.3.06 

- 3,8B7.S3 

9,901.43 14,020.47 

2,565.42 6,540.85 



BHARAT PARENTERAlS LIMITED 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 

ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

4 Caoital work-ln-orol!ress 

Particulars Asat 
31st March, 2024 

Capital Work in Progress 2,389.16 

Total 2,389.16 

4.1 Capital Work-In-Progress ageing 

CWIP 
Less than 1 Year 

As at 31st March, 2024 
Projects in progress 360.85 
Projects temporarily suspended -

As at 31st March, 2023 

Projects in progress 7,400.39 
Projects temporarily suspended -
Note 1: There are no Projects whose completion is overdue or ltas exceeded Its cost 
Note 2: Borrowing cost capitalised during the year is Rs. 245.41 lakhs (P.Y. Nil) 

5 lotane.lble under development 

Particulars Asat 
31stMarch, 2024 

Intangible under development 104.47 

Total 104.47 

S.1 Intangible under development ageing 

CWlP 
less than 1 Year 

As at 31st March, 2024 
Projects in progress 79.20 
Projucts temporarily suspended -
As at31stMarch,2023 

Proj ecrs in progress -
Projects temporarily suspended 

Asat 
31stMarch, 2023 

9,901.43 

9,901.43 

Amount in CWIP 

1-2 Years 2-3 Years 

2,028.31 

-

2,501.04 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

-
. 

Amount in CWIP 

1·2 Years 2-3 Years 

25.27 

-

. 
-

Total 
More than 3 Year 

- - 2,389.16 
- -

- 9,901.11•3 

- . 

Total 
More than 3 Vear 

- 104.17 
-

. - . 
- . 



BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

6 lnvestmentProperties 

Asat 
Particulars 31st March, 20:Z4 

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 
(at cost less accumulated depreciation) 

Building given on Operating Lease 
Opening Gross Block 149.93 

Additions -

Closing Gross Block 14-9.93 

Less: 
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 51.41 

Add : Depreciation for the year 9.06 

Closing Accumulated Depreciation 60.47 

Total 89.46 

Note: Refer note (45) for other disclosure. 

Asat 
31stMarch 2023 

149.93 
-

149.93 

41.55 
9.86 

51.41 

98.52 



7 

8 

9 

BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

Other Financial Assets 

Particulars 
Asat 

31st March, 2024 
(i) Bank deposits with more than 12 months of original maturity 242.31 
(ii) Deposits 66.91 

Total 309.22 

Deferred tax assets (net) 

Particulars Asat 
31st March, 2024 

Deferred Tax Assets 
The balance comprises temporary differences atbibutable to: 
Provision For Employee Benefit 92.76 
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans -
Others 52.45 

TotalDTA 145.21 
Deferred Tax Liability 
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: 
Property, Plant & Equipment's 130.22 
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 3.31 
Total DTL 133.54 

Net Deferred Tax ( Assetl / Liability (11.67) 

Other Non - Current Assets 

Particulars 
Asat 

31st March 2024 
Unsecured, considered good 

(a)Capital Advances 439.61 
(b)Balance with Government Authorities 99.76 

Total 539.37 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

254.35 
66.91 

321.26 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

56.99 
3.36 

42.38 

102.74 

142.61 
-

142.61 

39.88 

Asat 
31stMarch 2023 

2,065.93 
99.76 

2,165.69 



BHARAT PAREN1'ERALS LIMITED 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

10 Inventories 

Particulars 
Asat 

31st March, 2024 

lgventQri~~ (IQwe[ gf ~Q~t illlil ni::t [l:i!li~!:ld valye) 
Raw Materials 2,107.23 
Consumables 532.06 
Packing Material 171.54 
Raw Material (F&D) 34.34 
Work-in-Progress 436.90 
Finished goods 2,488.86 
Goods in Transit (Raw materials J 375.83 

Total 6,146.77 

11 Trade Receivables 

Particulars 
A.sat 

31st March, 2024 

Trade Receivables considered Good-Secured 

Trade Receivables considered Good-Unsecured 
- Receivable from Related Parties (Refer Note 37(d)) 1,292.42 
• Others 13,020.02 

14,312.44 
Trade Receivable which have significant increase in credit risk 38.04 

Trade Receivables credit impaired . 

Total 14.350.48 
Less : Expected Credit Loss Allowance (208.37) 

Total 14,142.11 
Note: Refer Note 46 for Aging of Trade Receivable. 

12 Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 
Asat 

31st March, 2024 

Balances with banks 
(a) In current accounts 868.44 

(b) In cash credit accounts (Refer note 21 (i)) -

Cash on Hand 2.53 

Total 870.96 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

2,225.20 . 
-

34.78 
422.44 
984.36 
117.44 

3 784,22 

A.sat 
31st March, 2023 

1,138.46 
10,248.26 
11386.72 

22.33 

. 
11409.05 

(168.37) 

11,240.68 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

716.89 

65.76 

2.57 

785.23 



BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE lN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

13 Bank Balances 

Particulars Asat 
31st March, 2024 

Other Bank Balances 

(a) Term deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 216.73 
months 
(b) Balances held as Margin Money 117.88 
( c) In earmarked accounts 
- Balances held in unpaid dividend accounts 3.84 

Total 338.45 

14 Loans 

Particulars Asat 
31st March, 2024 

(a} Loans to Employees 10.73 

Total 10.73 

15 Other Financial Assets 

Particulars Asat 
31st March, 2024 

(a) Inte rest accrued on deposits 108.85 
(b) Security and other deposits 288.06 
(c) Term dePoSits 0.50 

Total 397.41 

16 Other Current Assets 

Particulars Asat 
31st March, 2024 

(a) Advance to Suppliers 283.92 
(b) Advance to employees 266.29 
(c) Expenses paid in advance 154.87 
(d) Balances with government authorities 3,351.92 

Total 4057.01 

. ., 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

107.11 

105.85 

-

212.96 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

6.57 

6.57 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

74.01 
302.28 

0.50 

376.79 

Asat 
31st March. 2023 

324.05 
0.12 

133.83 
1,563.87 

2 021.87 



BHARAT PARENTE.!1/113 LIMITED 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATilMBNTS FOR TH!iYBAR ENOBO 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARB IN RS. J.AKJJS UN 1.1:SS OTitBK\VISl: STATED 

17 Sh:Jre C;Jpfb.l 

A 1h I od Eo hy Sha • Capital u ors u r 

r:artlrulars 

al Authorised 
63,00,DDO ~ ElQultv sh.er~ of Rs.10/- e-.LCh 

b) Sharts lscu.td,, rubscrlbcd and fully paid 
C.Y. 58,19,6<;6 (P.Y. 57,74.666) • EQultvsh, .... of!<!, 10/· oach 

tl Shares fu,:Uv P"kl 
C.'/. S8,19,6fi6 (P.Y. 57,74,666} • Bqultvsh"res of ~J.10/· N<=h 

dl RKOll'l'.IUatlon of1be o'IIID.1:ler or sl>.are-s cu.tstandlne ac tho badnnina: Bnll at tll.e: end of tbe reponlna l>~rlod. 

Partlcula.-. 

Al lhe be~nn In,: of the perlod 
Add / l l£ss1: Chan ·os durln tbe"ear l:r.ef.ernote No, 531 
At tlte erit::I (Ir the nerlocl 

1:tl Tsl'm:s: &.Rh1?lta attached te> each d:1ss ofsh:arcs: 

Asat Asat 
~l~t l!'iiiltcti,W~ Sbt M111'(h1 2~-3. 

630.DD 63,0,0A 

630.00 630.00 

581.97 577.47 
S81.97 5'747 

SSl.97 577.47 
SUl.97 677.4? 

knd 311it Miirch,2024- ,~.nit ... 4-Nt MaR:P, l.OU 
Numb-ers: I Rs. In Lakl'IS' Nurilber.s Rs. ID Lakh3 

5,774,666 577.47 5,774,66Ei 571.47 
45000 uo 

SB19666 501.9? 5.774,666 S71.41 

Tti.~ Comp.any h~ only one clasi iJf 11qu.ily shares h~vlng par v.alue of Rs.10 ~r ~han::. Ea-th holder of equity s;h21~, lj entlt~d to on.e vote i:,er share. !ti the e\'ent of the llQuld..1tkm of the C.omp.any, the h.ol~n• i.!equll)' 
~hares: wUI be entllled to recelvc rcD1atnlng .i:m~t:; of the Company. The ~lstrlbul.Cln wlU be In propottir>n W the m.irn!b~r or equltj shares held by Lht! ~he N!lhat-ders. 

l}Sh.,n!ls &Kll!lrwl!d ro .. ls:sue umleroptlons: 

Pu:rsu.a11t re.approved employee :.:lOd!: opt5o.n $chcme "Bh:mt :Parenter&l:i F.:,nployee Stock OpCOt\ Plan zozcr, the Corr.psny h!I~ gnm~ 2.CIO,OQO nos of empltlf<IM stock options ofwh1ch ,t.5,000 (31 M:irch '2023- NIL) c, 
tin:: options havt1 bun ewn;;ised (.31$0 refer note 53). 

• l Sboueholdin• o(" romc,tor • 
Ai:lii{3btM ,?.014- A,ac31stMan:h, 2.023 

Promoter N.-m~ 
No "fsharcs % n!total.!lharlls 46 chanec: during tho 

Y'"' 
No ofsharos % ortQbl $hpn-s 

it;;. change durtLtg the 
year 

Bh;r.,t R. Desai 741.515 12.74/r., ·O.l0% 711.515 12.84% 000% 
Him.a B. Oi:~:a.i 7113,430 13.46% -0.10% 783,430 13.57% 0.00% 
Poo~r. Shah soo 0.01% 0.00% soa 0.01% 0.00% 
Shallesh C. De$al 2.600 DJl4% 000% i.soo 0.04% 0.00% 
Bhahltn B..Df.$al 1.699 0.03% -0.01% ,.soa 0.04% 0.00% 
J..atatien S. Par I kh i.ooo 0.03% O.OO¼ti Z.000 0.03% 0.001)6 
Di=iai sh.!res and stod Prlv&LI Limltsd 2,'31,536 415..94% -037% 2,131,536 47.30% 0.00% 

h) Shar&s held by liihilTehOlders ~(ti tull41ng: rnCJ.e than S% onhe shaNS 

As .it '.3 lit M;1rd,1 2024 A•at3tsl Mar<h, 2023 
Sharehc?ders 

No.o!.$hc1r-e:i; lllo. of-skin:~ Pcrccnta~ Petcentaa~ 

li'.1£1.Jily ~hart!'~ with 'ID ting rights 

0h.aratR. Dan1i ?41,S15 12.14% 741,515 12.M-4% 

Hlmaa.D<.!sal 703,430 13.16% 783,430 13.51% 

Des Bi &"h;m:is and, slDck PriV11tEI Um lled, 2,731.536 46.9-1% l,731,536 47.30% 

Asoi Soft.CaM Prlvste, Limited f.Anchori l4D,130 584% 340,130 S-119% 

Tot.al 4,596,611 78.~8% 4,596,611 79.60% 

10 Other llquity 

hsat A<at r~micubn: 31st ~farm. 2024 ::SUI Miltth, :ZUZ3 

Gcnc-ral ~iaJ"Ya 3.9-!l 3.99 
~p1n.,.ee s~_, Opt1on Reierw, 0.00 53.09 
Se-:LI rltv Phtmium NHtvi!' 259.47 152.37 
.Retained Silr"1- - 1B801,25 17 "-~!.71 
tct41 .......... '7, !'7 "7~.1& 

A~a( Ant rartlC\llars 
;U.liot )'wlarch, 20241 3151 Match, Z.02:3 

General ~erve 
A$ Der last 13;1iiinca ShNt J.99 3.9') 

3.99 3.'99 
Employee Stoick Option Rest:tvll' 

Bala nee :,s per lh• l!lstfin.,11-cbl s~tements 53Jl9 
Adi;i: ReJerve Crc31:N dur1n1 the yc-ar '.:i9.28 53.09 
Lassr RBSll!lrYIII Utilised dur~ng the year 112,37 
Tubll o.ao 53.09 

SKurll:y l'riemlum ttsl!lf"\.liJ 

!bt:ince .11 prr the lut nn:inclal staitnnthts 152.37 152.37 
Add: Utilin1d d1.1rtne: the year 107.10 . 
Tot31 259.47 152.17 

Rrtahml F.:unlnas 
Bahm.ce RS per the l.ul nundal statem8nts 17.4in.71 l5.B1ll.67 
Add: Fro,Ot fOf the Vfil r a, per Statement or Profit ani;! Loss 1,451.11 1,63,.7. 
Le:s,: &iuitv DL-Yld1tnd 143.311 
ltemiof Other Comprchcmslvc lncomo 
R.cmcarnrcmen.to!tha Nae Dffinad benel\tllsbilLt)'/A1s:et,. net of~Kl!-Ffe<:t t19.tl6' 4,30 
Tlltal 18881.2.!> 17.4 92.,71. 

Ult TheCener:il P.eserw Is uffd fram time- to tlm,: to m1nsr(!r pt'Olia rrom retalned nrnlnp t'ar- .... ppropn:i~on purposes, As tho Gen1ul K111s.rve 11 cniated by q tr.a.rnferfi"om one component o,f e,qulty ito another tmd Is 
not an [tJilm of other-comprehensJw- lnc()me, Items. Included 11, the general ,-;ervt ls n,ot .-ecb1:$lfle<:I iU:b:5'.eq uently to lhe S'tater.ioe-111 or Profi: and Los!. 

l"B2 Em~loyt-e S'klek OptiOn l\ff~n'III Is U$ed to reragnl3ie t~ r1lr v,1lue of equity :settl.ei:l shaNr based p,!lymcrnt lrani;actians.. 

1aJ S'iacurlty pr-emlum rese-rve ~ us;ed to record the preml1.1n on ls,ue or 1quny sh,r,a, u nd(lr BSO P Khe[TI:('. 11'8 ~er.re Is ualLsed In Koon:l11nct: with lhe p-rO\lloslon 1)f th~ CDJT1p1nJ,a,s A.:::t. 2013. 



BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

19 Borrowings 

Particulars Asat 
31st March, 2024 

Secured • at amortized cost 
(a) Tenn Loans 
- from Banks (Refer below note (i) and (ii)) 7,025.23 
-Vehicle Loans (Refer below note (iii)) 40.90 

- Inter Corporate Deposits (Refer note (iv)) 
(i) Seven oaks Lifesciences LLP . 
-Deposits from Directors 250.10 
(To be repaid after 2 years and rate of Interest is 7% P.a.) 

Total 7,316.22 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

685.83 
3.12 

403.07 
" 

1,092.02 

( i) The above Term loans are secured by first charge by yvay of hypothecation of all the movable machinery financed or to be financed 
under the said term loans by the respective banks. The above Term Loan also includes hypothecation of entire Plant & Machinery 
(excluding Plant & Machinery covered under Primary Security) of the Company Situated at Survey No. 144 & 146, Jarod Samlaya 
Road, Haripura Village, Savli, Vadodara (Both Present & Future). 

Interest rate on term loan is 1 Y MCLR (Presently 1 Y MCLR is 8.60%) + 0.60% p.a. i.e. 9.20% p.a. The Loan is repayable in 60 Equated 
monthly installment ofRs.18. 75 lakhs. 

Interest rate on ECLGS loan is Repo + 2.4% presently 8.9% p.a. The Loan is repayable in 36 Equated monthly installment after the end 
of 24 months of moratorium. 

(ii) Maturity profile of Secured Term loans are set out below: 

Particulars Amount 
0-1 year 356.92 
1-2 years 263.26 
2-3 vears 6405.05 

(iii) The above Vehicle Loans are secured by way of Hypothecation of respective Vehicles. 
(iv) The rate of interest for the above loan is ranging from 6% p.a. to 7% p.a. and repayable within 9 years. 

20 Provisions 

Particulars Asat Asat 
31st March 2024 31st March, 2023 

a) Provision for employee benefits 
Provision for Compensated absences 91.68 70.55 
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 36) 118.60 62.10 

Total 210.29 132.66 



BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STA TED 

21 Borrowings 

Particulars Asat 
31st March, 2024 

Secured 
a) Current Maturities On Long Term Debt 
(Refer note 19 (i) & (ii)) 
b) Loans repayable on demand (Refer below note) 

356.92 

• Working capital loan and Packing Credit 8,084.87 

Total 8441.80 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

280.26 

3,602.17 

3 882.43 
Note: (i) The above loan exclusively hypothecated against the entire current asset and entire movable fixed assets including plant and 
machinery (Present & Future) of the company, Further, the above loan is guaranteed by Mr. Bharat Desai & Mrs. Hima Desai. Rate of 
interest on the above cash credit facility ranges from 8% to 8.74 % P.a. 

Note: (ii) The company has borrowings from banks secured against the current asset and quarterly returns filled for the same with 
the banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the company. 

22 Trade Payables 

Particulars Asat Asat 
31st March, 2024 31st Mardi, 2023 

Total outstanding due to Micro and Small Enterprises 102.71 401.79 
Total outstanding due to other than Micro and Small Enterprises 5,900.52 4,732.54 

Tot.al 6,003.22 5,134.32 
Note: Refer Note 47 for Agmg of Trade Payable. 



BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

23 Other Financial Liabilities 

Particulars 

(a) Security Deposits 
(b) Other payable* 
(c) Unpaid Dividend 
( d) Payable for Fixed Asset 

Total 
*Include Comm1ss10n payable pertains to Sales. 

24 Other Current Liabilities 

Particulars 

(a) Advances from Customers 
(b) Statutory Dues 
( c) Salary and Wages Payable 
(ct) Other payable 

Total 

25 Provisions 

Particulars 

Provision for employee benefits 
(a) Provjsion for compensated absences 
(b) Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 36) 
( c) Provision for Bonus 

Total 

~ 
!:.Air~ 

,p 

ODARA 

As at 
31st March 2024 

27.10 

1,494.58 
3.84 

709.48 
2,235.00 

Asat 
31st March, 2024 

1,431.77 
170.53 

224.96 
351.39 

2,178.65 

Asat 
31st March, 2024 

4.65 
16.51 

158.53 

179.70 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

29.66 

979.27 
-

702.89 
1,711.82 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

746.13 

74.60 
170.85 

99.33 

1,090.92 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

2.66 
7.08 

97.41 

107.15 



BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 

ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

26 Revenue from Operations 

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2024 

Sale of Products 25,372.38 
Sale of services 323.40 
Other Operating Revenue 40.28 

Total 25,736.07 

26.1 Sale of Products comprises of: 

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2024 

Domestic Sales 7,704.61 
Export Sales 15,742.92 
Deemed Exnort 1,924.86 

Total 25,372.38 

26.2 Other operating revenue comprises of: 

Particulars 
Year ended 

31st March, 2024 

Sale of Scrap 31.56 

Services Income - Job work 8,72 

Total 40.28 

27 Other Income 

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2024 

Interest Income 42.04 
Fair Value change ofinvestment held for trading -
Gain/ (Loss) on sale of investments (Net) -
Export Incentives 204.82 
Gain/(loss) on sale of Property, Plant and Equipments (Net) -
Net gain on foreign currency transactions/translations 333.03 
Bad Debts Recovered 66.00 
Amount no longer payable written back 16.74 
Recovery of freight and other charges 123.89 
Non ooerating income 72.69 
Total 859.20 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

21,750.13 
-

48.02 

21,798.15 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

8,148.19 
10,863.75 

2 738.19 
21,750.13 

Year ended 
31st March, 202 3 

41.88 

6.14 

48.02 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

33.81 
(20.50) 
54.78 

132.21 
(9.13) 

469.85 
18.00 
-

433.71 
61.17 

1,173.91 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
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28 Cost of Raw Material and Components 

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2024 

Cost of Raw Material Consumed 17,316.50 
Total 17,316.50 

29 Purchase of Traded goods 

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2024 

Purchase of Traded goods 37.64 
Total 37.64 

30 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2024 

Inventories at the end of the year: 
Finished Goods 2,488.86 
Work-in-Progress 436.90 

2,925.77 

Inventories at the beginning of the year: 
Finished Goods 984.36 
Work-in-Progress 422.44 

1406.80 
Net (increase)/ decrease (1,518.971 

31 Employee benefits expense 

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2024 

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 2,055.03 
Share Based Payment 13.96 
Contributions to Provident Fund and Other Funds 172.99 
Staff Welfare Exoenses 36.25 

Total 2,278.22 

32 Finance costs 

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2D24 

Interest expense on borrowings 317.51 
Interest due to MSME Vendors 4.99 

Total 322.49 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

14,606.93 
14 606.93 

Year ended 
31st March. 2023 

116.48 
116.48 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

984.36 
422.44 

1406.80 

249.94 
181.53 

431.47 
(975.33) 

Year ended 
31st March. 2023 

1,628.15 
53.09 

105.50 
12.85 

1,799.59 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

213.77 
4.82 

218.59 
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33 Other Expenses 

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2024 

Power and Fuel 469.49 
Consumption of Stores and spares 355.04 
Manufacturing Processing cost 633.99 
Carting, Freight, Octroi Inwards 11.96 
Repairs & Maintenance 

-Machinery 105.73 
-Building 87.03 
-Others 18.28 

Sales promotion and advertisement Expenses 175.49 
Legal and Professional Fees 363.79 
Freight/ Clearing and Forwarding Charges on Sales 729.62 
Payments to Auditors (Refer note 41) 8.35 
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer Note 42) 56.75 
Travelling Expense 116.43 
Research and development expenses 103.32 
Commission on sales 868.26 
Provision for Expected Credit Loss 40.00 
Bank charges 84.09 
Bad debts 85.ZO 
Loss on discard of Property, Plant & equipments (Net) 8.46 
Rates and Taxes 110.38 
Donation 0.69 
Insurance Expense 241.33 
Deduction and Damages Expenses 163.01 
Miscellaneous Expenses 548.48 
Total 5,385.16 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

375.44 

282.15 
527.48 

13.06 

81.96 
89.89 
16.17 
76.72 

237.85 
740.47 

4.76 
65.59 

135.27 
104.91 
816.74 

42.25 
40.97 

-
-

1.76 
0.67 

241.03 
7.52 

360.20 
4,262.85 
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34 TAX EXPENSE 

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2024 

(a) Income tax expense 
Current tax 868.89 
Short/ (Excess) provision of earlier year (3.29) 
(i) Total Current tax expenses 865.60 

(ii) Total Deferred tax expenses (Benefits) (44.87) 

Total Income tax expenses (i + ii) 
(44.871 
820.72 

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied 
by India's tax rate 

Profit before income tax expense 1,872.17 
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.17% (2022-2023 - 25.17%) 471.19 

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/ (taxable) in calculating 
taxable income: 

Income considered separately -
Non-deductible tax expenses (Disallowances u/s 43B etc) 31.78 
deductible tax expenses (allowances u/s 35) -
Short/ (Excess) provision of earlier year (3.29) 
Others (including Deferred tax) 321.05 
Income Tax Exoense 820.72 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

840.32 
-

840.32 

(57.08) 
(57,081 
783.24 

2,354.71 
592.63 

114.63 
-

(1.95) 
-

77.92 
783.23 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
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35 Earnings per share (EPS) 

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average 
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. 

i Profit attributable to Equity holders of Comnany 

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for basic and diluted earnings 
1,451.71 1,639.74 per share 

ii Weiehted averaee number of ordinary shares 

31st March, 2024 
Particulars 

31st March, 2023 

Issued ordinarv shares(in Nos) 5,819,666 5,774,666 
Weighted average number of shares at March 31 for basic and diluted earnings per 5,821,633 5,774,666 
shares 
Basic earnings per share 24.94 28.40 



BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

36 Disclosure as required under Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits 

[ A) Defined contribution plans: 

The Group makes contributions towards provident fund to defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. The 
provident fund contributions are made to Government administered Employees Provident Fund. Both the employees and the Company 
make monthly contributions to the Provident Fund Plan equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee's salary. 

The Group recognised Rs. 109.83 lakhs (P.Y: Rs. 75.21 lakhs) for provident fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

[BJ Defined benefit plan: 
The Holding company makes contributions to Gratuity Fund managed by ICICI Prudential life insurance, a funded defined benefit plan for 
qualifying employees. The scheme provides for payment to vested employees as under: 

i) On normal retirement/ early retirement / withdrawal / resignation: As per the provisions of Paymeat of Gratuity Act, 1972 with vesting 
period of 5 years of service. 
ii) On death in service: As per the provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 without any vesting period. 

The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements as at 31st 
March, 2024. 

Defined benefit plans- As per actuarial valuation 

a) Reconciliation in present value of obligations (PVO) - Defined Benefit Obligation: 
Gratuity Funded 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 
Present value of Benefit Obligations at the beginning of the period 215.63 204.27 
Current Service Cost 34.31 26.22 
Jnterest Cost 15.31 15.12 
Benefits paid ( 4.71) (16.94) 
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses due to change in assumptions 39.75 (13.04) 
Present value of Benefit Obligations at the end of the period 300.29 215.63 

b) Change in fair value of plan assets: Gratuity Funded 

31st March, 2 024 31st March, 2023 
Fair value of Plan assets at the beginning of the year 146.45 159.50 
Expected Return on plan assets 10.23 11.18 
Benefits paid (4.71) (16.94) 
Actuarial Gains and (Losses) 13.21 (7.29) 
Fair value of Plan assets at the end of the year 165.19 146.45 

c) Reconciliation of PVO and fair value of plan assets: 
Gratuity Funded 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 
Present value of Benefit Obligations at the end of the period 300.29 215.63 
Fair value of Plan assets at the end of the year 165.19 146.45 
Net (Asset)/ Liability recognised in Balance sheet 135.11 69.18 

d) Net Expenses recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss accounts 
Gratuity Funded 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 
Net Interest Cost 5.08 3.94 
Current Service Cost 34.31 26.22 
Total 39.39 30.16 

e) Amount recognised in Other comprehensive iu.:ome Remeasurements: 
Gratuity Funded 

31st March, 2024 I 31st March, 2023 
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses 26.s4 I (S.75) 

fJ Assumptions used in the accounting for the gratuity p]an: 
Gratuity Funded 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 
Discount Rate(%) 7.10% 7.40% 
Salary escalation rate (%) 7.00% 7.00% 
Mortality* : 

* Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ult - ·-.,..,.,,._ lw, j -.li°~ t ,~.~~~ 
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BHARAT PARENTERALS LIMITED 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANClAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTIIERWISE STATED 

37 Related Party Disclosures 

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship:• 

SrNo Particulars Relationship 

I Key Managerial Personnel/ Directors: 
Mr. Bharat Desai Managing Director 
Mr. Hemang J. Shah Executive Director 
Mr. Shaileshkumar Ghabhawala Independent Director 
Mrs. Zankhana Sheth Independent Director 
Mr. Mukeshbhai Jivrajbhai Patel Independent Director 
Mr. Sanjay Parasmal Shah Non Executive Director 
Mr. Jignesh Shah Chief Financial Officer 
Mr. Shyam Rajpurohit Company Secretary (Upto 02.10.2023) 
Krutika Bhatt Company Secretary (w.e.f02.10.2023J 

lI Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel/ Directors: 
Mrs. Sh ital H. Shah Relatives of Director 
Mr. Shahim B Desai Relatives of Director 
Mrs. Nikita Shah Relatives of Director 
Mrs. Himaben b. Desai Relatives of Director 
Mr. Keva! Shah Relatives of Director 

Ill Enterprise in which is director or his relatives are interested or director 

Varenyam Healthcare Private Limited Enterprise Jn which is director or his relatives are 
interested or director 

b) Key Managerial Personnel Compensation 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 
31st March, Z024 31st March, 2023 

Short-term employee benefits 204.87 183.82 
Terminal Benefits 2.59 1.30 
Total Comoensation 207.46 185.12 

c) Transactions with Related Parties: 
During the year, the fol!owing transactions were carried out with related parties and relative of Key Managerial Personnel in the ordinary course 
of the business. 

SrNo Particular Year ended Year ended 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

a) Enterprise in which is director or his relatives are interested or director 
1 Varenyam Healthcare Private Limited 
i) Sale of Goods 2,405.34 1,250.79 
ii) Purchase of Goods 18.13 82.29 

,. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
ALL AMOUNTS ARE IN RS. LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED 

d) Outstanding Balances 

Sr No Key Managerial Personnel and their 
Name of Parties Year ended 

relatives 31st March, 2024 
Key Managerial Personnel 

1 Remuneration Mr. Bharat Desai 143.11 
Mr. Hemang J. Shah 40.24 
Mr. Jignesh Shah 15.22 
Mr. Shyam Rajpurohit 4.17 
Ms. Krutika Bhatt 4.72 

2 Sitting Fees to Directors Mr. Shaileshkumar Ghabhawala 0.10 
Mrs. Zankhana Sheth 0.10 
Mr. Bharat Desai 0.10 
Mr. Hernang J. Shah 0.10 
Mr. Mukeshbhai J. Patel 0.10 
Mr. Sanjay P. Shah 0.10 

3 Sale of Property Plant and Equipment's Mr. Bharat Desai -
Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel 

4 Remuneration/Perquisite Mr. Shahim B Desai 74.73 
Mrs. Nikita Shah 39.96 
Mrs. Himaben b. Desai 171.84 

5 Consultancy Expenses Mrs. Sh ital H. Shah 11.00 

e) Outstanding Balances 

Sr No Par ti cu I ars Asat 
31st March, 2024 

1 Key Managerial Personnel and relatives 
Mr. Bharat Desai 11.50 
Mrs. Himaben b. Desai 9.44 
Mr. Hemang /. Shah 2.24 
Mr. Jignesh Shah 1.03 
Mr. Bhahim B Desai 1.56 
Mrs. Nikita Shah 0.83 
Mr. Shyam Rajpurohit -
Ms. Krutika Bhatt 0.84 

2 Enterprise in which is director or hts relatives are interested or director 
Varenyam Healthcare Private Limited 1,288.60 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

143.17 
25.71 
10.33 

3.07 

0.20 
0.20 
0.20 
0.20 
0.20 
0.20 

32.61 

67.88 
36.01 

173.65 

9.00 

Asat 
31st March, 2023 

11.50 
9.44 
2.09 
0.82 
0.92 
0.52 

0.5 

1,138.46 
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3 a Conti ogent Liabilities 

Sr No Particulars 

(I} Contingent Uabilitles 

a J Liabilities Disputed In appeals 
- Income Tax 
- Service Tax 

b) Letter of Credit. Bank Guarantees and corporate Guarantees 

Total 

{Ii} Commitments 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 
capital account & not provided for: 

• Tami:lble Assets 

3 9 Disclosure pursuant to leases 
As Lessee: 
Short term Leases: 

Asat Asat 
31 Man:n, 2024 31 March, 2023 

86.14 86.14 
10.75 10.75 

2,136.91 2,571.84 

2,233.81 2,668.73 

t,B79.47 4,846.71 

The Group has obtained premises for Its business operations under operating lease or leave and license agreements. These are not 11011-cancel!able and are renewable by murual 
consent on mutually agreeable terms. 

Lease payments are recognised in statement of Profit and Loss under the head "Rent Expense" in note no 33. 

40 Disclosure related to Micro and Small Enterprises 

On the basis of confirmation obtained from the supplier who have registered themselves under the Micro, Small and Medium EnterpriSes Development Act; 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) 

and based on the information available with the Group, the following are the details: 

Particulars 

(a) the principal amount and the Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year (Refer 
below notes) 

[b)the amount of interest paid by the buyer ln terms of section 16 of the Mlcro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 

2006 {27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting 

year; 

(c) the amount of Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the 

appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Oevelopn,ent Act, 2006; 

[ d) the amount c,f\nterest accrued and ;·~maln1ng un pa Id at the € nd of eacl, accou roting year; and 

(e) the amount of rurther interest remalnlns due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues 

above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of dlsallowance of a deductible expenditure under sectlon 23 of the 

Micro, Small and Medium Entet·prises 

A.sat 
31 March, 20Z4 

102.71 

4.99 

Asat 
31 Marcli, 2023 

401.79 

4.82 

12.11 
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41 Auditor's Remuneration 

Particulars 

Statutory A udltors 
Audit Fees [including for quarterly limited review) 
For certification 
For 0th• r matters 
Total 

42 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

'r'earenrled Year ended 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 202 3 

4.5S 4.55 
1.31 0.21 
2.49 -

8.35 4,.76 

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the hold!ngcompany. The areas for CSR actlv!tles are promoting education, art and culture, 

hea Ith ca re, des ~tute care aml rehabilitation and rural development projects as specified in Schedule Vil of the Com pan les Act, 2013 .The deta!I s of amount required to be spc nt and 

actual expenses spent during the year is as under, 

Particulars Year ended Yearendl!d 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the holding company during the year 53.85 59.51 

(b) Amountspentduringthe year on 
1. Constructl 011 / Acq u\st tlon of Assets 
• In cash 
- Yet to be paid in rash 
2. On purpose other than [I) above 
- In cash 56.75 65.59 
• Yet to be paid 
( c) Short fall at the end of the year 
( d) Total of previous years shortfall 
(e) Reason for shortfall 

Rural Development. Rural Development, 
H ea! th & Education Healtn & Education 

[tJ Nature of CSR activities promotion etc .. Io romotlon etc .. 
{g) Details of related party transactlo ns 

(h] Movements In the provision of CSR during the yeQr 

Balance at the beg I nn!ng of the year 

Provision made during the year 

Provision utilised during the year -
Ba I a nee at the end of the vear -
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43 Operating Segments 

The activities of the Group relate to only one segmentl.e. Manufacturing of Pharmaceuticals Formulations 

Gcog;raphlcal Information 

The analys Is of ge ograph I ca I 1n formation is based on the geogrnph lea! !ocatl on of the cust.omers. The geographical info rmatia n cons! dered for disc! osu N: a re as follows: 

Revenue by Geography 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2 oz J 

Within India 9,629.47 10,896.38 

Outside India 16,066.32 10,863.75 

Carrying value or segment assets 

Particulars 
A.sat klat 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 20Z3 

Within India 40,028.85 29,142.22 

Outside lndia 10,353.43 5,892.o3 

Pra perty, Plant & Equipment by Geogra phlca\ Lota tlons 
The Group has common PPE for producing goods for domestic as well as overseas market There are no PPE situated outside India. Hence, additional segment-wise information for 
PP .E / additions ta PP I:: has not been furnished. 

44 Expenditure on Formulation and Development (R&D) 
The Group's F&D center as certified by Department of Scientific and Industrial Research function at survey No. 144/146 Jarod - Samlaya road, Village Haripura, Vadadara 

Exoendlture Incurred in the P&O center durinl! the financial vear 2023 24 & 2022 Z3 are 2iven below . 

P arliculars 
Year ended Year ended 

31st March, 20Z4 31st Marcl1, 2 023 

Capital Ewend!ture 1.95 

Re cu rrine Exnend I tu re 106.07 137.78 

Total Exncnditure 106.07 139.73 

45 Investment Pronertv, 
Year ended Year ended 

{i) Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss far investment properties Rental Income 
Olrectaperating expenses from property that generated rental Income 

(9.06) Depreciation (9,861 

Profit from Investment Pronertv f9.06l (9.861 

(II) Particulars 
Vear ended Vear ended 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Fair Value 
Investment Proocrties 193.54 193.54 

Total 193,54 193.54 

Estimation affair value: Method of Estimation 
In the absence of valuation reports, th.c Group h.1s used the government registration rates for the purpose af determining the fair value aF Land and Buildings. 
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46 Trade receivables a..tnl! 

Parttculars Less than 6 
montbs 

As at 31st March, 2024 

(!) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 11,072.7 

[ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have slgnilkant 
increase In credit risk 

-
{iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

-
(Iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have slgnlllcant 
increase In credit risk 

lvi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

-
Less , E;,;pected Credit Loss Allowance (65.04] 

% Expected Credit Loss Allowance to Trade Receivable -0.59% 

Total 11,007,61 

As at 31st:Marcb, 2023 

(i) Undisputed Trade recel1'ab!es - considered good 9,283.28 

(II) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have s1gnlticaot 
increase In credit risk 

(Ill] Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit Impaired 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good 

{v} Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant 
increase In credit risk 

{v!) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit Impaired 

Less: Expected Credit Loss Allowance 
(62.59] 

% Expected Credit Loss Allowance to Trade ReC'civable 
-0.67% 

Total 9,220.69 

47 Trade Pavable A•ln2 

Particulars 

As at 31st March., 2024 
(i) MSME 
(ii)Others 
(ill) Disputed dues - MSMI! 
lv} Disputed dues - Others 

Total 

As at 31st Marth, 2023 
(i) MSME 
(ii) Others 
{Ill) Disputed dues - MSMB 
flvl Dis outed dues• Others 
Total 

OutstandlnR for followinl! oeriods rr11m due date of Pavmem 
6month~·1 

1·2-year, 2-3 years More than 3 years 
vear 

1,920.64 905.18 358.52 214.45 

38.04 

- - -

- - -
- -

- - -

-
(11.72) (45.Z6) (3S.8S) (SO.SO) 

-0.61% -5.00% -10.00% -20,00% 

1.908.92 8$9.92 322.66 201.99 

1.073.06 671.4-0 112.47 246.50 

22.33 
- -

- -
- - -

. -
-

{7.19) (33,S7) (11.25) (53.77) 

-0.67¾ -5.00% -10.00% -20.00% 

1065.87 637.83 101.22 215.07 

Outstandtn ~ for ronow1n2 1 erlods from due date of Pavmimt 
Lessthml 

vear 

87.70 
5,778.56 

-
5,866.26 

394.53 
4,534.62 

-
4929.15 

1-2years 

8.05 
50.91 

-
-

S8.96 

7.26 
21.S7 

-

-
28.83 

t 

' ' 

2.-3 years More than 3 years 

6.96 
7.08 63.96 

-. 
14.04 63.96 

. 
9.05 167.27 

. 
- -

9.OS 167.2.7 

~ t,;v~-~)-.. , 

Total 

14,312.44 

38.04 

. 

. 

-

-
(208.37) 

14,142,11 

ll,386,72 

22.33 

-

-

(168.37) 

11240.68 

Total 

102.71 
5,900.51 

-
-

6,D03,22 

401.79 
4.132.Sl 

-
5,134.30 
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48 Fair Value Measurements 

Financial lnstrwnents by category 

Particulars 

Fiuancial Assets 

Trade Receivables 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Bank balances other than above 

Loans 

Other Financial Assets 

Total Floaucial Assets 

Financial Liabllitics 

Borrowings 

Other current financial Llah!litics 

Trade oavablcs 

Total Financial Liabilities 

(il Fair value hierarchy 

FVTPL 

-

. 

-

. 
. 

As at 31st March, 2024 

FVOCI Amortited Cost 

- 14,142.11 

- - 870.96 

338.45 

10.73 

- - 706.63 

- 16068.89 

- 15,758.02 

2,235.00 

6003.22 

. 23,996.24 

As at 31st March, 2023 

FVTPL FVOCI Amorti1:ed Cost 

- - 11,240.68 

785.23 

- - 212.96 

6.57 

. 698.04 

. - 12943.48 

- . 4,974.45 

. - 1,711.82 

- - 5134.32 

. . 11,820.60 

This section explains the Judgements and estimates made In determining the Fair values of the financial instrumentll that are (a) recognized and measured at fair value. To 
provide an indication ab<;iut the reliability of the inputs used in determining Fair value, the Company has classified Its financial Instruments Into the three levels prescribed 
under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table. 

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. 

Level 2: The fair value of financial Instruments that are not traded In an active market is detennlned using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market 

data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific e~limatcs. If all significant Inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the in~-rrument is included In level 2. 

Level 3, lfone or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data the Instrument Is Included in level 3. 
There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year. 
The Company's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of the reporting period. 

(ii) Valua!ion technique wed tD determine fair value 

Specificvaluaticn techniques used to value financial instruments include: 
- the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments 
• the fair value of the remaining Hnancial instruments ts determined using discounted analysts(if any}. 
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49 Financial Risk Management 
The Group's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. 

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks. 
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. 

(A} Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally 

from the Group's receivables from customers, loans and investments. Credit risk is managed through continuous monitoring ofreceivables and follow up for overdues. 

(I) Investments 
The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by generally Investing in liquid securities and only with counterparties that have a good credit rating. t'he Group does not 
expect any losses from non-performance by these counter parties, and does not have any significant concentration of exposures to specific Industry sector or specific 
country risks. 

(11) Trade Receivables 
TI1e Group has used Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for assessing the impairment loss. For the purpose, the Group uses a provision matrix to compute the expected 
credit loss amount. The provision matrix takes into account external and internal risk factors and historical data to credit losses from various customers. 

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision -Trade receivables 
Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st Marcl1, 2023 

Balance at the beginning of the year 168.37 126.12 
Changes in loss allowance 4-0.00 42.25 
Balance at the end of the vear 208.37 168.37 

Other than trade and other receivables, the Group has no other financial assets that are past due but not impaired. 

(B} Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or 
another financial asset The responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropliate Uquidlty risk 
management framework for the management of the Group's short-term, medium•tenn and Jo11g-tenn funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group 
manages liquidity lisk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facili1ies, by continuously monir.orlng forecast and actual cash flows, 
and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. • 

(i) Maturities offinanclal liabilities 

The tables herewith analyse the Group's financial-liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for: 
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of 
discounting is not significant 

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities 

As at 31st March, 2024 
Non-derivatives 
Borrowi11gs 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 
Total Non-derivative liabilities 

As at 31st March, 2023 
Non-derivatives 
Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 
Total Non-derivative liabilities 

(q Market risk 

fll Price Risi< 

Particulars 
Less than 

1 vear 

8,441.80 
6,003.22 
Z,235.00 

16,680.02 

3,882.43 
5,134.32 
1,711.82 

10 728.58 

More than Total 
1vear 

7,316.22 15,758.02 
- 6,003.22 

2,235.00 
7,316.22 23,996.24-

1,092.02 4,974.45 

- 5,134.32 . 1,711.82 
1,092.02 11,820.60 

The Group is mainly exposed to the price risk due to its investments in securities. The price risk arises due to uncertainties about the future markel values of these 

investments. The above instruments risk are arises due to uncertainties about the future market values of these investments. 

Management Policy 
The Group maintains its portfolio In accordance with the framework set by the Risk management Policies. 
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( Ii) foreign Currency Risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices - will affect the Group's income or the value of its 
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while 
optlmising the return. 

The risk is measured through a forecast of foreign currency for the Group's operations. 

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in Indian Rupee, are as follows: 

(i)Trade receivable aod other Receivable 

As at 31st March, 2024 

Currency Trade Hedges 
receivable and other 

Receivable 
available 

USO 190.79 
EURO 9767.SO 

As at 31st March, 2023 

Currency 
Trade 

Hedges 
receivable and other 

Receivable 
available 

USO S 2.65.14 
6URO . 

(ii) Trade payable and other payable 

Asat 31st March, 2024 

Currency Trade Hedges 
payable and other 

available 
oa vable 

USO 16.87 

As at 31st March, 2023 

Currency Trade Hedges 
payable and other available 

oavable 
USO 177.18 

Sensitivity 

The sensitiVicy of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from Unhedged foreign currency denominated financial 
instruments. 

Particular Impact on profit after tax 
31st Mardi, 2024 31st March. 2023 

USO sensltivi ty 

. 

. 

. 

. 

!NR/USD increases by 5% 8.70 254.40 
JNR/USD decreases by 5% (8.70) (254.40) 

EUR sensitlvity 
INR/EUR increases by 5% 488.37 -
INR/E:URdecreases bv S% f 488.37) 

Capital Management 
SO Risk management 

Net exposure to 
foreign currency risk 

190.79 
9 767.50 

Net exposure to 
foreign currency riSl< 

5.265.14 
. 

Net e.'qlosure to 
foreign currency risk 

16.87 

Net exposure to 
foreign currency r!sk 

177.18 

For the purpose of the Group's capital management, equity indudes equity share capital and aU other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group. The 
Group manages its capital to optimise returns to the shareholders and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic condit1ons or its business requirements. 
The Group's objectives are to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and provide adequate return 
to shareholders through continuing growth and maximise the shareholders value. The Group funds Its operation through internal accruals. The management and Board 
of Directors monitor the return on capital as well as the level of dlv1dends to shareholders. 
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St Share-based payments 
(a) Ttle share-based payment plan is an employee option plan. The options are equity settled options. 
At the annual general meeting or holding company held on 30th September, 2020,' member of th~ e<>mpany passed the special resolution for introducing "Bharat Parenterals 

Employee Stock Option Plan 2020" of 2,00,000 options for the benefit of the employee of the company. The resolution also accorded approval for the Board of Directors, u, 

formulate the Scheme as per broad parameters outlined In the :resolution. Pursuant to Scheme frame ti, the company has granted options to eligible employees of the company under 

plan. Each options entitle for one equity share. The company granted 90,000 Stock Option to its employees by virtue of grant letter dated 12th, November, 2020 and 17th, June, 

2022. The vesting conditions of which are as outlined in their grant letter, Necessary impact have been considered. Further, the company has not yet granted the l,10,000 St.ock 

Option to its employees. The options are exercisable at an exercise price of Rs. 99 per share [Face Value ofRs.10 per share]. 
(b) Set out below is the summary of options 

Year ended31 March 2024 Vear ended 31 March 2023 

Particular Average eJ1:ercise 
No. of options price/ share in Rs. 

Ooenine. balance 99 45,000 
Granted durinR the vear - -
Exercised durilll! the vear 99 45,000 
Forfeited durill2 the vear - -
Closine: balance -
Vested and exercisable - . 
( cl Share optJons outstand!Ill! at the end of the vear have the followin2 exercise oerlod and exercise Drlccs • 

Grant Grant Date 

Grant l - Exercise price Rs. 99.00 12/11/2020 

Grant II - 6xercise price Rs. 99.00 17/06/2022 

(d) No options expired during the year ended 31 March 20Z4 and 31 March 2023. 

(e) Contractual life of options 

Grant Grant Date 

Grant I - Exercise price Rs. 99.00 12/11/ 2020 
Grant 11 • Exercise price Rs. 99.00 17/06/2022 

Exercise period 

1 years from the 
date oflisting 

1 years from the 
date of listing 

Expiry Date 

11/11/2021 
16/06/2023 

Average exercise 
No. ofoptious price/ share In Rs. 

. 
99 45,000 

- . 
-

99 45,000 
99 45,000 

Share Options as Share Options as 
on 31 Marth 2024 on 31 Marth 2023 

- -

- -

Shilre Options as Share Options as 
on 31 March 2024 on 31 March 2023 

- . 
- -

The holding company has ch~rged to statement of Profit and Loss as employee benefit expenses Rs. 13.96 Lakhs (P.Y. 53.09 Lakhs) by creating an Employee stock option reserve 
which is grouped under the head 'Other Equity'. • 

52 Other disdosures 
(i) The Group do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been Initiated or pending against The Group for holding any Bena mi property. 

(ii) The Group do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet t1> be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. 
[iii] The Group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Curr~ncy during the year. 

(iv) The Group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the 

Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities Identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultilnate Beneficiaries) or 

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimnte Beneflciaries. 
(v) The Group have not received any fund from any person(s) or cntlty(ies), including foreign entides (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise] that The Gruup shall: 

(a] directly or indirec:tly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide 3ny guarantee, security or the Ii ke on b eh al f oft he Ultimate Bene fkiaries. 
(vi)The Group do not have any such trnnsaclion which is not recorded in the books uf accounts and that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the ta, 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Ta1< Act, 1961) 
(vii) The Group holds all the title deeds of immovable property in !ts name. 
(viii) The Group Is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institu tion or other tender. 
(ix) There Is no Scheme of Arrangement approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 . ...,., ... .,, 

,✓~_.,,.,.,_..~!.' 0:; .. i.. "~-"O 

,~,VA~ .. 
(1 ~ 
\ tf 

~lr'Eo Acco"#:. 
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53 Other Dlsdosures as oer Schedule - IJI 

Net Assets, i.e. total assets minus 
Share in Profit or loss 

total liabilities 
Name ofthl! company 

As%of As%of 
consolidated net Amount consolidated Profit Amount 

assets and Loss 

Parent 
Bharat Parenterals Limited 85.03% 20,252.97 179.59% 1,852.61 
[Previous Year] 84.37% 18,385.16 108.96% 1,717.01 

Subsidiaries 
Varenyam Biolifesclences Private Limited -0.08% (19.19) -1.32% (13.57) 
[Previous Year] -0.03% (5.63) -0.36% (5.63) 

lnnoxel Lifesciences Private Umtied -2.13% {507.09) -39.47% (407.19) 
(Previous Year) ·0.46% (99.90) -4.27% (67.25) 

Minority Interest in subsidiary 17.18% 4,090.71 -38.80% (400.27) 
[Previous Year) 16.11% 3,510.27 -4.34% (68.36) 

Total 100.00% 23,817.40 100.00% 1,031.59 
[Previous Year] 100.00% 21,789.90 100.00% 1,575.78 

54 The consolidated flnancial statements were authori·ad for (ssue in accordance with a resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 22nd May,2024. The financial 
stotements as approved by the Board of Directors are subject to final approval by its Shareholders. 

55 Information on D117idend for the year ended 31st March, 2024 

Dividends proposed or dedared a~er the balance sheet date but before the financial statements have been approved by the Board of Director of the holding company for 
issue are not recognised as a liability at tl1e balance sheet date. 

The Board of Director recommended final dividend of Rs 1.00 per equity share for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024. The payment is subject to approval of share 
holder in ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. (Previous year Rs. 0.7S per equity share). 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
As per our Report of even date 

For CNK&AssodatesLLP 
Chartz!red Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 101961W/W·100036 
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